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In this annual report, unless otherwise required by the context, the following terms shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Annual General Meeting” or

“AGM”

“Articles”

“Audit Committee”

“Board”

“China IC Fund”

“China IC Fund II”

“China” or “the PRC”

“Company” or
“Hua Hong Semiconductor’

“Company Secretary”

“Director(s)

an annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 9 May 2024;

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time);

the audit committee of the Board;

the Board of Directors of the Company;

China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (BIZREMK BIKEER
EHEESIHAR AR, a company incorporated in the PRC on 26 September 2014;
its shareholders include the Ministry of Finance, the enterprises in the Integrated
Circuit Industry Cluster, large-scale state-owned enterprises, certain financial
institutions and private enterprises. It mainly focuses on the manufacturing of
semiconductor wafers and takes into account the upstream and downstream links
covering chip design, package test, equipment and materials etc;

China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund (Phase 1) Co., Ltd.* (BIZK&EMK
BEREEREES —HIRMARAT), a company established in the PRC on 22
October 2019; its shareholders include the Ministry of Finance, the enterprises in
the Integrated Circuit Industry Cluster, large-scale state-owned enterprises, certain
financial institutions and private enterprises. It mainly invests in the value chain of
the integrated circuit industry via equity investment, primarily in integrated circuit
chip manufacturing as well as chip designing, packaging test and equipment
and materials. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief and
having made all reasonable enquiry, China IC Fund Il is not an associate of China
IC Fund under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules;

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where otherwise required by the context,
references in this annual report to “China” and the “PRC” do not include Taiwan,
the Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region;

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 21 January 2005 and, except where otherwise required by the
context, all of its subsidiaries, or its present subsidiaries where the context refers to
the time before it became the holding company of its present subsidiaries;

the Company Secretary of the Company;

the Director(s) of the Company;



‘EPS”

“Executive Director(s)”

“Extraordinary General Meeting”
or “EGM”

‘GDP”

“Grace Cayman”

“Grace Shanghai”

“Group”

“HHGrace”

“HHNEC”

“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
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earnings per share;

the Executive Director(s) of our Company;

an extraordinary general meeting of the Company;

gross domestic product;

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 October 1999 and a wholly
— owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (/87 7388 81iEH
X2 7]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 20 December 2000 and a wholly —
owned subsidiary of our Company. It was deregistered on 3 August 2018;

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where required by the context, with respect
to the period before our Company became the holding company of our present
subsidiaries (or became such associated companies of our Company), the business
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);

Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (_E/&2E 5 7 /)
FEREREATR AN R]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 24 January 2013 and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd. (F/BZFEUNECETARAT), a
company incorporated in the PRC on 17 July 1997 and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company. It was deregistered on 3 August 2018;

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;



4 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED e 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

“Huahong Group”

“Huahong Group Framework
Agreement”

“Huahong Real Estate”

“Huahong Technology
Development”

“Huajin Property Management”

“Huali Integrated”

“Huali Micro”

“Hua Hong Manufacturing”

“Hua Hong Wuxi”

Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (/&% ( £E )BRAR]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 9 April 1996 as Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. and renamed as Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. in 1998, and a
significant shareholder of our Company;

the framework agreement dated 30 December 2022 entered into between the
Company and Huahong Group to regulate the sales and purchase transactions and
provision of services between the Group and Huahong Group, its subsidiaries or
associates (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the year ending
31 December 2023;

Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (E/S8ZEMEXHFREAF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 28 October 2011 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development;

Shanghai Huahong Technology Development Co., Limited (_H/8ZEIT R RERE QD
A]), a connected person, a company incorporated in the PRC on 10 May 2010, and
a company 50% held by and consolidated with Huahong Group and 50% held by
HHGrace;

Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (b/BZERMEESEER AR, a
company incorporated in the PRC on 8 June 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development and a connected person of the Company;

Shanghai Huali Integrated Circuit Corporation (/&% HEKBEEREEERAT),
a company incorporated in the PRC on 8 August 2016. Its Shareholders include
Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation, Shanghai Integrated Circuit Industry
Investment Fund Co., Ltd. and China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund
Co., Ltd.;

Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation (/8% A1 & F B R A 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 January 2010 and a connected person;

Hua Hong Semiconductor Manufacturing (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.* (FEH] - EeE 1% ( &85 )
BMR/AF]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 17 June 2022 and a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company;

Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC
on 10 October 2017 and held 51% by the Group. Upon completion of the Capital
Injection Agreement, the registered capital of Hua Hong Wuxi shall increase from
US$1,800 million to approximately US$2,536.85 million and Hua Hong Wuxi remains
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company held as to approximately 22.22%,
28.78%, 20.00%, 20.58% and 8.42% by the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong
Lian Xin, China IC Fund and China IC Fund I, respectively;



“Independent Non-Executive
Director(s)”

“INESA”

“Listing Rules”

“Nomination Committee”

“Non-Executive Director(s)

“O-Cubes”

‘QsT”

“Remuneration Committee”

“‘RMB”

“RMB Share(s)” or “A Share(s)”

“RMB Share Issue”

“SAIL”

“SFC”
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the Independent Non-Executive Director(s) of our Company;

INESA (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/&EEE(%£E )ER AR, formerly known as INESA
Holding Group (LBEEZER(&E )BMRAF]), a state-owned company
incorporated in the PRC in December 1993, and a controlling shareholder of our
Company prior to 17 December 2020;

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time;

the nomination committee of the Board;

the Non-Executive Director(s) of our Company;

O-Cubes (Shanghai) Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd. (H&F( b8 M E TR
BB AF]), a company incorporated in the PRC owned as to 30% by SAIL;

QST Corporation (_EEWERHZERAF]), a company incorporated in the PRC on
13 September 2012 and a connected person of the Company until 1 September
2020;

the remuneration committee of the Board;

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;

the ordinary share(s) of the Company which are listed on the STAR Market and
traded in RMB;

the Company’s issue of 407,750,000 RMB Shares, which are listed and became
available for trading on the STAR Market on 7 August 2023, further information of
which are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 21 March 2022, 12
May 2022, 27 June 2022, 4 November 2022, 30 January 2023, 13 April 2023, 10
May 2023, 17 May 2023, 28 May 2023, 7 June 2023, 28 June 2023, 5 July 2023, 14
July 2023, 18 July 2023, 21 July 2023, 24 July 2023, 26 July 2023, 27 July 2023, 31
July 2023 and 4 August 2023, and the circulars of the Company dated 7 June 2022,
5 June 2023 and 29 June 2023;

Shanghai Alliance Investment Limited (E/&BMIEEBRAF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 26 September 1994, a substantial shareholder of our
Company;

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong;
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“SFO”

“Shanghai Awinic”

“Shanghai Huali”

“Shareholders”

“SITRI"

“STAR Market”

‘Us$”

“Wuxi Xi Hong Guo Xin”

“Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin”

* For identification purpose only

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time;

Shanghai Awinic Technology Co., Ltd. (E/8X A& TR ER A F]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 June 2008 whose shares are listed on the STAR
Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 688798);

Huali Micro and its subsidiaries;

holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company;

Shanghai Industrial uTechnology Research Institute (_/&FHEMafizEH LAR A
A]), a company incorporated in the PRC in May 2013 and a connected person of
the Company;

the Science and Technology Innovation Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange;

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States;

Wuxi Xi Hong Guo Xin Investment Co., Ltd.* (EHBFARGIREEREAF), a
professional investment company incorporated in the PRC on 16 January 2023,
jointly controlled by municipal and district-level state-owned enterprises; and

Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin Investment Co., Ltd.* (ZEFHU B SR EGRAF]), a
professional investment company incorporated in the PRC on 19 December 2017,
jointly established by municipal and district-level state-owned enterprises.



KEY FINANCIALS
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Dear Shareholders,

Looking back at 2023, it was an exceptionally rare, significant, and milestone year in the development history of Hua
Hong Semiconductor, given the challenging and complex external environment, volatile market conditions, and a
labyrinthine competitive landscape where opportunities and challenges coexisted. The two major manufacturing bases
in Shanghai and Wuxi acted as mighty wheels, steering with stability. Upholding the beliefs of “Courage, Perseverance
and Unity”, our entire workforce converged together to form an unstoppable force. Overcoming obstacles with
determination, we not only navigated the market’'s ups and downs smoothly, but also wrote a new glorious chapter
in the pursuit of harmony and sustainable development. With the advantages of our “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy, the
Company stayed committed to continuous innovation of specialty technologies and developed core competitiveness of
products using our specialty platforms, including Embedded/Standalone Non-Volatile Memory, Power Discrete, Analog
& PM, and Logic & RF. We persisted in our forward-looking “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” dual-pronged strategy,
rapidly penetrated downstream emerging markets, including communication, new energy, Internet of Things, and
automotive electronics, continuously providing excellent products and services for our global customers.

In the dynamic summer of 2023, Hua Hong Semiconductor was officially listed on the STAR Market, joining the ranks of
“A+H” dual-listed companies and forging a closer bond with the capital market. Seizing this opportunity, we are poised
to drive rapid scaling of our 12-inch production line, pursue excellence in our 8-inch production line, and conduct in-
depth research and development on specialty technologies. Confronted with severe challenges during the Reporting
Period, such as the slowdown in global economic growth, declining market demand, and rising costs of raw materials
and labor, revenue of the Company was US$2,286.1 million, a decrease of 7.7% compared to the year 2022. The
overall gross profit margin was also subject to challenges, decreasing 12.8 percentage points to 21.3% compared to
the previous year. Despite such a challenging market environment, Hua Hong Semiconductor has maintained steadfast
development momentum. The Company actively adjusted its strategic plan, strengthened internal management,
and increased its investment in research and development, in order to pursue breakthroughs and precisely seize
opportunities for recovery in adverse market conditions.

As at the end of 2023, the Company had an expanded monthly capacity (8-inch equivalent) of 391,000 wafers and an
annual shipment of 4.103 million wafers. In particular, Hua Hong Wuxi has successfully achieved its monthly capacity
of 94,500 wafers, with IC process nodes covering 90 nm to 65/55 nm. It is a global leading 12-inch production line
devoted to specialty technologies and the world’s first 12-inch power semiconductor foundry. In June 2023, the Hua
Hong Manufacturing Project was launched with an investment of US$6.7 billion for the construction of a new 12-
inch specialty technology production line with a monthly capacity of 83,000 wafers. The project officially commenced
in June, and installation of the main plant’s steel structure was completed in December, showcasing “Hua Hong
speed” once again. Capacity release of the Wuxi manufacturing base will provide strong support for improvement
and development of the integrated circuit industry supply chain in the Yangtze River Delta region. At the same time,
adhering to the development concept of “Driven by innovation, led by technology” with a strong focus on high-quality
development, the Company will continue to enhance its core competitiveness, with an aim to make greater contributions
to the sustained and healthy development of the integrated circuit industry in China and globally.
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“This arduous journey is as tough as iron, but now we are striding forward from the very beginning”. Looking ahead
to 2024, we will closely keep up with market trends, further advance research and development of new technologies,
optimize and upgrade existing platforms, strengthen our advantages in various specialty technologies, focus on new
quality productivity, and drive the synergy of the industrial ecosystem. Upholding an innovative mindset, we will create
more products for our customers all over the world with an international vision. We express our heartfelt gratitude to all
of our shareholders, partners, and friends from all walks of life for their ongoing care, support for, and cooperation with
Hua Hong Semiconductor. Let’'s work together to jointly build a better future, with no concern for the past, no fear of
the present, and no hesitation in pursuing our strategy!

Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Junjun Tang
President and Executive Director

Shanghai, PRC
28 March 2024
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Culture

- DISRUPTIVE INNOVAIxON ;
- CONFIDENCE, INITIATIVE
AND TEAMWORK




Executive Directors
Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Junjun Tang (President)

Non-Executive Directors

Jun Ye

Guodong Sun

Limin Zhou (appointed on 19 January 2024)
Chengyan Xiong (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Jing Wang (resigned on 1 September 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

Company Secretary
Sui Har Lee

Authorized Representatives
Junjun Tang
Sui Har Lee

Audit Committee

Stephen Tso Tung Chang (Chairman)
Chengyan Xiong (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Jun Ye (until 28 March 2024)

Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

Remuneration Committee

Kwai Huen Wong, JP (Chairman)

Jun Ye (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)
Jing Wang (resigned on 1 September 2023)

Nomination Committee

Suxin Zhang (Chairman)

Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

www.huahonggrace.com

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong
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Herbert Smith Freehills
23/F, Gloucester Tower
15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

China Construction Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 900, Lujiazui Ring Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai, PRC

China Development Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 68, Puming Road
Shanghai, PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation Hong Kong
Branch

28/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road, Central

Hong Kong

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
20 Pedder Street, Central
Hong Kong

China Development Bank Jiangsu Branch
No. 232, Middle Jiangdong Road
Nanjing, Jiangsu, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Wuxi Xinwu Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road, Xinwu District
Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

China Construction Bank Wuxi High and New
Technology Industrial Development Zone Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road, Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

China CITIC Bank Wuxi New District Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road, Xinwu District
Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

Bank of China Wuxi High and New Technology
Industrial Development Zone Subbranch

No. 140, Wangzhuang Road, Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Share Registrar

Hong Kong shares:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

A shares:

China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited, Shanghai Branch

No. 188 South Yanggao Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai

Registered Office

Room 2212, Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road, Central
Hong Kong

Principal Places of Business

288 Halei Road
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Shanghai, PRC
Postcode: 201203

No. 30, Xinzhou Road
Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
Postcode: 214028

No. 30-1, Xinzhou Road
Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
Postcode: 214028

Stock Code

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 01347
Shanghai Stock Exchange: 688347
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Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 60, was appointed on 11 March 2016 as the
Chairman and an Executive Director of our Company as well as a member
of and Chairman of the Nomination Committee. He is currently Chairman
and Secretary of the Communist Party of Huahong Group, Chairman of
HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi, Hua Hong Manufacturing, and Shanghai Huali.
Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in hi-tech strategic development, energy
strategy research, and the power equipment industry. Mr. Zhang held various
positions, including President of Shanghai Turbine Co., Ltd., Executive Vice
President of Shanghai Electric Power Generation Group, Chairman of Siemens
Gas Turbine Parts Co., Ltd., Executive Director of Shanghai Electric Group
Company Limited, Vice President of Shanghai Electric (Group) Corporation,
Secretary of the Communist Party and General Manager of Shanghai
Jingiao (Holdings) Limited, Chairman and Secretary of the Communist Party
of Shanghai Jingiao Export Processing Zone Development Co., Ltd., and
Deputy Director of both the Shanghai Municipal Development and Reform
Commission and the Administration Commission of Shanghai Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone. Mr. Zhang graduated from Tsinghua
University with a Bachelor’'s degree in Engineering and is a professor-level
Senior Engineer.

Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 59, has been serving the President and Executive
Director of the Company since May 2019. Mr. Tang also serves as President
of HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing. Mr. Tang has
extensive experience in the integrated circuit industry and management
and possesses strong coordination and execution ability. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Tang was the Secretary of the Party Committee, Vice
President and Executive Vice President of Huali Micro from February 2010
to March 2019. He was concurrently the President of Huali Integrated from
August 2016 to March 2019. During the period from July 2008 to February
2010, Mr. Tang was the Vice Secretary of the Party Committee, President
of Trade Union and head of administrative and government relationships of
HHNEC. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tang successively held various
positions, including Associate Chief Officer of Shanghai Bureau of Instrument
and Telecommunications Industry (E/8&KEFNLESE), Technologist of
Shanghai Radio No.17 Factory (/&4 E ++F) and Technologist of
Shanghai Semiconductor Device No.4 Factory (/& EE22{(ETM/R). Mr.
Tang graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with an Undergraduate’s
degree in Business Administration. He also graduated from China
Europe International Business School with a Master's degree in Business
Administration. He holds the title of Chief Senior Economist, and was awarded
titles including National May 1st Labor Medal, National Model Worker, National
Outstanding Party Affairs Worker.
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Mr. Jun Ye, aged 51, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company
since February 2012, and is a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Ye has more than
20 years of experience in finance and investment. Mr. Ye has successively
held various positions in SAIL, including Manager of the Investment Banking
Division and the Business Development Division, General Manager Assistant
and Deputy General Manager since 1996 and General Manager since May
2018. Mr. Ye is also a Director at Bank of Shanghai, Chairman of Shanghai
Zhaoxin Semiconductor Co., Ltd., Sinotherapeutics Inc. and Sino-US United
MetLife Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Ye obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in Industrial and International Trade and a Master's degree in Business
Administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. Guodong Sun, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 10 December 2020, and is a Director of Hua
Hong Wuxi. Mr. Sun joined China Development Bank in 2000. From 2000 to
2014, Mr. Sun held various positions in China Development Bank, including
Deputy Director of the Human Resources Systems Division, Deputy Director
and Director of the Hubei Branch Human Resources Department, etc. Mr.
Sun had been the General Manager of the Human Resources Department of
Sino-IC Capital Co., Ltd. (IR EERFREFAF]) from December 2014 to
July 2016, and has been the Managing Director of Sino-IC Capital Co., Ltd.
since July 2016. Mr. Sun graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in
the PRC with a Bachelor's degree in Computer Application and from Central
University of Finance and Economics in the PRC with a Master's degree in
Business Administration.
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Mr. Limin Zhou, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company and a director of its subsidiaries, namely HHGrace, Hua Hong
Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing, with effect from 19 January 2024. Mr.
Zhou is currently serving as the vice president of Huahong Group and as a
director of a number of subsidiaries of Huahong Group. Mr. Zhou has over
24 years of experience working in the semiconductor industry. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Zhou held various positions with a number of subsidiaries
of Huahong Group, including deputy department head, department head,
director, vice president and executive vice president from 1999 to 2023.
Mr. Zhou graduated from Shanghai University with a Bachelor's degree in
engineering, majoring in electronic materials and components, and is a Senior
Engineer.

Ms. Chengyan Xiong, aged 44, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 28 March 2024. Ms. Xiong has nearly 20
years of experience working in the finance and accounting sector. Prior
to joining the Company, Ms. Xiong was a deputy chief staff member and
chief staff member of the budget office of Shanghai State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission* (EEMERAEEEBEEEE
Bg), after which she held various positions as vice department head and
department head within the group companies of Huahong Group. Ms. Xiong
is currently the head of capital and finance department of Huahong Group
and holds various positions as a director or a supervisor at a number of
the subsidiaries of Huahong Group. Ms. Xiong graduated from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (_E/8BI#€K2) with a Master's degree
in management. Ms. Xiong is also a senior accountant and a non-practising
certified public accountant in the PRC.



16 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED e 2023 ANNUAL REPORT

Ms. Jing Wang, aged 53, was a Non-Executive Director of our Company from
June 2019 to September 2023.
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Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, aged 75, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of our Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Chang was a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants from 1978 to the end of 2003. He has been a Fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since
January 1983, and has extensive experience in accounting, auditing and
financial management. Mr. Chang held various positions at Ernst & Young
starting in 1976. He became a Management Committee Member of Ernst &
Young in 1989 and was actively involved in establishing and monitoring the
firm’s internal control and risk management policy and procedures. Prior to
his promotion to Managing Partner of the Professional Services Department,
he was Chairman of Ernst and Young's audit and advisory business services
for four years. He was a Partner of Ernst and Young and the Chairman of
Ernst and Young China and Hong Kong prior to his retirement in 2003. He is a
member of the Investment Committee of Shanghai Fudan University Education
Development Foundation and Fudan University Education Development
Foundation (overseas). He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China World Trade Center Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600007.SH), and was
formerly an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1359.HK), Kerry Properties Limited (stock
code: 683.HK) and China Life Insurance Company Ltd. (stock code: 2628.
HK). Mr. Chang obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Food Science and
Chemistry from the University of London.

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 72, is an Independent Non —
Executive Director of our Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Wong
had served as the PRC Managing Partner of two international law firms for
15 years. Prior to that, he worked for the Lands Department, Department of
Justice and Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR Government for a total
of 10 years. He was appointed as a Member of Airport Authority Hong Kong,
Hospital Authority, and the Competition Commission from 2011 to 2018. He
was the former Chairman of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre,
the former President of the Law Society of Hong Kong and Inter-Pacific Bar
Association, and the former Chairman of Hong Kong Copyright Tribunal. He
is presently the Chairman of Hong Kong Inland Revenue Board of Review,
and the Independent Non-Executive Director of Vinda International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3331.HK) and NWS Holdings Limited (stock code:
659.HK). Mr. Kwai Huen Wong was formerly a Director of the Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China Oilfield Services Limited. In addition, he is the Honorary Lecturer,
External Examiner, and Professor at The University of Hong Kong, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, City University of Hong Kong, and Hong
Kong Shue Yan University. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Law degree from the
University of London.
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Mr. Songlin Feng, aged 59, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of our Company with effect from 28 March 2024. He has over 32 years of
experience in academic research in science and technology, including
integrated circuits and semiconductors. He successively served as a deputy
researcher, researcher, deputy director, director, an assistant to head and the
head of the Institute of Semiconductors of the Chinese Academy of Sciences*
(FPERI P EEEATICFT) from February 1992 to December 2000. From
January 2001 to August 2010, he was a researcher, deputy head and the
head of Shanghai Institute of Microsystems and Information Technology of the
Chinese Academy of Sciences* (FFBIRIERT /B R (s BRAMIATITA).
He successively served as a researcher, the leader of the planning team and
the Dean of Shanghai Advanced Research Institute of the Chinese Academy
of Sciences* (R EIRIEFt 8= %M 5Ekt) from March 2009 to May 2017. Mr.
Feng has been an independent director of (i) INESA Intelligent Tech Inc. (£
BEBAHARAT]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600602), (i) GEN-S Power Group Co., Ltd. (FE£&EREB KD
BBRAF]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
600753), and (i) Shanghai Zhaoxin Semiconductor Co., Ltd.* (/&K%

(BB ABRZAR]). In addition, Mr. Feng has been a director of Shanghai
Zhongyan Hongling Information Technology Co., Ltd.* (_E/&R#IEE BE
FAMRAR. Mr. Feng graduated from Wuhan University (EZEAZ) with a
bachelor's degree in semiconductor physics, and holds a master’'s degree
and a doctor’s degree in material sciences from from Université Paris Diderot
— Paris VII, respectively.

Mr. Long Fei Ye, aged 82, acted as an an Independent Non-Executive
Director of our Company from September 2014 to March 2024.
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Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 61, has been appointed as the Secretary
of the Board of the Company since February 2012. Mr. Wang is also an
Executive Vice President of our Company, HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua
Hong Manufacturing, supervising key functional divisions including finance,
information technology, administration and compliance, board office, and
overseas human resources. In April 2001, Mr. Wang joined Grace Shanghai
and took on a central leadership position at every phase of Grace Shanghai’s
growth and development. His responsibilities encompassed supervising
the planning and execution of the merger, as well as the successful initial
public offering of the company on both the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the STAR board at the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Prior to joining Grace
Shanghai, Mr. Wang served at LS| Logic Corporation in San Jose, Silicon
Valley, California from August 1995 to March 2001 as the Division Controller in
the Broadband Entertainment Division. Before that, Mr. Wang was employed
by Franklin Templeton Investments in the U.S. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor's
degree in Industrial Engineering and Operations Research from the College
of Engineering, University of California, Berkeley and a Master's degree of
Business Administration degree in Finance and Banking from the University
of San Francisco, in the U.S.. In the “All — Asia (Ex-Japan) Executive Team
Ranking” published by Institutional Investor, a respected international
financial magazine, he was honored as the Best Chief Financial Officer in the
technology/semiconductor industry for the years 2018, 2019, 2021, and 2022.
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As at the date of this report, the Company’s senior management includes:

Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 60, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
our Company. For more information about Mr. Zhang'’s profile and academic
background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Team — Board of Directors”.

Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 59, is the President and Executive Director of the
Company. For more information about Mr. Tang’s profile and academic
background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Team — Board of Directors”.

Mr. Weiping Zhou, aged 57, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing, responsible for
marketing and has over 35 years of experience in the integrated circuit
industry in China. Mr. Zhou joined the Company at the beginning of 2018.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhou was the Executive Vice President
of Shanghai Belling Corporation Limited, the General Manager of Ningbo
Shanshan Ulica Solar Technology Developing Company Limited, the General
Manager of Shanghai Belling Microelectronics Manufacturing Company
Limited, the Deputy Secretary to the Communist Party Committee, President,
Chief Executive Officer, Secretary to the Communist Party Committee and Vice
President of Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation Limited.
Mr. Zhou graduated from East China Normal University with a Bachelor's
degree in Solid State Electronic Technology and subsequently obtained a
Master's degree in Business Administration from Fudan University, and he is a
professor-level Senior Engineer.
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Mr. Lihua Ni, aged 55, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing. He joined HHGrace
in May 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lihua Ni successively worked
for Wuxi Huajing Group Co., Ltd. (##52E&%E A F]), Shanghai Hua Hong
Microelectronics Co., Ltd., HHNEC, acted as a Department Manager at
Shanghai Xinjin Semiconductor Fabrication Co., Ltd., the department head at
HHNEC, and a Deputy Factory Director at Huali Micro. Mr. Lihua Ni graduated
from Xidian University with a Bachelor of Engineering degree and obtained
a Master of Engineering degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. He is
qualified as a Senior Engineer.

Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 61, is an Executive Vice President of
our Company, HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing,
responsible for overseeing finance, information technology, administration and
compliance, work related to the board office, and overseas human resources.
For more information about Mr. Wang's profile and academic background,
see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Team — Board of
Directors”.

Dr. Weiran Kong, aged 60, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing, and is in charge of
technology development and design services. He joined Grace Shanghai in
March 2003 and has over 30 years’ experience in the semiconductor industry,
with a proven track record of driving innovations in the area of NOR Flash,
Logic, and Embedded Flash. Before joining Grace Shanghai, Dr. Kong was
based in the U.S. and has worked for Sun Microsystems, Inc., LS| Logic
Corporation, and ISSI. He obtained a Bachelor's degree in Physics from
Nankai University in Tianjin and graduated with a Master’'s degree in Electrical
Engineering and a Doctorate degree in Applied Physics from Oregon
Graduate Institute of Science & Technology in the U.S. Dr. Kong holds 27 U.S.
patents, 70 PRC patents and co-authored over 20 technical papers.
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Ms. Sui Har Lee, aged 46, has been serving as the Company Secretary of the
Company since November 2019. Ms. Lee is currently a Partner of Jun He Law
Offices. She has around 16 years of experience in general business practices
and corporate financial transactions, such as assisting corporations in listing
their shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, merger and acquisitions,
capital reorganization, and compliance and regulatory matters in relation to
the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. Lee was admitted
as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in 2005. Ms. Lee graduated
from City University of Hong Kong with the degree of Bachelor of Laws and
obtained the degree of Master of Laws from University College London.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company diligently practices good corporate governance and has established corporate governance procedures
that comply with the principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules.

The Company understands the importance of sound corporate governance practices and recognizes the changing
regulatory environment. Therefore, the Company has continually monitored and updated its corporate governance
practices, from implementing the Code and evaluating the effectiveness of its practices to responding to continuous
developments in the regulatory landscape.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company complied with the Code.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all of the Directors, each of whom has confirmed that they
have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, complied with the required standards set out therein.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of managing the business and affairs of the Company. It has
the ultimate responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Company, which is delegated to the Chairman and
management.

The nine-member Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, Mr. Suxin Zhang (Chairman) and Mr. Junjun
Tang (President); four Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Jun Ye, Mr. Guodong Sun, Mr. Limin Zhou and Ms. Chengyan
Xiong (appointed on 28 March 2024); and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang,
Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP, and Mr. Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024). Ms. Jing Wang and Mr. Long Fei Ye
resigned as a Non-Executive Director and an Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 September 2023 and 28 March
2024, respectively. More details of the Directors are disclosed on pages 13 to 18 of this annual report. The Company
has published and maintained on its website and on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's website an updated list of the
Directors, identifying their roles and functions.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
re-nomination and re-election by the Company in general meetings, unless previously terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or Director’s service contract.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year. All Directors are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda for
regular Board meetings. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary to ensure that all Board procedures, rules
and regulations are followed. Full minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for
inspection on reasonable notice. Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent professional advice,
where necessary, at the expense of the Company.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of the Group and supervising management.
Some functions are reserved by the Board, including, inter alia, the monitoring and approval of material transactions;
matters involving a conflict of interest with a substantial shareholder or a Director of the Company; the approval of
the quarterly, interim and final results; other disclosures to the public or regulators; and the internal control system.
Decisions relating to such matters shall be subject to formal decisions of the Board. Matters not specifically reserved to
the Board and necessary for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to management under the supervision
of the respective Director(s) and the leadership of the Chairman.

The Company has implemented different mechanisms to ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board:

e  Composition of the Board: During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board had at all times complied
with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. At least one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

¢ Independence assessment: Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non
— Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

e Board decision-making: A Director who has a material interest in any transaction, contract or arrangement
shall not vote (nor shall be counted in the quorum) on any Board resolution approving the same. If a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, such matter shall be dealt with in a Board meeting rather than by a written resolution.

e Communication between the Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Directors: The Chairman of the
Board values communication with the Independent Non-Executive Directors highly and holds meetings with them
at least once each year without the presence of other Directors.

e Remuneration of Independent Non-Executive Directors: Independent Non-executive Directors receive
fixed fees for their role as members of the Board and Board committees. No equity-based compensation with
performance-related elements is granted to the Independent Non-executive Directors to avoid potential bias in
their decision-making or compromise to their objectivity and independence.

e Board evaluation: The Board assesses and reviews the time contributed by each Independent Non-Executive
Director and their attendance at Board and Board committee meetings, so as to ensure that every Independent
Non-Executive Director has devoted sufficient time to the Board to discharge his responsibilities as a Director of
the Company.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above mechanisms are reviewed on an annual basis. The Board
considers that such mechanisms had been implemented properly and effectively in the year ended 31 December
2023.
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The roles of the Chairman and the President are separate. The Chairman is responsible for the overall management
and operations of the Company and for proposing and reviewing the corporate directions and strategies of the
Company. The Chairman is responsible for formulating business strategies and provides leadership to the Board,
ensuring effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner. The Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chairman of the Board highly values
communication with the Independent Non-Executive Directors and will hold meetings with them at least once each
year without the presence of other Directors.

The President is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company’s business and operations as well as
implementation of the Company's business strategies.

Appropriate insurance has been arranged by the Company to cover potential liabilities of Directors and Officers of the
Company regarding legal actions against said Directors and Officers of the Company and its subsidiaries, arising out
of corporate activities of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board held ten Board meetings. The attendance record of each Board
member at Board meetings, meetings of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee, as well as the annual/extraordinary general meeting is set out below:

Suxin Zhang 7 N/A 1 N/A 1 3
Junjun Tang 10 N/A N/A N/A 1 4
Jun Ye 10 6 N/A N/A 0 0
Jing Wang (ete) 6 N/A N/A 1 1 0
Guodong Sun 8 N/A N/A N/A 0 0
Stephen Tso Tung 10 6 N/A N/A 1 4
Chang
Kwai Huen Wong, JP 10 N/A 1 1 1 4
Long Fei Ye 10 6 1 1 1 4

Note: Ms. Jing Wang resigned as the non-executive Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1
September 2023.
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In place of physical meetings, the Board may circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of the
Board except for matters where a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest that the Board has
determined to be material, in which case the matter shall be dealt with by a physical Board meeting (rather than a
written resolution) to comply with provision C.5.7 of the Code.

The Board, having considered the attendance records of the Directors, is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient
time performing his responsibilities.

Directors shall keep abreast of their responsibilities as Directors and of the conduct, business activities, and
development of the Company.

Under Code Provision C.1.4, the Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
programs to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors were provided with timely updates
on the Company’s performance, financial position, prospects, and materials on new or salient changes to laws and
regulations applicable to the Group, to enable the Board as a whole and each Director individually to discharge their
duties. Internally-facilitated briefings for the Directors will be arranged in the next financial year and reading material
on relevant topics will be issued to the Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

The participation by each Director in continuous professional development for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
set out below:

Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Junjun Tang (President)
Jun Ye

Jing Wang

Guodong Sun

Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Kwai Huen Wong, JP
Long Fei Ye

AN N N N TN
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong,
JP, Mr. Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024) and one Non-Executive Director Mr. Jun Ye (appointed on 28
March 2024). Ms. Jing Wang resigned as a member of the Remuneration Committee on 1 September 2023. Mr. Long
Fei Ye resigned as a member of the Remuneration Committee on 28 March 2024. The Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP. Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately skilled in
the issues of determining Executive compensation in public companies. The Board expects committee members
to exercise independent judgement in conducting the business of the committee. The roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee include the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights, and compensation payments, and making
recommendations to the Board in connection with the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as the salaries paid by comparable companies, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group, and the desirability of performance-based remuneration. A copy of the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website.
The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year.

On 10 August 2023, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting to discuss the vesting of certain options granted
under the Company’s share option scheme, and resolved to submit a proposal to the Board on the vesting
arrangements for such options.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the Financial Statements.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one Executive Director, Mr. Suxin Zhang, and two Independent Non —
Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024). Mr. Long Fei Ye
resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee on 28 March 2024. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee
is Mr. Suxin Zhang. Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately skilled in the issues of nomination
of directors to the Board. The Company has provided the Nomination Committee with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The Nomination Committee may seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities. The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, with due regard to the board diversity policy, identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships, assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the President, and monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy and review such policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee has established a specific written committee
charter which deals clearly with its authority and duties. A copy of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available from the Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’'s website. The Nomination Committee
shall meet at least once a year.

On 9 November 2023, the Nomination Committee held a meeting to discuss issues such as the Company’s
remuneration policy and the competitiveness of the Company’s salary levels.

Pursuant to the Articles, any person appointed as a Director to fill a casual vacancy of the Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant
general meeting, and any Director appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting. Every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election in
accordance with the Atrticles. The Atrticles also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary resolution.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Company, Ernst
& Young, for the provision of audit services and non-audit related services to the Company were US$0.75 million
and US$0.01 million, respectively. Details of significant non-audit related services include tax and risk management
advisory services.

At least one of the members of the Audit Committee has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee
was a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors within one year immediately prior to the dates of
their respective appointments. All members have appropriate skills and experience in reviewing financial statements
as well as addressing significant control and financial issues of the Company. The Board expects the members of the
Audit Committee to exercise independent judgement and delegates the responsibilities of the corporate governance
functions to the Audit Committee in order to comply with the requirement of the Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Ms. Chengyan Xiong (appointed on 28 March
2024), and two Independent Non — Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang and Mr. Songlin Feng (appointed
on 28 March 2024). Mr. Long Fei Ye resigned as a member of the Audit Committee on 28 March 2024. Mr. Jun Ye
ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee on 28 March 2024 upon his re-designation as a member of the
Remuneration Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee include the reviewing of the Company'’s financial reporting system, the nature and scope of the
audit review as well as the effectiveness of the system of internal control procedures and risk management. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for making recommendations in relation to the appointment, reappointment, and removal
of the external auditors, and the reviewing and monitoring of the independence and objectivity of the external auditors.
In addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by the external auditors and regulatory bodies to ensure that
appropriate recommendations are implemented. A copy of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available
from the Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website. The Audit Committee shall meet at least
twice a year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held six meetings and all the committee members
were present at the meetings. The major work performed by the Audit Committee with respect to the year ended 31
December 2023 included reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the external auditor, approving the
terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor and the audit plan, reviewing the unaudited
quarterly results announcement, reviewing the unaudited interim report and interim results announcement for the
six months ended 30 June 2023, reviewing the audited financial statements and final results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2023, reviewing the work of the Group’s audit department and assessing the effectiveness
of the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control. The Audit Committee also held discussions with
management to ensure that the Company has adequate resources, qualified and experienced staff in the accounting
and financial reporting function, training programs and budget.
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The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity will be considered from several aspects,
including without limitation, differences in the talents, skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender,
age, and other qualities of the members of the Board, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience, and background on the Board. In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed on the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommended them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board may
seek to improve one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

The Board believes that gender diversity is an important aspect of Board diversity. Following the resignation of Ms.
Jing Wang on 1 September 2023, the Company did not have a director of a different gender at that moment and,
as a result, could not meet the requirement set out in Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules for the remaining months of
the year ending 31 December 2023. The Board has made its best endeavors to identify a suitable candidate for
appointment as a director. Following the appointment of Ms. Chengyan Xiong as a non-executive director on 28 March
2024, the Company is compliant with the requirement under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules. Gender diversity aside,
the Remuneration Committee took the view that the measurable objectives for Board diversity had been achieved
to a large extent for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Nomination Committee paid particular attention to the
cultural and educational background, professional and technical experience, and skills of the members of the Board
and also reviewed the composition of Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors, so as to ensure
appropriate independence within the Board.

The Company will continue to maintain a balance of diverse perspectives on the Board that is appropriate for and
conducive to the Company’s growth.

As at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio of the Group’s workforce (including the Company’s senior management)
was approximately 73% male to 27% female. The Company's hiring is merit-based and non-discriminatory. The Board
is satisfied that the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in provision A.2.1 of the Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Changes to the Articles during the Reporting Period

To satisfy the relevant regulatory requirements in relation to the Company’s corporate governance structure after
the RMB Share Issue and listing, a special resolution was proposed and passed by the Shareholders at the EGM
held on 27 June 2022 to amend the Articles. Details of the amendments are set out in Appendix V to the circular of
the Company dated 7 June 2022. The amended Articles took effect on 7 August 2023, being the date of listing of
the RMB Shares on the STAR Market. The full text of the amended Atrticles is published on the websites of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk), the Shanghai Stock Exchange (www.sse.com.cn) and the Company
(www.huahonggrace.com).

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy, which is subject to annual review to ensure its
implementation and effectiveness. Such policy aims to ensure that Shareholders will have equal and timely access to
information about the Company, so as to enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow them
to engage actively with the Company.

A summary of the Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is set out below.

The Company provides information to Shareholders through its financial reports (including quarterly, interim and
annual reports), circulars, announcements and other disclosures submitted to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange for publication.

To further promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.huahonggrace.com with
information and updates on the Company’s business developments and operations, list of Directors and their roles and
functions, constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees, procedures for nomination
of Directors for election, corporate governance practices, financial reports, circulars, announcements and other
information.

Shareholders’ meetings are a primary forum for communication between the Board and Shareholders. The Company
encourages Shareholders to attend and participate in general meetings to ensure a high level of accountability and
to keep them informed of the Company's goals and strategies. The Chairman of the Board, other Board members,
and the Chairmen of all the Board committees, or in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are
available to answer any questions from Shareholders. Shareholders are given sufficient notice of the meetings, and
detailed voting procedures are included in circulars to Shareholders accompanying the notices of meetings.

In addition to the above, the Company also publishes newsletters through its WeChat public account. Shareholders
can subscribe to the account to obtain the latest news of the Company.

To promote investors’ understanding of the Company’s business, the Company organises roadshows and on-site visits
to its clean rooms and exhibition halls for investors. The Company has also participated in a number of investment
forums and conducted multiple exchanges with securities analysts, fund management companies, and individual
investors through various means.

In order for the Company to solicit and understand the views of Shareholders and stakeholders, Shareholders and
other stakeholders may make enquiries to the Company through its investor relations contact by email at IR@hhgrace.
com.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policy for the
year ended 31 December 2023, including the steps taken at the general meetings, the handling of queries received
and the multiple communication channels in place. The Company is of the view that the policy is effective and has
been properly implemented.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Sui Har Lee, the Company Secretary, is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are
followed and that the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. She is also responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory, and corporate governance developments relating to
the Company and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the President, plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to Shareholders pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Sui Har Lee attended relevant professional seminars to update her
skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Directors on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company or by such Shareholder(s) who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) (as the case may be) pursuant to sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The objects of the meeting must be stated in the requisition,
which must be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in sections 580 to 583 of the Companies Ordinance for
convening an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings and Directing
Enquiries from Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their written requests, proposals, enquiries, and concerns to the Company for the
attention of Chairman of the Board or the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

288 Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai 201203, China
Tel: (86) 21 38829909

Fax: (86) 21 50809999

Email: IR@nhhgrace.com
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Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Objectives

Risk Management Objective

From a compliance perspective, the Company has implemented the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to ensure the compliance with relevant requirements in a timely manner.

From the perspective of operations, the management team well understands the risks that may be confronted by the
Company as it undertakes future development. Therefore, the risk management objective of the Company is to identify
and assess risks and take appropriate countermeasures to evade a risk entirely, if possible, otherwise to manage these
risks to reduce their impact and keep them under control. The Company has constructed a robust risk control system
working on a continuous basis, established a risk management platform, clarified risk management mechanisms,
improved a risk map, and carried out an annual risk evaluation. We have developed a concise, scientific, practical,
and efficient risk management and control model which complies with regulatory requirements under the Code and is
in line with the Company’s specific evolving circumstances.

Internal Control System Objective

The Company's internal control system has fully implemented the requirements for a risk management framework as
set out by COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) as well as the guidelines of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants for risk management. We refined the three tiers of risk map in the
processes and formed risk-oriented internal control evaluation by considering the Company’s ongoing operational
circumstances and business characteristics. The objective is to evaluate the effectiveness and applicability of our
internal monitoring system and provide reasonable guarantees for the effectiveness of the Company’'s operating
activities, the reliability of financial reports, and compliance with laws and regulations.
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Risk Management and Internal Monitoring System

To ensure our risk management work develops efficiently and forms a long-term mechanism, the Company has
established a risk management monitoring system comprising a “three-line model”. It covers the roles and duties of
many different aspects as follows:

e  FEstablish and maintain various departmental risk management mechanisms;
e Ongoing collection of risk data while performing day-to-day department tasks;
e  Continue to carry out risk monitoring and early warning of the department;

e  Assist in the implementation of the Company'’s risk management work, including
providing necessary documents and samples, identify major risks related to the
department, and determine major risk countermeasures;

e  Provide and supplement expertise, play a supportive and supervisory role, help
continuously implement and improve the risk management work; analyze and report
on the accuracy and effectiveness of risk management;

e Independently inspect and supervise risk management activities conducted by the
Business Departments and the Risk Management Level, and evaluate whether the
Company'’s risk management mechanism is implemented effectively and efficiently;

e Conduct annual comprehensive risk assessments, based on the risk assessment
results, define the major risk factors and relevant response responsibilities, organize
and guide relevant departments in making response plans for major risks, and follow
up on the implementation of the plans;

e Urge departments or agencies to rectify problems discovered during the auditing and
risk assessment process and monitor the ongoing status of the rectification work;

e  Report the auditing and risk assessment results to the Audit Committee of the
Company.
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Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Statement

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system, as well as ensuring a
review of the system’s effectiveness. The Board designated the Internal Auditing Department to perform the internal
auditing function and granted it full independent responsibility and authority. The internal auditors audited the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system each year through various audit
projects according to the approved auditing scope and in accordance with the provisions in D.2 of the Corporate
Governance Code, and no material deficiency was found.

Based on audits by the Internal Auditing Department, the Board believes that the Company’s risk management and
internal monitoring system is adequate, trustworthy, and effective. However, one must recognise that the Company’s
risk management and internal monitoring framework can only manage rather than completely eliminate risks that may
affect the Company’s ability to accomplish its business objectives. Therefore, it provides a reasonable but not an
absolute guarantee for the avoidance of material misstatement or loss.

With a view to identifying, handling, and disseminating inside information in compliance with the SFO, procedures,
including pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by designated members of management,
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and employees,
identification of projects by code name, and dissemination of information to stated purpose and on a need-to-know
basis, have been implemented by the Group to guard against possible mishandling of inside information within the
Group.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the Company’s financial statements for each financial
period to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair, and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 271 to 278 of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman
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The Board presents the annual report of the Company for 2023 and the audited financial statements of the Company
for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Financial Statements”).

The Company was a pure-play 8-inch and 12-inch wafer foundry as at the end of 2023, with its long-term focus on
the development and application of advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” differentiated specialty technologies,
including Embedded/Standalone Non-Volatile Memory, Power Discrete, Analog & Power Management, Logic & RF,
providing diverse specialized process wafer manufacturing services to its customers. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the Financial Statements (Pages 287 to 288).

Revenue Analysis

Revenue of Hua Hong Semiconductor for 2023 was US$2,286.1 million, representing a decrease of 7.7% compared
to the previous year. According to the information released by International Business Strategies, Inc. (IBS), the global
semiconductor market experienced a decline of approximately 10% in 2023 due to the continuing sluggish end-
consumer market, posing challenges to the wafer foundry market. Having confidence in anticipating the long-term
market growth despite these circumstances, the Company unwaveringly continued to implement its expansion strategy
and optimize its product mix that is focused on 8-inch and 12-inch products. Leveraging long-term technological
accumulation and continuous innovation, the Company has achieved favorable development in various fields such
as automotive, industry, and new energy. With diversified support of advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete”
specialized process technology, product quality and performance were widely recognized by the market. The
Company will continue to create value for shareholders and the market in 2024.

YoY YoY

2022 2022 Change Change

US$'000 %  US$'000 %

Semiconductor wafers 2,376,659 96.0%  (195,068) (8.2%)

Others 98,829 4.0% 5,693 5.8%

Total 2,475,488 100.0%  (189,375) (7.7%)
° In 2023, 95.4% of our revenue was generated from the sale of semiconductor wafers.

YoY YoY

2022 2022 Change Change

US$'000 %  US$'000 %

Systems and fabless companies 2,267,446 91.6%  (157,964) (7.0%)

Integrated device manufacturers (IDMs) 208,042 8.4% (31,411) (15.1%)

Total 2,475,488 100.0%  (189,375) (7.7%)

e Our revenue from systems and fabless companies accounted for 92.3%.
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Revenue by Geography

YoY YoY

2023 2023 2022 2022 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

China 1,774,178 77.6% 1,811,269 73.2% (37,091) (2.0%)
North America 204,882 9.0% 297,683 12.0% (92,801) (31.2%)
Other Asia 149,087 6.5% 210,610 8.5% (61,523) (29.2%)

Europe 134,760 5.9% 114,728 4.6% 20,032 17.5%
Japan 23,206 1.0% 41,198 1.7% (17,992) (43.7%)
Total 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0%  (189,375) (7.7%)

° In 2023, Europe continued to maintain double-digit growth, with a year-on-year increase of 17.5% in revenue.

Revenue by Technology Type

YoY YoY

2023 2023 2022 2022 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

Embedded Non-Volatile Memory (eNVM) 703,148 30.8% 767,568 31.0% (64,420) (8.4%)
Standalone Non-Volatile Memory (sNVM) 116,715 5.1% 208,171 8.4% (91,456) (43.9%)
Power 902,346 39.4% 774,638 31.3% 127,708 16.5%
Logic & RF 202,483 8.9% 274,384 11.1% (71,901) (26.2%)
Analog & Power Management (PM) 358,333 15.7% 448,648 18.1% (90,315) (20.1%)
Others 3,088 0.1% 2,079 0.1% 1,009 48.5%
Total 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0%  (189,375) (7.7%)

° In 2023, power discrete experienced double-digit growth, mainly due to strong demand in the new energy vehicle
and industrial sectors.
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Revenue by Technology Node

YoY YoY

2023 2023 2022 2022 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

55nm & 65nm 291,683 12.8% 355,161 14.3% (63,478) (17.9%)
90nm & 95nm 386,191 16.9% 505,233 20.4%  (119,042) (23.6%)
0.11pum & 0.13pum 405,911 17.8% 426,387 17.2% (20,476) (4.8%)
0.15um & 0.18um 147,338 6.4% 206,733 8.4% (59,395) (28.7%)
0.25um 24,217 1.1% 15,027 0.6% 9,190 61.2%
>0.35um 1,303,773 45.0% 966,947 39.1% 63,826 6.6%
Total 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0%  (189,375) (7.7%)

e In 2023, revenue for >0.35um continued to grow due to power discrete business.
Revenue by End Market

YoY YoY

2023 2023 2022 2022 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %
Consumer Electronics 1,294,251 56.6% 1,599,116 64.6%  (304,865) (19.1%)
Industrial & Automotive Electronics 673,395 29.5% 550,342 22.2% 123,053 22.4%
Communications 256,856 11.2% 248,033 10.0% 8,823 3.6%
Computing 61,611 2.7% 77,997 3.2% (16,386) (21.0%)
Total 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0%  (189,375) (7.7%)

e |n 2023, the industrial and automotive electronic markets continued to maintain double-digit growth.
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2022 YoY Change

Fab 1 65 -
Fab 2 60 -
Fab 3 53 -
Total monthly 8-inch wafer capacity 178 =
Fab 7 (12-inch wafer capacity) 65 30
Capacity utilization (8-inch wafer equivalent) 107.4% (13.1%)

° In 2023, capacity utilization (8-inch wafer equivalent) was 94.3%.

2022 YoY Change
Wafer shipments (8-inch wafer equivalent) 4,087 0.4%

° In 2023, there was a year-on-year increase of 0.4% in the Company’s wafer shipments.

Research and Development

Hua Hong Semiconductor is committed to research and development (R&D), innovation, and optimization of
differentiated technologies, with a focus on eNVM, sNVM, Discrete, Analog & PM (Power Management), and Logic &
RF. It continues to provide customers with well-featured process technologies and services that meet market demand.
In 2023, Hua Hong Semiconductor continued to expand 12-inch capacity and technology of the Hua Hong Wuxi
production line; and the product mix of advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” became more diverse due to the
extension of 12-inch process platform.

In 2023, NVM technology platforms continued to be main sources of revenue for Hua Hong Semiconductor, including
eNVM used mainly for smart card IC and MCU. Shipments remained stable for smart card products produced using
embedded flash memory technology with independent intellectual property rights. The Company has leveraged the
advantages of the 8-inch +12-inch embedded flash memory platform to enable customers to develop MCUs with
capabilities of global industry leaders in areas such as automotive electronics, home appliances, industrial control.
Our full range of automotive-grade chip products, which are produced using the multi-technology-node eFlash
technology, have commenced mass production. As a result, revenue from automotive electronics has maintain year-to-
year double-digit growth. The Company has collaborated with customers on our standalone flash memory platform to
advance the SPI NOR flash memory and EEPROM products based on our proprietary NORD technology and traditional
ETOX technology. These products have utilized smaller memory cell and gained recognition in various end-market
applications. Multiple automotive-grade SPI NOR flash memory and EEPROM products have been put into mass
production.
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In 2023, the market demand for power discrete also witnessed a decrease in growth rate amid increasingly intensified
price competition. Despite these challenges, Hua Hong Semiconductor has maintained growth in the revenue from its
power discrete business. Our continuing innovation and generation on generation improvements in our power discrete
capabilities have enabled our customers to maintain industry-leading positions by their iterative product improvements.
With an increasing proportion of ultra-fine trench gate IGBT products and the orderly introduction of new-generation
superjunction MOSFET technology, the Company has achieved a record high number of new products for customers
in the automotive, electric vehicle, new energy and industrial sectors in recent years. Meanwhile, the Company has
been continuously expanding its production capacity of the power product line while maintaining a leading domestic
position in technology and product quality.

Based on the analog and power management product platform of BCD technology, the Company has collaborated
with leading analog and power management customers to advance the development of various power management IC
for the mobile phone market, such as fast charging and wireless charging IC, which have been widely recognized by
the leading end-market brands in the industry. Furthermore, certain customers were actively identified and cultivated
in preparation for expansion in the automotive electronics sector. The Company is committed to developing diverse
specialized BCD+ process platforms integrating the traditional BCD process with existing digital process platforms. As
a result, the Company established a leading position in the domestic market. Furthermore, following mass production
of 12-inch 90 nm and 65 nm BCDs, the Company continued its development activities for the automotive electronics
and emerging markets. In the second half of the year, parts of the market rebounded resulting in higher chip
production volume for the fourth quarter.

To expand our 12-inch production capacity, Hua Hong Semiconductor officially commenced construction of the phase-
Il project 12-inch production line in Wuxi in June 2023, expanding upon Hua Hong Semiconductor’s “8-inch + 12-inch”
strategy and its advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” dual-pronged strategy. This development not only extends
our specialty process technology to more advanced nodes but also represents a new milestone and chapter in the
industrial collaboration between Hua Hong Group and the Wuxi City Government. With a total investment of US$6.7
billion, a 12-inch specialty process production line will be established to cover 65/55 — 40 nm nodes, with a monthly
capacity of 83,000 wafers.

Despite persistent downward pressure on demand in the traditional consumer market in 2023 and decelerating growth
rates in new energy and electric vehicle markets, Hua Hong Semiconductor remained firmly confident in the long-term
growth trajectory of the semiconductor market, unswervingly pursued its strategic deployment of advanced “Specialty
IC + Power Discrete” process technology and continued to enhance technological accumulation, with 672 patent
applications filed by the Company in China and overseas throughout 2023 and an accumulative number of 4,427
invention patents granted in China and overseas. Following industrial upgrades and transformations in markets such as
automotive, home appliances, and new energy with increasingly informatized and digitalized daily life, the Company’s
growing production capacity will be able to support industry’s incremental demand for semiconductor chips. The
Company is focused on innovation, quality, and continuity in every aspect of its production and operations, as part of
our commitment to maximize benefits for shareholders and our customers.
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Looking forward to 2024, the global economy remains overshadowed by various uncertainties. Nevertheless, global
GDP growth is expected to reach 2.4% in 2024, an improvement compared to 2023, according to prediction by the
World Bank. With consumer and industrial markets showing signs of bottoming out, it is expected that the momentum
of industry growth will continue to build up. In the face of a downturn in the semiconductor market over the past two
years, Hua Hong Semiconductor has persistently striven to maintain stable performance, safeguarded shareholder
interests, and ensured product quality for customers. Looking into 2024, Hua Hong Semiconductor will remain
committed to constantly optimizing its 8-inch product mix, and increasing the proportion of high-value products. With
the accelerated construction of 12-inch production capacity according to the plan, we will ensure that the Wuxi phase
Il project will deliver the stated production capacity. Hua Hong Semiconductor will continue to strategically implement
its advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” process technology, providing customers and the market with a wide
selection of process technology. Hua Hong Semiconductor will enhance its engagement in the ecosystem to ensure a
balanced supply-demand relationship by actively responding to increasing demand resulting from market upgrades
driven by high-quality development of automotive, home appliance, and new energy markets.
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2022 Change

US$'000
Revenue 2,475,488 (7.7%)
Cost of sales (1,631,832) 10.2%
843,656 (42.3%)
Other income and gains 70,986 103.4%
Fair value gain on an investment property 78 32.1%
Selling and distribution expenses (12,464) (18.3%)
Administrative expenses (266,666) 21.1%
Other expenses (111,360) (69.8%)
Finance costs (40,331) 149.2%
Share of profit of associates 12,171 (24.2%)
496,070 (65.0%)
Income tax expense (89,499) (47.3%)
406,571 (68.9%)
Owners of the parent 449,912 (37.8%)
Non-controlling interests (43,341) 254.4%

Revenue
Revenue was US$2,286.1 million, 7.7% lower than 2022, due to decreased average selling price.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales was US$1,799.0 million, an increase of 10.2% over 2022, primarily due to increased provision for
inventories, depreciation and utility costs, partially offset by decreased labor costs.

Gross profit
Gross profit was US$487.1 million, a decrease of 42.3% compared to 2022, mainly due to decreased average selling
price and increased depreciation costs, partially offset by decreased labor costs.

Other income and gains
Other income and gains were US$144.4 million, an increase of 103.4% compared to 2022, primarily due to increased
government subsidies and interest income.

Selling and distribution expenses
Selling and distribution expenses were US$10.2 million, a decrease of 18.3% compared to 2022, primarily due to
decreased labor expenses.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses were US$322.9 million, an increase of 21.1% from 2022, primarily due to decreased
government grants for research and development activities and increased engineering wafer costs.

Other expenses
Other expenses were US$33.7 million, a decrease of 69.8% compared to 2022, largely due to decreased foreign
exchange loss.
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Finance costs

Finance costs were US$100.5 million, an increase of 149.2% from 2022, primarily due to increased bank borrowings

and increased interest rates.

Share of profit of associates

Share of profit of associates was US$9.2 million, a decrease of 24.2% from 2022, due to decreased profit realized by

the associates.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense was US$47.2 million, a decrease of 47.3% compared to 2022, primarily due to decreased taxable

profit.

Profit for the year

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, profit for the year decreased to US$126.4 million from

US$406.6 million in 2022. Net profit margin was 5.5%, compared to 16.4% in 2022.

FINANCIAL STATUS

31 December

31 December

2023 2022 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3,519,292 3,367,716 4.5%
Investment property 166,643 169,363 (1.6%)
Right-of-use assets 78,545 78,425 0.2%
Investments in associates 139,099 130,721 6.4%
Equity instruments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income 270,506 178,632 51.4%
Other non-current assets 199,780 54,794 264.6%
Total non-current assets 4,373,865 3,979,651 9.9%
Current assets
Inventories 449,749 578,060 (22.2%)
Trade and notes receivables 278,669 291,856 (4.5%)
Due from related parties 11,219 13,006 (13.7%)
Other current assets 212,649 182,996 16.2%
Restricted and time deposits 32,088 1,042 2,979.5%
Cash and cash equivalents 5,585,181 2,008,765 178.0%
Total current assets 6,569,555 3,075,725 113.6%
Current liabilities
Trade payables 235,410 236,999 (0.7%)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 193,035 426,756 (54.8%)
Due to related parties 13,876 6,096 127.6%
Government grants 35,017 37,714 (7.2%)
Other current liabilities 495,049 674,851 (26.6%)
Total current liabilities 972,387 1,382,416 (29.7%)
Net current assets 5,597,168 1,693,309 230.5%
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,906,526 1,481,580 28.7%
Other non-current liabilities 49,963 55,912 (10.6%)
Total non-current liabilities 1,956,489 1,537,492 27.3%
Net assets 8,014,544 4,135,468 93.8%
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Explanation of items with fluctuation over 10% from 31 December 2022 to 31 December 2023

Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income increased from US$178.6 million to
US$270.5 million, primarily due to increase of fair value of equity instruments.

Other non-current assets
Other non-current assets increased from US$54.8 million to US$199.8 million, primarily due to increased long-term
prepayments.

Inventories
Inventories decreased from US$578.1 million to US$449.7 million, primarily due to decreased finished goods and work
in progress.

Due from related parties
Due from related parties decreased from US$13.0 million to US$11.2 million, primarily due to decreased receivables
from certain of our related parties.

Other current assets
Other current assets increased from US$183.0 million to US$212.6 million, primarily due to increased properties under
development.

Restricted and time deposits
Restricted and time deposits increased from US$1.0 million to US$32.1 million, primarily due to increased pledged
deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents increased from US$2,008.8 million to US$5,585.2 million, mainly due to reasons stated in
the cash flow analysis below.

Due to related parties
Due to related parties increased from US$6.1 million to US$13.9 million, primarily due to a payable of technology
purchased from certain related parties.

Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities decreased from US$674.9 million to US$495.0 million, primarily due to decreased advanced
payments from customers.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Total interest-bearing bank borrowings increased from US$1,908.3 million to US$2,099.6 million, due to increased
drawdowns of bank borrowings.
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2022 Change

US$'000
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 750,865 (14.5%)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (930,156) (10.4%)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 672,177 462.6%
492,886 628.4%
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,610,140 24.8%
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (94,261) (85.5%)
2,008,765 178.0%

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Net cash flows generated from operating activities were US$641.7 million, a decrease of 14.5% compared to 2022,
mainly due to decreased receipts from customers, partially offset by decreased payments for materials, maintenance
and payrolls.

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities were US833.3 million, primarily attributed to US$906.6 million for capital
investments, offset by receipts of (i) US$61.6 million of interest income, and (i) US$11.7 million of government grants
for equipment.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were US$3,781.7 million, including (i) US$2,937.0 million proceeds
from issuance of shares on the STAR Market, (i) US$787.9 million of capital contribution from non-controlling interests,
(iii) US$615.4 million of proceeds from bank borrowings, (iv) US$4.9 million from share option exercises, and (v)
US$3.0 million of government grants for finance costs, offset by (i) US$422.1 million of repayments of bank borrowings,
(i) US$106.6 million of interest payments, (iii) increase of US$31.2 million in pledged margin deposits (iv) US$4.6
million payment of principal portion of lease payments, and (v) US$2.0 million payments of listing fee.

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, cash and cash equivalents increased from US$2,008.8 million
as of 31 December 2022 to US$5,585.2 million as of 31 December 2023.
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Interest rate risk

Our exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. Our policy is to manage interest rate risk using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts.

As at 31 December 2023, if the interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been US$17.5 million lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

We have transactional currency exposures arising primarily from sales or purchases by our significant subsidiaries
operating in the Chinese Mainland in US$, rather than the subsidiaries’ functional currency, which is RMB. During
the year, approximately 22% of our sales were denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
subsidiaries making the sale, whilst 53% of costs of sales were denominated in the subsidiaries’ functional currency.

In addition, we have currency exposures from interest-bearing bank borrowings held by our subsidiaries operating
in the Chinese Mainland. As at 31 December 2023, interest-bearing bank borrowings with a carrying amount of
US$1,653.0 million were dominated in US$, rather than the subsidiaries’ functional currency, which is RMB.

As at 31 December 2023, if the US$ had strengthened or weakened against the RMB by 5 percent, with all other
variables held constant, our profit before tax for the year would have been approximately US$47.6 million lower or
higher.

Credit risk

We trade only with recognised and creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is our policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and our exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Our maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial assets is: the carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
amounts due from related parties, and restricted and time deposits included in the consolidated statement of financial
position. We have no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

To meet liquidity requirements in the short and long term, our policy is to monitor regularly the current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that we maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions.

Capital management
Our primary objectives of capital management are to safeguard our ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios to support our business and maximize shareholders’ value.

We manage our capital structure and make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To do this, we may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new shares. We are not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies, or processes for
managing capital during the year.
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Details of the gearing ratio are set out in note 38 to the Financial Statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the state of affairs as at that date are set out in the
Financial Statements on pages 279 to 282 of this report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.165 per Share (equivalent to US$36,234,000) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Final Dividend”). The Final Dividend is denominated and declared
in Hong Kong dollars, among which, dividends for RMB Shares will be paid in RMB calculated using the average
central parity rate between Hong Kong dollars and RMB announced by the People’s Bank of China for the week
immediately preceding the date of the declaration of dividend by the Board (HK$1 is equivalent to RMB0.90736).
Dividends for Hong Kong Shares will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. Please refer to the announcement on final dividend
distribution plan published by the Company on the Shanghai Stock Exchange for details of the dividend distribution on
RMB Shares.

Subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the AGM, the Final Dividend will be payable on or about 26 June 2024
to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 6 June 2024.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the requirements of law, it has been decided that the Company
will pay dividends to the Shareholders for the year of 2015 and onwards if the Group is profitable, the operations
environment is stable, and there is no significant investment made by the Group. It is intended that the average of
dividends paid in three consecutive years will be no less than 30% of the average distributable net profit of these three
years. The remaining net profit will be used for the development and operations of the Group.

This dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any amount for any given period. In the event that the Board recommends a dividend, the form and amount
will depend on the assessment by the Directors of the factors affecting the Group from time to time.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has US$314,127,000 in distributable reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders.
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Bank Loans
The particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out in note 26 to the Financial Statements.

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured by pledges of the Group’s assets. Please
refer to note 26 to the Financial Statements for further details.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
on page 392. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of additions and other changes during the year ended 31 December 2023 in the property, plant and
equipment, and investment property of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the Financial Statements.

In addition, details of the investment property are set out below:

Location Type of Use Term of Lease Group’s Interest Gross Floor Area
(sq.m.)

Portions of 9 buildings Industrial use Held under a land 100% 91,568.11

No. 818 Guo Shou Jing Road use right for a term

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park expiring on 8 March 2051

Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

Significant Events After the Reporting Period

On 28 March 2024, the Company proposed a final dividend of HK$0.165 per ordinary share totaling approximately
US$36,234,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Share Capital

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note
30 to the Financial Statements. These movements include the automatic inclusion of the amount standing to the share
premium account into the share capital as from 3 March 2014, in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11 to the
New Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the transition to the no-par value regime.
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A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 1 September 2015. A summary of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

Participants:

Maximum entitlement of each Participant:

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised:

The amount payable on application or
acceptance of the Share Option and
the period within which payments or calls
must be made or loans for such
purposes must be paid:

Number of options available for grant at the
beginning and the end of year 2023, and
the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and
provide incentives to the Participants (defined below), to provide them
with the opportunity to obtain Shares of the Company, and to link their
interests closely to the operating results and share performance of the
Company, with the view to increasing the value of the Company.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Participants”)
include (1) existing Executive and Non-Executive Directors of any
member of the Group; or (2) senior management and key managerial
and technical personnel having a direct impact on the results of
operations and sustainable development of any member of the Group,
subject always to any limits and restrictions specified in the Share
Option Scheme, but shall not include any Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

If the total number of Shares allotted and which may fall to be allotted
upon exercise of all the share options (“Share Options”) granted
and to be granted (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
Share Options) to a Participant in any 12-month period in aggregate
exceeds 1% of the issued share capital of the Company at the time,
no further grant of Share Options shall be given to such Participant.
Share Options may be granted to a Participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period only with the approval
of the Shareholders at a general meeting. No Share Option shall be
granted to any person who holds over 5% of Shares which carry
voting rights on the Grant Date (as defined in the Share Option
Scheme), unless such grant is approved by shareholders at the
general meeting.

Two years unless otherwise stated in the grant notice of the Share
Option.

HK$1.00 is to be paid by each grantee as consideration for the grant
of Share Option within 28 days from the date of proposed offer.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
seven (7) years commencing on the date of adoption. It has therefore
expired on 1 September 2022. No further options could be granted,
and none has been granted, under the Share Option Scheme from
that date.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
21,144,481 shares, representing approximately 1.23% of the total number of shares in issue (representing all shares in
issue of the listed company (including A Shares)).
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On 4 September 2015, the Company granted 30,250,000 share options (the “2015 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
30,250,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the 2015

Options are as follows:
Date of grant:
Exercise price of options granted:

Number of options granted:

Validity period of the options:

Vesting period of the options:

4 September 2015
HK$6.912
30,250,000 (representing 1.76% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31

December 2023).

From 4 September 2015 to 3 September 2022 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive.

One third of the options shall vest on each of 4 September 2017, 4 September
2018, and 4 September 2019.

The exercise price of HK$6.912 per Share represents a premium of 0% over the higher of (i) the closing price of
HK$6.87 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of
the grant; (ii) the average closing price of HK$6.912 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the closing
price of HK$6.800 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the
day immediately before the grant date.

On 24 December 2018, the Company granted 34,500,000 share options (the “2018 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
34,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the 2018

Options are as follows:
Date of Grant:
Exercise price of options granted:

Number of options granted:

Validity period of the options:

Vesting period of the options:

24 December 2018
HK$15.056

34,500,000 (representing 2.01% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2023)

From 24 December 2018 to 23 December 2025 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive

For employees at or above the level of the vice president of the Company (together
with Directors), one fourth of the 2018 Options shall vest on each of 24 December
2020, 24 December 2021, 24 December 2022, and 24 December 2023; for the
other employees of the Company, one third of the 2018 Options shall vest on each
of 24 December 2020, 24 December 2021, and 24 December 2022
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The exercise price of HK$15.056 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$14.440 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average
closing price of HK$15.056 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$14.380 per Share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the
grant date; and (iv) the nominal value of the share.

On 29 March 2019, the Company granted 500,000 share options (the “March 2019 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to one individual under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the March 2019
Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 29 March 2019

Exercise price of options granted: HK$18.400

Number of options granted: 500,000 (representing 0.03% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2023)

Validity period of the options: From 29 March 2019 to 28 March 2026 (seven (7) years), both dates inclusive
Vesting
period of the options: One fourth of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 12 August 2022,

11 August 2023, and 29 March 2024

The exercise price of HK$18.400 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$18.400 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average
closing price of HK$18.176 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$18.220 per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the
grant date; and (iv) the nominal value of the share.

On 23 December 2019, the Company granted 2,482,000 share options (the “December 2019 Options”) to subscribe
for a total of 2,482,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details
of the December 2019 Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 23 December 2019

Exercise price of options granted: HK$17.952

Number of options granted: 2,482,000 (representing 0.14% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2023)

Validity period of the options: From 23 December 2019 to 22 December 2026 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive
Vesting period of the options: For employees at or above the level of the vice president of Hua Hong Wuxi, one

fourth of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 23 December 2022,
23 December 2023, and 23 December 2024; for the other employees of Hua
Hong Wuxi, one third of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 23
December 2022, and 23 December 2023
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The exercise price of HK$17.952 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$17.260 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average
closing price of HK$17.952 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$17.200 per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the
grant date; and (iv) the nominal value of the share.

Among the March 2019 Options, 500,000 share options were granted to the Directors of the Company, subject to their
acceptance.

Details of the movements in the share options during the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Granted at 4 September 2015 - 988,000 - 29,262,000 - - 30,250,000
Granted at 24 December 2018 - - 680,000 - 33,820,000 - 34,500,000
Granted at 29 March 2019 500,000 - - - - - 500,000
Granted at 23 December 2019 - - - - - 2,482,000 2,482,000
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2015 - - - -130,000 - - -130,000
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2016 - - - -1,458,000 - - -1,458,000
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2017 - - - -1,353,399 - - -1,353,399
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2018 - - - -754,595 - - -754,595
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2019 = = -600,000 -58,000 -1,035,000 -36,000 -1,729,000
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2020 - -119,000 -80,000 - -093,904 -84,000 -1,276,904
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2021 -62,500 - - - -5,751,868 -592,993 -6,407,361
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2022 - - - - -543,728 -73983 617,711
Exercised during the period - - - - 1,913,454 88,500 2,001,954
Cancelled during the period - - - - - -6,900 -6,900
Lapsed during the period - - - - -8,168 - -8,168
QOutstanding at 1 January 2023 437,500 - 21,389,723 1,611,648 23,438,871
QOutstanding at 31 December 2023 437,500 - 19,468,101 1,516,248 21,421,849
Vesting period of share options From 29 March From From From From From
20191028 March 4 September 24 December 4 September 24 December 23 December
2026 2015103 20181023 2015103 20181023 201910 22
September December September December December
2022 2025 2022 2025 2026
Exercise period of share options From 29 March From From From From From
202110 4 September 24 December 4 September 24 December 23 December
28 March 2026 2017 to 202010 23 2017103 202010 23 202110 22
3 September December  September 2022 December December
2022 2025 2025 2026
Exercise price of share options HK$18.400 HK$6.912 HK$15.056 HK$6.912 HK$15.056 HK$17.952
Weighted average closing price of
the shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options were
exercised HK$27.58 HK$31.15

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not adopted any other share option scheme during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 283 to 284 of this report.

Ordinary share RMB52.00 407,750,000 7 August 2023 103,974,252 (Circulating shares
not subject to selling restrictions);
303,775,748 (Circulating shares
subject to selling restrictions)

In order to enhance the overall competitiveness and strengthen the sustainable development capabilities of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 27 June 2022 to consider and approve the
resolution on the application for the initial public offering and listing of not more than 433,730,000 RMB Shares on the
STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The Board is of the view that the offering and listing of the Company
is in line with the relevant national industrial policies and the Company’s development strategies, which will facilitate
the further expansion of the Company’s production capacity, enhance the Company’s research and development
capabilities and enrich the technological platform. It helps the Company to better meet market demands and enhance
its market position and core competitiveness in the wafer foundry industry.

On 7 August 2023, the Company was listed on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange under the stock
abbreviation of Hua Hong Company ((£#I /2 7)) and stock code of 688347.

Through issuing the RMB Shares on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, a total of 407,750,000 ordinary
shares of the Company have been subscribed by eligible off-line investors, as well as eligible natural persons, legal
entities and other institutional investors (other than those prohibited by the laws and regulations and regulatory
documents of the PRC) or such other target subscribers meeting the relevant qualification requirements of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, who have maintained stock accounts with the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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The total proceeds raised amounted to RMB21,203,000,000. After deducting the issuance expenses,
including underwriting, sponsorship fees, as well as other issuance expenses, the net proceeds amounted to
RMB20,920,677,000, at an issue price of RMB52.00 per ordinary share (the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange was HK$26.35 as at the date of the announcement of the Company in relation to
the terms of the RMB Share Issue (i.e. 4 August 2023)). Upon receipt of the proceeds, the entire amount has been
deposited into a dedicated account for the proceeds, which was approved by the Board. The proceeds raised will be
utilised in accordance with the previously disclosed intended use of the proceeds as set out below:

Unit: RMB

Hua Hong Manufacturing (Wuxi) Project 12,500,000,000.00 11,721,659,938.34 By the end of 2025
8-Inch Factory Optimisation and Upgrading Project 2,000,000,000.00  1,965,732,745.52 By the end of 2025
Specialty Technological Innovation, Research and

Development Project 2,500,000,000.00  2,368,704,324.02 By the end of 2026
Replenishment of Working Capital 1,000,000,000.00 - N/A

On 18 January 2023, the Company, HHGrace, China IC Fund Il and Wuxi Xi Hong Guo Xin (together, the “JV
Shareholders”) entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties conditionally
agreed to establish a joint venture (i.e. the Wuxi Phase Il project (HH Fab9)) through Hua Hong Manufacturing and
invest US$880.38 million, US$1,169.82 million, US$1,165.8 million and US$804 million in cash, respectively, in Hua
Hong Manufacturing. Pursuant to the JV Agreement, Hua Hong Manufacturing shall engage in the manufacturing
and sale of integrated circuits and 12-inch (300mm) wafers adopting 65/55 nm to 40 nm processes. On the same
day, the JV Shareholders and Hua Hong Manufacturing entered into an investment agreement (the “JV Investment
Agreement”) to convert Hua Hong Manufacturing into a joint venture and increase the registered capital of Hua
Hong Manufacturing from RMB6.68 million to US$4.02 billion. The JV Agreement, the JV Investment Agreement, the
Land Transfer Agreement (as defined in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below) and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constituted major transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and were approved by
the Shareholders at the EGM held on 17 March 2023.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18 January 2023 and 17 March 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 24 February 2023 for further details.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group disclosed in the prospectus dated 3 October 2014 the continuing connected transactions with, amongst
others, Huali Micro, Huahong Real Estate and Huajin Property Management. Certain details of such transactions are
summarized in the table below. With respect to such transactions, the Company had applied for and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange had granted a waiver from, among others, strict compliance with the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement (as the case may be). Details of such continuing connected transactions of the

Group together with certain other continuing connected transactions conducted during 2023 are set out as follows:

Transaction

Transaction Date

Parties to the Transaction

Connected Relationship

Transaction

Actual
Transaction
Amount 2023

Proposed
Annual
Caps 2023

) 1 January 2023

2 1 January 2023

(3) 1 January 2023

Huahong Group (as purchaser)

The Company (as seller)

Huahong Group (as seller)

The Company (as purchaser)

SAIL (as purchaser)

The Company (as seller)

Huahong Group is a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Hongri and Huahong Zealcore
are owned 51% and 93.02%
owned by Huahong Group,
respectively.

Huahong Group is a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Hongri and Huahong Zealcore
are owned 51% and 93.02%
owned by Huahong Group,
respectively.

SAIL is a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

The Company's sale of
semiconductor products to
Huahong Group, its subsidiaries
and associates, including
Hongri and Huahong Zealcore,
pursuant to the Huahong Group
Framework Agreement.

The Company's purchase of
wafers and chemicals from
Huahong Group, its subsidiaries
and associates, including
Hongri and Huahong Zealcore,
pursuant to the Huahong Group
Framework Agreement.

The Company's sale of
semiconductor products to
SAIL, its subsidiaries and
associates, including SITRI and
0-Cubes, pursuant to the SAIL
Sales Framework Agreement.

US$20,578,000

US$19,234,000

US$357,000

US$21,100,000

US$31,500,000

US$2,000,000
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Transaction
Transaction Date

Parties to the Transaction

Connected Relationship

Transaction

Actual
Transaction
Amount 2023

Proposed
Annual
Caps 2023

(4) 1 January 2021

(5) 1 January 2023

(6) 25 February 2010 Huali Micro (as lessee)

(together with

the supplemental  The Company (as lessor)

agreements dated
10 June 2011 and
25 July 2014)

(7 1 January 2023

HHGrace (as service provider)

Hua Hong Wuxi (as recipient of

HHGrace (as recipient of

Hua Hong Wuxi (as service

Huali Micro (as lesseg)

HHGrace (as lessor)

Hua Hong Wuxi is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary which is held
as to approximately 20.58% by
China IC Fund, a substantial
shareholder of the Company,.

Accordingly, Hua Hong Wuxi is
a connected subsidiary of the
Company.

Hua Hong Wuxi is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary which is held
as to approximately 20.58% by
China IC Fund, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Accordingly, Hua Hong Wuxi is
a connected subsidiary of the
Company.

Huali Micro is 53.85% owned by
Huahong Group, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Huali Micro is 53.85% owned by
Huahong Group, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Service agreement between
HHGrace (as service provider)
and Hua Hong Wuxi (as
recipient of services) in relation
to the provision of corporate
services by HHGrace to Hua
Hong Wuxi.

Service agreement between
HHGrace (as recipient of
service) and Hua Hong Wuxi
(as service provider) in relation
to the provision of chemical
placing services.

Lease agreement between
Huali Micro (as lessee) and the
Company (as lessor) in relation
to the factory premise situated
at Hill 2, 13th street, Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech park, Pudong New
Area, Shanghai, PRC leased by
the Company to Huali Micro for
their 300mm wafer production
line. The total gross floor area
leased was 96,048.2 square
meters.

Lease agreement between Huali
Micro (as lessee) and HHGrace
(as lessor) in relation to certain
clean rooms in HHGrace's
factory premises leased to Huali
Micro. The total gross floor area
leased was 192 square meters.

RMB145,000,000

(approx.
US$20,644,000)

US$47,000

RMB97,189,000
(approx.
US§13,786,000)

RWMB1,402,000

(approx.
US$199,000)

RMB145,000,000

(approx.
US$20,644,000)

US$2,400,000

RMB99,000,000

(approx.
1S§14,095,000)

RMB4,200,000

(approx.
UUS$598,000)
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Connected Relationship

Transaction

Actual
Transaction
Amount 2023

Proposed
Annual
Caps 2023

Transaction
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction
(8) 10 January 2013 Huahong Real Estate (as lessor)
(together with
asupplemental  The Company (as lessee)
agreement dated
10 June 2014)
9) 1 January 2023 Huajin Property Management
(as property manager)
The Company (as lessee)
(10) 1 January 2023 Huahong Real Estate (as lessor)

HHGrace (as lessee)

Huahong Real Estate is a
wholly-owned subsidiary
of Huahong Technology
Development, a company 50%
held by and consolidated with
Huahong Group, a substantial
shareholder of the Company,
and 50% held by HHGrace, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Huajin Property Management
is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Huahong Technology
Development, a company 50%
held by and consolidated with
Huahong Group, a substantial
shareholder of the Company,
and 50% held by HHGrace, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Huahong Real Estate is a
wholly-owned subsidiary
of Huahong Technology
Development, a company 50%
held by and consolidated with
Huahong Group, a Substantial
shareholder of the Company,
and 50% held by HHGrace, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Lease agreement between
Huahong Real Estate (as
lessor) and the Company
(as lessee) in relation to the
dormitory premises situated
at Hua Hong Innovation Park,
Nong 2777, Jinxiu Road East,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
PRC (“Dormitory Premises”)
rented by the Company from
Huahong Real Estate for use as
staff quarters for the Company’s
employees. The total gross
floor area rented was 17,412.87
square meters.

Property management
agreement between Huajin
Property Management (as
property manager) and the
Company (as lessee) in relation
to the engagement of Huajin
Property Management by the
Group to provide property
management services for the
Dormitory Premises.

Lease agreement between
Huahong Real Estate (as
lessor) and HHGrace (as
lessee) in relation to the
dormitory premises situated
at Hua Hong Innovation Park,
Nong 2777, Jinxiu Road East,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
PRC (*Additional Dormitory
Premises’) rented by the
Company from Huahong Real
Estate for use as staff quarters
for the Company's employees.
The total gross floor area rented
was 9,977.17 square meters.

RMB11,504,000

(approx.
US$1,631,000)"

RWB3,993,000

(approx.
US$567,000)

RMB6,285,000
(approx.
US§891,000)@

RMB12,700,000

(approx.
US§1,808,000)

RMBS,700,000

(approx.
US$812,000)

RMB7,300,000

(approx.
US$1,039,000)
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Notes:

(1)

The Group entered into a twenty-year lease with respect to certain dormitory premises from Huahong Real Estate before the
adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16. Thus, the Group are not required to re-comply with the notifiable
or connected transaction Rules. The amount of rent payable by the Group under the lease is US$1,631,000 per year. As at
31 December 2023, the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were US$10,932,000 and US$13,498,000,
respectively.

The Group entered into an additional lease of dormitory premises from Huahong Real Estate. The amount of rent payable by the
Group under the lease is US$891,000 per year. As at 31 December 2023, the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities were US$7,151,000 and US$7,292,000, respectively.

The price and terms of the continuing connected transactions as described above were determined in accordance
with the pricing policies and guidelines as set out in the relevant announcements of the Company. The Board (including
the Independent Non-Executive Directors) has reviewed the continuing connected transactions as described above
and confirmed that such transactions did in fact continue in 2023:

(i)
(i)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect to the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions of 2023:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention
that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company;

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the relevant annual caps disclosed in the relevant announcement(s) with respect to each of the disclosed
continuing connected transactions.
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Technology Development Agreement

On 1 December 2023, HHGrace entered into a technology development agreement (the “Technology Development
Agreement”) with Huali Micro, pursuant to which Huali Micro agreed to provide HHGrace with a non-exclusive licence
to use certain technological know-how together with ancillary technical consulting services in support of Hua Hong
Manufacturing’s production line of 12-inch (300 mm) wafers with 40 nm processes, for a consideration of between
RMB110 million and RMB180 million (inclusive of tax).

As at the date of the Technology Development Agreement, Huali Micro was 53.85% owned by Huahong Group, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, Huali Micro was a connected person of the Company and the
entering into of the Technology Development Agreement constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 1 December 2023 for further details.

China IC Fund Il Subscription Agreement

On 28 June 2023, the Company, China IC Fund Il, Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. and Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.
entered into a share subscription agreement (the “China IC Fund Il Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which China
IC Fund Il would participate in the RMB Share Issue as a strategic investor by subscribing for RMB Shares under the
RMB Share Issue up to an aggregate subscription amount of RMB3,000,000,000, subject to allotment.

As at the date of the China IC Fund Il Subscription Agreement, China IC Fund Il held 29% of the equity interests in
Hua Hong Manufacturing, which was a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Therefore, China IC Fund Il was
a substantial shareholder of Hua Hong Manufacturing and was a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under the China IC
Fund Il Subscription Agreement constituted a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The China IC Fund Il Subscription Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder were approved by the
Shareholders at the EGM held on 14 July 2023. The final number of RMB Shares allotted to China IC Fund Il under the
China IC Fund Il Subscription Agreement was determined to be 48,334,249 RMB Shares, with an aggregate allotted
amount of RMB2,513,380,948.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28 June 2023, 14 July 2023 and 24 July 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 29 June 2023 for further details.

Land Transfer Agreement

In connection with the JV Agreement and JV Investment Agreement, on 18 January 2023, Hua Hong Manufacturing
and Hua Hong Wuxi entered into a land transfer agreement (the “Land Transfer Agreement”), pursuant to which Hua
Hong Wuxi conditionally agreed to transfer and Hua Hong Manufacturing conditionally agreed to purchase several
plots of land located in Wuxi, Jiangsu for a total consideration of RMB170,100,450, for the purpose of developing fabs
housing Hua Hong Manufacturing’s production lines for manufacturing integrated circuits and 12-inch (300mm) wafers.

As at the date of the Land Transfer Agreement, Hua Hong Wuxi was a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
which was held as to approximately 20.58% by China IC Fund, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly,
Hua Hong Wuxi was a connected subsidiary of the Company and the entering into of the Land Transfer Agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Land Transfer Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder were approved by the Shareholders at the
EGM held on 17 March 2023.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18 January 2023 and 17 March 2023 and the circular of the
Company dated 24 February 2023 for further details.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“related parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions” in this annual report, the other
related party transactions disclosed in note 35 were not regarded as connected transactions or were exempt from
reporting, announcement, and shareholder approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

The table below sets out the breakdown of the performance with respect to the Equity Investments during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Initial investment cost 229,133 1,704 2,120
Book value at the beginning

of the year 174,170 2,020 2,442
Changes in fair value 94,313 969 28
Exchange realignment (3,355) (40) (41)
Book value at the end of the year 265,128 2,949 2,429
Dividends received - - -
Gain on disposals - - 1,943
Subscribed capital contribution/

number of shares held RMB1,400,000,000 10,377,050 178,000
Percentage of equity interest held 5.3900% 0.6220% 0.1072%
Size compared to the total

assets of the Company 3.8% 0.0% 0.0%

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not dispose of any equity interest in Huali Micro, QST or
Shanghai Awinic. Changes in the fair value of the Company’s equity investment in Huali Micro, QST, and Shanghai
Awinic were US$94,313,000, 969,000, and US$28,000 respectively.

Huali Micro was established in 2010. As an industry-leading IC wafer foundry company, Huali Micro has advanced
process technologies and offers comprehensive solutions. It is devoted to providing one-stop wafer foundry technical
services for process technology nodes from 65/55nm to 28/22nm for design companies, IDM companies, and other
system companies. Huali Micro has two 12-inch fully-automated wafer fabs in China.
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During the financial year of 2023, the book value of the Company’s equity investment in Huali Micro increased by
US$90,958,000, including an increase of US$94,313,000 in the fair value and a foreign currency statement loss of
around US$3,355,000. Accordingly, the Board is of the view that the performance of Huali Micro during the financial
year of 2023 has been in line with its expectations.

QST was founded in September 2012 and has a robust IP portfolio, with over 83 patents issued. QST is a leading
sensor platform company engaged in the development and marketing of Innovative MEMS sensors and solutions to
simplify advanced perception, measurement, and control in consumer, automotive, and industrial applications.

During the financial year of 2023, the book value of the Company’s equity investment in QST increased by US$930,000,
including an increase of US$969,000 in the fair value and a foreign currency statement loss of around US$40,000. As
the business of QST is still in its early development stage, the Board is of the view that the performance and strategic
planning of QST during 2023 have been consistent with its expectations.

Shanghai Awinic, founded in June 2008, is a high-tech company focusing on high-quality and high-performance IC
design of mixed signal, analog, and RF for mobile phone, Al, Internet of Things, automotive electronics, wearables,
and consumer electronics. Shanghai Awinic is a listed company on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

During the financial year of 2023, the book value of the Company’s equity investment in Shanghai Awinic decreased
by US$13,000, including an increase of US$28,000 in the fair value and a foreign currency statement loss of around
US$41,000. The Board is of the view that the performance of Shanghai Awinic during the financial year of 2023 has
been in line with its expectation.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the accounting policy of investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9, applicable since 1 January 2018) as contained in the annual report of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company expects the future prospects of the aforementioned investments to be largely in line with that over the
past year. No significant changes in investment strategy or source of funding are expected for the coming year.

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 9 May 2024.

For determining the eligibility of Shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration 4:30 p.m. on 3 May 2024
Closure of register of members 6 May 2024 to 9 May 2024 (both dates inclusive)
Record date 9 May 2024

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, unregistered holders of shares should
ensure all share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration no later than the aforementioned latest time.

For determining entitlement of Shareholders to the proposed final dividend

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2024
Closure of Register of members 5 June to 6 June 2024 (both dates inclusive)
Record date 6 June 2024

Payable date 26 June 2024
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For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitiement to the proposed Final Dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 5 June to 6 June 2024, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders of Shares should
ensure all share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
share registrar in Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2024.

The Directors of the Company during the year and as of the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Mr. Junjun Tang (President)

Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Jun Ye

Mr. Guodong Sun

Mr. Limin Zhou (appointed on 19 January 2024)

Ms. Chengyan Xiong (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Ms. Jing Wang (resigned on 1 September 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Songling Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Mr. Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

Each of the Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to re-nomination
and re-election by the Company in general meetings, unless his/her appointment has been early terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service contract.

Mr. Suxin Zhang, Mr. Junjun Tang and Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP will retire by rotation from office as Directors at the
Annual General Meeting in accordance with articles 117 to 118 of the Articles. Mr. Limin Zhou, Mr. Songlin Feng
and Ms. Chengyan Xiong appointed by the Board as a Non-Executive Director, Independent Non-Executive Director
and Non-Executive Director of the Company on 19 January 2024, 28 March 2024 and 28 March 2024, respectively,
will retire at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with article 122 of the Articles. Mr. Suxin Zhang, Mr. Junjun
Tang, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP , Mr. Limin Zhou, Mr. Songlin Feng and Ms. Chengyan Xiong, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election pursuant to the Articles.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the general meeting has a service contract which is terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of the existing Independent Non —
Executive Directors and Mr. Long Fei Ye in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the aforesaid current and former Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management of the Company are set out on pages 13 to 21 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Remuneration of the Highest Paid Individuals and Directors and Senior Management

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, respectively.

Interests of the Directors and the Chief Executive in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2023, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors or the Chief Executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register kept under section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in
the Listing Rules.

Name of Director Capacity Number of underlying Approximate

shares held in long percentage

position™ of interests

Mr. Junjun Tang Beneficial owner 448,500 0.03%
Note:

(1) Long position in (a) 437,500 underlying shares of the Company under share options granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme and (b) 11,000 RMB Shares he held.

Interests of Directors in a Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors of the Group had any interests in a business which competes, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Company or the Group.

Interests of Directors in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

On 18 January 2023, Hua Hong Manufacturing and Hua Hong Wuxi entered into a land transfer agreement (the
“Land Transfer Agreement”), pursuant to which Hua Hong Wuxi conditionally agreed to transfer and the Hua Hong
Manufacturing conditionally agreed to purchase several plots of land located in Wuxi, Jiangsu for a total consideration
of RMB170,100,450. Since (i) Hua Hong Wuxi was owned by China IC Fund as to 20.58% as at the date of the Land
Transfer Agreement, and was the transferor under the Land Transfer Agreement, (ii) Sino IC Capital was the fund
manager of China IC Fund, and (iii) Mr. Guodong Sun, a non-executive Director of the Company, was the managing
director of Sino IC Capital, to avoid potential conflict of interest, Mr. Guodong Sun abstained from voting at the Board
meeting authorising the entering into of the Land Transfer Agreement. Please refer to the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions — Connected Transactions — Land Transfer Agreement” for
further details of the Land Transfer Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or associates was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director has or had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2023 or at any
time during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has devised its own code of conduct regarding Directors dealing in the Company’s securities (the
“Company Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has been made to all the
Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Company Code and the Model Code
throughout 2023.
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The Company provides directors and officers liabilities (D&QO) insurance for the Directors and Officers. The D&O

insurance covers day-to-day management liability and is renewed every year.

The names of Directors who have served on the boards of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2023, or during the period from the end of the year 2023 to the date of this report, were as follows:

Grace Cayman Cayman Islands
HHGrace Shanghai, PRC
Hua Hong Wuxi Wuxi, PRC
Huahong Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. Wuxi, PRC

Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi, PRC
Global Synergy Technology Limited Hong Kong, PRC
HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. CA, USA
HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan

Mr.
Mr.

Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Ms.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mr.

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Ms.

Mr.
Mr.

Mr.
Mr.

Ms.
Mr.
Mr.

Suxin Zhang
Jun Ye

Suxin Zhang

Junjun Tang

Jing Wang'

Yuchuan Ma

Takayuki Morita

Jun Ye

Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Kwai Huen Wong, JP
Long Fei Ye

Limin Zhou?

Suxin Zhang
Jun Wei
Junjun Tang
Guodong Sun
Jing Wang?®
Qi Chen®

Xin Jin
Xiaoming Zhu®
Weihua Wu®
Limin Zhou”

Weiping Zhou

Suxin Zhang
Jun Wei®
Junjun Tang?®
Guodong Sun®
Xin Jin®
Weihua Wu?
Limin Zhou®
Jing Wang®
Qi Chen'™

Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Cheng Fu

Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Cheng Fu

Maki Nakamura
Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Cheng Fu
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Notes:

As

Ms. Jing Wang's resignation as a director of HHGrace was registered with the relevant market supervision and management
authority on 29 December 2023.

Mr. Limin Zhou’s appointment as a director of HHGrace was registered with the relevant market supervision and management
authority on 31 January 2024.

Ms. Jing Wang's resignation as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 2 November 2023.

Ms. Qi Chen’s appointment as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 13 January 2023. Ms. Qi Chen’s resignation as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the
relevant market supervision and management authority on 2 November 2023.

Mr. Xiaoming Zhu's resignation as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 13 January 2023.

Mr. Weihua Wu's appointment as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 2 November 2023.

Mr. Limin Zhou’s appointment as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 2 November 2023.

The appointment of each of Mr. Jun Wei, Mr. Junjun Tang, Mr. Guodong Sun, Mr. Xin Jin, Mr. Weihua Wu, and Mr. Limin Zhou
as a director of Hua Hong Manufacturing was registered with the relevant market supervision and management authority on 8
November 2023.

Ms. Jing Wang'’s resignation as a director of Hua Hong Manufacturing was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 8 November 2023.

Ms. Qi Chen’s resignation as a director of Hua Hong Manufacturing was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 8 November 2023.

at 31 December 2023, persons other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, having interests of 5% or

more or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Group, were as follows:

Shanghai Hua Hong International, Inc. Legal and beneficial owner 347,605,650 20.25%
(“Hua Hong International”)®

Huahong Group® Interest in a controlled corporation 347,605,650 20.25%

Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Legal and beneficial owner 160,545,5411 9.35%
(“Sino-Alliance International”)

Sino-Alliance International Interest in a controlled corporation 28,415,606" 1.66%

SAIL Interest in a controlled corporation 188,961,147 11.01%

Xinxin (Hong Kong) Capital Co., Limited Legal and beneficial owner 178,705,925 10.41%

Xun Xin (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 178,705,925 10.41%

China IC Fund Interest in a controlled corporation 178,705,925 10.41%

Notes:

Long positions in the shares of the Company.

Hua Hong International is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong Group.

Including 3,084 shares held in escrow by Sino-Alliance International pursuant to an escrow arrangement.

SAIL indirectly held interests in the Company through two wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Sino-Alliance International.

The percentages are calculated based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2023, i.e.,
1,716,588,694 shares.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any of the Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company, as at
31 December 2023, no other person or corporation other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 were rights to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries, or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases attributable to the Group’s top five suppliers combined were
less than 30% of total purchases, and the turnover attributable to the Group’s top five customers combined was less
than 30% of total turnover.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 6,863 employees. The Group recruits and promotes individuals
based on their merit and development potential. The emolument policy for employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications, and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results and individual performance. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis are set out in note 8
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities.

There are no provisions for right of first refusal under the Articles, or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report.

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.
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The Company firmly believes that robust and effective environmental, social, and governance (ESG) management is
the foundation for sustainable and high-quality development. The concept of ESG has been deeply integrated into the
Company'’s strategy, management, and long-term development goal and has been involved in the entire process of
our business operations, so as to drive continuous business growth and create and share value for all stakeholders.

In 2023, the Company systematically advanced various ESG management goals and monitored their progress. It
actively carried out ESG-related initiatives and achieved outstanding results, including special technical transformation
related to safety and environmental protection, safeguarding employee rights and interests and production safety,
deepening product research and development and innovation, establishing responsible supply chains, and
strengthening risk compliance and control. During the reporting period, the Company passed the social responsibility
audit certification by EcoVadis, a global corporate social responsibility (CSR) assessment agency, and received a
bronze medal.

Huahong Group, SAIL, and INESA, being the then controlling shareholders of the Company, entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) dated 23 September 2014, details of which have been set out in the
paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”
of the Company’s prospectus dated 3 October 2014 (the “Prospectus”). In addition, Huahong Group and SAIL also
entered into a deed of right of first refusal (the “Deed of Right of First Refusal”) dated 10 June 2014, details of which
have been set out in the paragraph headed “Right of First Refusal” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus. The Company has reviewed the written declaration from each of the controlling
shareholders mentioned above on their compliance with their undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition and
the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Independent Non —
Executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) have been complied with by the relevant
parties.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the

date of this report, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float
under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted at the AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.
On behalf of the Board

Mr. Suxin Zhang

Chairman
28 March 2024
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The Company adheres to the entrepreneurial spirit of “set a course mastering the challenges ahead” and promotes the
“Hua Hong 520 Spirit” of “showing loyalty to and love for the motherland, always keeping the promise, being diligent
and dedicated, and always fulfilling the mission”. By embracing the concept of “openness, innovation, and cooperation”
and driven by “bravery, perseverance, and unity”, we have strengthened business operations and development,
advanced production expansion, perfected the innovation system, and enhanced technological capabilities, thereby
achieving stable and coordinated operation and sustainable development.

The Company firmly believes that Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) management has laid the foundation
for sustainable and high-quality development. We have crafted ESG management objectives for 2030, focusing on
water resource management, energy use management, greenhouse gas emissions management, waste emission
management, and sustainable supply chain management. In identifying, assessing, and managing ESG issues, the
Company takes into consideration its development strategy and external policy trends. In 2023, we added “corporate
governance”, “environmental management”, and “intellectual property protection” as new issues and upgraded the
“anti-corruption” issue to “business ethics issue” as well as the “emissions management” issue to the “emissions and
waste management” issue. These adjustments better address concerns of stakeholders and ensure effectiveness
of the Company’s ESG management strategies and measures. In 2023, the Company passed corporate social
responsibility (CSR) audit certification by the global corporate social responsibility (CSR) assessment agency Eco
Vadis, covering labor, environmental management, business ethics, and sustainable procurement and received a
bronze medal.

The management and practical progress of ESG issues in this report were considered and approved at the third
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held in 28 March 2024.
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2023 ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

1 ESG Management System

1.1 ESG Management Structure

Based on the corporate vision of “Continuous Innovation and Empowering the Future for Global Customers”, the
Company established a top-down environmental, social, and governance (ESG) management structure, continues to
improve the ESG management system, encourages innovation-driven development, fosters innovative talents, and
strives to reduce the impact of business operation on the environment. We also make efforts to diversify the supply
chain capabilities and promote the joint creation of corporate business and social values.

The Board, as the highest decision-making/management body for the Company’s ESG management, is responsible for
the following aspects:

a) to direct the formulation of ESG management policies and strategies of the Company and ensure that they are up
to date, relevant, and in compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

b) to direct the identification and determination of the importance of significant ESG issues of the Company;
c) to supervise the setting and implementation of the Company’s ESG goals, including: setting ESG management
performance goals of the Company; monitoring progress in achieving the goals; and advising on actions required

to achieve the goals;

d) to review and approve the Company’s annual Environmental, Social, and Governance Report and other ESG
related disclosures.

The management level will be responsible for supervising the overall implementation according to the formulated ESG
targets, and the ESG working group assists in development and implementation of ESG management and regularly
reports to the Board on the progress of ESG key performance indicators, so as to promote the realization of the
Company’s ESG management targets.

ESG Management Structure

Board of Directors
Management Level

N
-

ESG Working Group

\*ﬁ

Planning Huma inance m ‘ Lat
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S —
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1.2 ESG management strategies and targets
The Company has integrated ESG management into its products, business operations, and corporate development
and formed a complete ESG management strategy covering the four aspects of “Responsibility for Employees”,

n oo«

“Responsibility for the Industry”, “Responsibility for People’s Livelihood”, and “Responsibility for Investors”.
ESG Management Strategies

Responsibility for Employees Responsibility for the Industry

“Heart Felt” Value for Employees Empowering the Future for Global Customers
* Respect for the Value of Employees * Providing Quality Products

e Caring about the Growth of Employees * Guaranteeing Rights & Interests of Customers
® Protecting Occupational Health * Growing the Industrial Economy

Continuous
Innovation
Empowering the
Future for Global
Customers

Responsibility for People’s Livelihood Responsibility for Investors

“Prosperous” Environment for Society “New” Profits for Shareholders

¢ Promoting Green Development * Development through Innovation

¢ Utilizing Resources Efficiently * Consolidate Operations with Integrity
 Jointly Promoting Social Harmony * Sharing the Benefits of China’s Growth
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The Company has set ESG management targets for water use efficiency, energy use efficiency, GHG emissions, waste
reduction, and conflict mineral due diligence, based on the development of its business and its ESG performance in
operations. On an annual basis, the Board of Directors reviews ESG performance and achievement of the Company's
ESG goals for the previous year and discloses the results in the ESG report, so as to promote the achievement of ESG
management targets.

Water resources
management

Energy consumption
management

GHG emissions
management

Waste discharge
management

Wastewater
Discharge
Management

Air Emission
Discharge
Management

Sustainable supply
chain management

The water consumed per unit product (m?
per 8-inch wafer) in 2030 will decrease by
12% as compared with 2015

Comprehensive energy consumption per
unit product (MWh per 8-inch wafer) in
2030 will decrease by 7% as compared
with 2015

GHG emissions per unit product (tCO,e
per 8-inch wafer) in 2030 will decrease by
12% as compared with 2015

Under the philosophy of lean
manufacturing management, the
Company will take reduction measures
to continuously reduce hazardous waste
produced per unit product and non-
hazardous waste produced per unit
product

100% compliance on discharge

100% compliance on discharge

The due diligence rate on suppliers of
conflict minerals will reach 100%, and the
utilization rate of compliant minerals will
reach 100%

The water consumed per unit product in 2023
was 2.83 m?® per 8-inch wafer, decreasing by
11% as compared with 2015

Comprehensive energy consumption per unit
product in 2023 was 0.30 MWh per 8-inch
wafer, decreasing by 21% as compared with
2015

GHG emissions per unit product in 2023
was 0.14 tCO,e per 8-inch wafer, remaining
basically flat as compared with 2022

e Under the philosophy of lean
manufacturing management, the
Company continuously reduced
generation of hazardous waste

e The non-hazardous waste produced per
unit product in 2023 was 2.36 kg per
8-inch wafer, remaining flat as compared
with 2022

o 100% compliance on wastewater
discharge in 2023

o 100% compliance on air emission
discharge in 2023

e Have conducted due diligence on
suppliers of “conflict minerals”, with a
coverage rate of 100%, and completed
the latest version of the investigation
report on conflict minerals and extended
minerals

e  According to due diligence, all suppliers
are found to use compliant raw materials
with the utilization rate of compliant
minerals up to 100%
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Social Recognitions in 2023

No. Honors
Global

1 EcoVadis Bronze Medal
National

2 2022 Outstanding Intelligent Manufacturing Scene

&) 2023 National Worker Pioneer

4 The 15th China Semiconductor Innovation Products and Technology
Shanghai

5 First Prize in Shanghai Science and Technology Award

6 Water Efficiency Leader of Key Water-Using Enterprises in Shanghai

7 2022 Top 20 Enterprises with Corporate Social Responsibility Reports in Shanghai

8 100 Smart Factories in Shanghai

9 2023 Top 100 Innovative High-Tech Enterprises in Shanghai

10 Shanghai Outstanding Invention Gold Award

11 Shanghai Model Unit for Open and Democratic Factory Affairs Management

12 Shanghai Women'’s Civilization Post

13 Shanghai Worker Pioneer

14 Shanghai Model Worker’s Small Home

15 Second Prize in Shanghai Industrial Water Reuse Outstanding Cases
Jiangsu

16 Wuxi Model Unit for Happy Enterprise Construction

17 Wuxi City Model Worker's Home




1.3 Involvement of Stakeholders
Based on the business and operational characteristics of our Company and leveraging the experience and practices
in industry at home and abroad, Hua Hong Semiconductor has determined the following to be our stakeholders:
our shareholders and senior management, customers, employees, government agencies and regulators, partners,
communities, and the public and actively communicates with all of these stakeholders via various channels and
methods, including websites, media, meetings, reports, and social activities.

Shareholders and
senior management

Domestic and foreign investors

holding equity and debt
investments in our Company,
and senior management
members of the Company

Compliant operation
Corporate governance
Risk management
Business ethics

Customer relationship
management

Water resource
management

Product quality and safety
R&D innovation
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Regular reviews of laws
and regulations are
conducted, the outcomes
of which are used for
revising management
systems to ensure
operational compliance
Publication of financial
and performance reports,
communication with
investors through the
Shanghai Stock Exchange
e-interaction platform,
emails, and roadshows
Robust risk management
system

Improvement in anti-
corruption management
mechanisms

Conducting customer
satisfaction surveys

The WRI Water Risk Atlas
is used to assess water
risk levels and develop

a comprehensive water
resource management
system

Implementation of
product quality and safety
management measures
Organization of technical
seminars and industry
exchange meetings
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Communications and

Key stakeholders Description Issues concerned responses
Customers IDMs and fabless o Data security and privacy e  Establishment of
semiconductor companies protection information security and
o Product quality and safety privacy protection policies
e Customer relationship o Implementation of
management product quality and safety
e R&D innovation management measures
e Conducting customer
surveys

e QOrganization of technical
seminars and industry
exchange meetings

Employees Our employees and contract o Employee interests and e Formulation of an
personnel who serve our welfare employee handbook
Company on a continuous basis ® Employee health and e Establishment of a platform
safety for talent development and
o Employee development learning sharing
and training e Organization of safety

production training and
health checkups

e Diversification of the
employee training system

Government and Manufacturing, tax, e Compliant operation ¢ Robust internal control and
regulators environmental protection e Green products compliance system
security and other departments, ® Emissions management e Green production
local governments, SFC and and waste management e  Research and
other governmental or regulatory Energy management development of low-carbon
authorities e (Climate change mitigation and energy-efficient
and adaptation products

e  Emissions and waste are
properly managed through
recycling and other
methods

e Collaboration with
institutional inspections

e QOrganization of energy-
saving and carbon
reduction initiatives
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Key stakeholders

Description

Issues concerned

Communications and
responses

Partners

Communities and
the public

Suppliers, research institutions,
industry associations, etc.

Communities in which we
operate, the public and media,
etc.

o Industry development
o Product quality and safety
o R&D innovation
e Sustainable supply
chain management

e Community and public
benefit

Active participation in
industry exchanges
Optimization of product
quality management

More investments in
research and development
Promotion of responsible
sourcing

Engagement in Community
activities, employee
volunteer activities, public
welfare activities, social
cause campaigns, etc.

1.4 Identification and Analysis of Substantive Issues

The identification and analysis of substantive ESG issues represent a crucial element in ESG management. The
Company has developed a comprehensive process for identifying and analyzing material issues, whereby regularly
carrying out identification and screening work. In light of our ESG management strategy and business development,
the Company, together with the Board of Directors and the ESG Working Group, evaluates and ranks identified
substantive issues in collaboration with external experts from two dimensions: materiality to the Company; and
materiality to stakeholders. In 2023, the Company identified 22 substantive issues, of which 9 were of high substantive

significance to both the Company and its stakeholders.

Substantive Issue Analysis Process

In accordance with industry-relat-
ed policies, 22 issues were
identified after we benchmark
against leading peers with
reference to the industry issues
focused on by rating agencies in
the capital market.

The comprehensive analysis and
ranking of substantive issues are
formed into a matrix, considering
the Company’s ESG management
strategy and the materiality of
each issue to both the Company
and its stakeholders.

Medium and highly substantive
issues will be mainly disclosed in
the report in response to concerns
expressed by stakeholders
according to the ranking results of
issues.
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Matrix of Substantive Issues

Responsible marketing
Community and social welfare
Risk management

Industry development

Product quality and safety

Water resources utilization

Green products

R&D innovation

Sustainable supply chain management
Energy management

Information security and privacy protection
Customer relationship management

Employee development and training

Business ethics

Corporate governance

Compliant operations

Environmental management

Emissions and waste management
Intellectual property right protection
Climate change mitigation and adaptation
Employee health and safety

Employee interests and benefits

4

Low

Materiality to the Company

High



Anti-corruption

Emissions
management

Environmental
management

Intellectual property
right protection

Business ethics

Corporate
governance

Emissions and waste
management
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In accordance with laws,
regulations, and its own

business nature, the Company
has established a systematic
management system and
adopted scientific management
methodologies to minimize the
environmental impacts caused
by its activities, aiming to achieve
environmental protection.

The Company’s administrative
system, measures, and results
pertaining to protection of its own
intellectual property rights and non-
infringement on others’ intellectual
property rights.

The Company’s business ethics
management system includes

the establishment of systems and
training related to anti-corruption
and anti-bribery, as well as
practices to regulate conduct of
unfair competition, anti-trust, or anti-
monopoly.

The Company has established an
effective governance structure to
promote diversity and independence
within the Board, ensuring the
Company’s compliant operations, as
well as scientific, standardized, and
transparent corporate governance.

The Company’s management
system and measures for the
classification and treatment of
wastewater, air emissions, and
hazardous and non-hazardous
waste, as well as reduction in
discharge of wastewater, air
emissions, and hazardous and
non-hazardous waste, including
management methods and emission
data.

A new issue, which better responds
to stakeholders’ concerns and is
more in line with the Company’s
actual conditions.

A new issue, which better responds
to stakeholders’ concerns and is
more in line with the Company’s
actual conditions.

The description is adjusted to
broaden the scope of issue
management, including business
ethics and anti-unfair competition
management, which better responds
to stakeholders’ concerns and is
more in line with the Company’s
actual conditions.

A new issue, which better responds
to stakeholders’ concerns.

The description is adjusted to
broaden the scope of issue
management, including emissions
and waste management, which
better responds to stakeholders’
concerns and is more in line with the
Company’s actual conditions.
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Technical transformation related A total of 46 special technical transformation projects related to safety and

to safety and environmental
protection

Development of energy-efficient
projects

environmental protection
An investment of RMB111.96 million in safety and environmental protection and
technological transformation

The preparation of energy audit reports and clean production audit reports
completed
Development of 21 energy-efficient projects

2.1 Environmental Management System
Environmental Management

The Company adheres to the philosophy of environmental friendliness and sustainable development, strictly abides
by the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations, and has
formulated administrative systems, including the Resource and Energy Management Procedure, the Management
Regulations for Water, Electricity, Steam, and Gas Metering, the Exhaust Gas Emission Management Policy, and
the Waste Management Procedure. Furthermore, the Company is actively developing a number of environmental
management measures, and continues to optimize environmental management procedures covering the whole life

cycle, thereby improving its environmental management system.

Hua Hong Semiconductor’s production and manufacturing fabs include the Shanghai Production Base' and the Wuxi

production base?.

1
2

Management Structure

Scope of Management

Management System

Management Measures

e The management team is responsible for overseeing and managing

environmental tasks

e The EHS department is responsible for executing environmental
management projects, and delivering regular reports on the project progress

to the management

e  Environmental management including energy management, resource

management, and emissions and waste management

e Regulations such as Resource and Energy Management Procedure,
Management Regulations for Water, Electricity, Steam, and Gas Metering;
Operating Norms for Industrial Waste Management; and Standard Operating

Procedures for Industrial Water Supply System

e  Relevant environmental management systems are revised according to laws

and regulations to regulate environmental management procedures

e Regular identification and assessment are performed over environmental
risks at production bases and environmental protection and technical
transformation projects are carried out, thereby reducing the environmental

impacts of operation and production activities

e  Certification of environmental management systems is performed to actively

improve our environmental management capabilities

The Shanghai production base includes Fab 1, Fab 2, and Fab 3.
The Wuxi production base includes Fab 7 and Fab 9 (under construction).
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The Company’s EHS Department is responsible for coordinating its environmental management system, including
formulation of management regulations, performance analysis and evaluation with respect to energy and resource use,
emissions management, etc. It also assists external agencies in the audit and testing of the Company’s environmental
management system. Furthermore, the Company uses safety management auditing and tracking system to analyze,
sort out, and list the nonconforming items against environmental protection regulations found in daily management,
then follow up and record subsequent rectifications through the regular reminder function of the system.

In 2023, the Company invested RMB111.96 million in 46 safety, environmental protection, and technical transformation
projects, as part of our continuing commitments to improving environmental management facilities. All plant facilities
under the Company have passed ISO 14001 system certification. During the Reporting Period, no Company violation
against environmental laws and regulations occurred. During the Reporting Period, the Company fully paid relevant
taxes with respect to environmental protection. In the meantime, the Company experienced no incident in violation of
the relevant law and regulations with respect to environmental protection.

Hua Hong Shanghai Production Base ISO 14001: 2015 Environmental 18 April 2024
Management System

Hua Hong Wuxi Production Base ISO 14001: 2015 Environmental 18 April 2024
Management System

Green Culture

The Company continuously promotes the environmental protection concept, regularly holds environmental
management sharing sessions, and organizes each production plant to share excellent environmental management
cases and measures at sharing sessions, so as to strengthen employees’ awareness of environmental protection and
the economical use of office resources and energy.

Saving paper around the office e Implementing office informatization to reduce paper consumption.
e Making efforts to promote the use of recycled paper, including for
printing business cards of employees, to support recycling.

Saving electricity e Turning off the power supply when leaving work or for a long time
absence.
e Reasonably setting air conditioning temperature above 26°C in summer
and below 20°C in winter.

Saving water e Developing employees’ awareness of saving water and posting water
saving tips.
Waste disposal e (Classifying domestic waste in each factory into 4 categories, namely

dry, wet, recyclable, and harmful waste and putting up posters for
waste classification to raise employees’ awareness.

Commuting e Encouraging employees to commute by public transport.
e Using new energy vehicles as shuttle buses for the Company.
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2.2 Energy Management

Types of energy consumed by the Company are mainly electric power, heat, natural gas, gasoline, and diesel. The
production operations of the Company have no significant impact on the environment and natural energy resources.
The Company strictly complies with the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws,
regulations, and relevant provisions; sets energy conservation management goals; and formulates energy management
systems. The Company continues to optimize and improve its energy management system, constantly enhancing
energy efficiency by carrying out various energy-saving technical transformation projects and by using energy-saving

equipment.

Energy Management System

sophy

Carrying out source control and continuous improvement while satisfying and improving
productivity and reducing the impact on the environment while reducing production costs.

By 2030, the Company’s comprehensive energy consumption per unit product will decrease
by 7% compared with 2015.

Resource and Energy Management Procedure
Management Regulations for Water, Electricity, Steam, and Gas Metering

sures

Haa

Carrying out technical transformation for energy-saving.
Regularly engaging third-party agencies to conduct energy audits of the Company.
Organizing energy-saving publicity, implementation activities, and post energy-saving signs

N N NNV
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To ensure the stable supply of electricity and smooth production, the Company developed the Administrative Rules for
Electricity Safety, the Emergency Response Plan for Anomalies in External Power Supply, the On-site Treatment Plan
of the Power Department for Power Cut, and the Emergency Plan for Power Circuit Breaker Tripping and carried out
emergency plan training and emergency drills in fabs on a regular basis. The power supply is secured through daily
inspection, special system investigation, and emergency drills.

In 2023, by continuing to respond to the “One Percent” Energy Conservation and Carbon Reduction Initiative in
Shanghai Industrial and Communication Industry, all factories at the Shanghai Production Base executed 15 energy-
saving projects and completed preparation of energy audit reports and clean production audit reports, reinforcing the
outcomes of the “energy conservation project plan of 3,000 tons of standard coal”.

Fab 1

Fab 2

Fab 3

Fab 7

Undertaking high-efficiency refrigeration
unit renovation projects, replacing old
refrigeration units to improve energy
efficiency

Utilizing energy-efficient LED lighting

Renovating the high-pressure pumps in
the pure water system

Replacing the refrigeration unit for the
refrigeration system to improve energy
efficiency

Completing heat recovery renovations
for chilled water in the refrigeration unit

Undertaking energy-efficient renovations
for high-efficiency refrigeration units

Optimizing the number of operating
facilities for organic waste gas treatment

Installing new RO concentrate water
recycling equipment

Reducing water makeup volume by
regulating the RO makeup water bypass
of the MAU under the summer mode of
a MAU

Saved a total of approximately 800,000
kWh of electricity in 2023

Saved a total of approximately 30,000
kWh of electricity in 2023

Saved a total of approximately 100,000
kWh of electricity in 2023

Saved a total of approximately 3.144
million kWh of electricity in 2023

Saved a total of approximately 188,000
cubic meters of natural gas in 2023

Saved a total of approximately 2 million
kWh of electricity in 2023

Saved a total of 175,200 kWh of
electricity and 474,500 cubic meters of
natural gas in 2023

Saved a total of 26,000 tons of water in
2023

Saved a total of 32,898 tons of water in
2023
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During the Reporting Period, the Company’s primary energy consumption was as follows:

Power consumption intensity

Total power consumption

Unit: MWh

Unit: kWh per 8-inch wafer

1,030,352.33

262.19

248.00

954,667.00

2023

2022

2021

2023

2022

2021

Natural gas consumption intensity

Total natural gas consumption

Unit: m® per 8-inch wafer

Unit: m®

11,456,569.00

11,048,312.00

P

==

10,530,287.00

2023

2022

2021

2023

2022

2021
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2.3 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation

Hua Hong Semiconductor recognizes the importance of mitigating climate change for both the Company and the
world. In 2023, the Company improved its management system for addressing climate change with reference to the
International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB)'s Sustainability Disclosure Standards of IFRS 2 — Climate-Related
Disclosures (ISSB Climate Standards), regularly identified climate risks and opportunities, and piloted carbon emission
verification. While continuing to improve energy use efficiency in production and business operations, the Company
disclosed information about energy use and carbon emissions in its ESG Report. In the meantime, the Company
actively developed low-energy consumption products, as part of our endeavor to facilitate achievement of China’s “30
® 60" carbon peaking and carbon neutrality goals.

Governance

Strategies

Risk management

Indicators and
targets

A top-down governance framework is established, where the Board takes responsibility for
formulating and coordinating climate change response strategies. This includes regular
reviews over the progress of climate change management work to ensure the effectiveness
of strategies and management measures, as well as reviewing target progress.

The ESG Working Group takes responsibility for implementing climate change strategies,
whereby assessing, managing, and monitoring climate change management work, as well as
regularly reporting work progress and related performance to the Board.

Each business department actively participates in climate change management work,
contributing to the Company’s efforts to reduce carbon emissions.

Based on the identification results of climate risks and opportunities, the Company develops
corresponding management measures to enhance its capability to respond to climate
change and capture green product opportunities.

Scientific and reasonable climate change management targets are set with related
performance and target progress disclosed in the annual ESG report, details of which are
available in the section headed “ESG Management Strategy and Targets”.
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The Company regularly undertakes identifications of climate change risks, so that the climate change response
mechanism can be constantly improved, as part of our active response to the risks and opportunities brought by
climate change.

Risks

Transition Risks Reputation Risks

Physical Risks

Transitioning to a low-carbon economy,
the PRC government and various
stakeholders expect companies to take
active actions in response to climate
change and to enhance the transparency
of information disclosure. As a result,
any company that fails to respond
effectively to these propositions from

the stakeholders would be exposed to
negative impacts on its own reputation.

Policy and Legal Risks

The PRC has set carbon neutrality
targets, and regulatory scrutiny on
corporate carbon emissions will continue
to intensify in the future. If the Company
fails to meet regulatory requirements in
environmental management, it may face
risks of litigation and fines, which could
lead to defaults.

Market Risks

In recent years, customers and
consumers have become increasingly
conscious about product sustainability,
which is constantly changing the external
market environment in which businesses
operate. If the Company’s products and
services cannot effectively and timely
adapt to these market changes, our
operations will be impacted.

Acute Physical Risk

The increase in natural disasters
including typhoons and floods caused
by climate change may affect the
Company'’s wafer fab operations,
resulting in economic losses.

Chronic Physical Risks

Persistent high-temperature weather and
sea-level rise caused by climate change
may lead to disruptions in business
operations, resulting in financial losses.

Decreased
Business Revenue

Increased
Operating Costs

Decreased
Business Revenue

Increased
Operating Costs;
Reduced Value of
Fixed Assets

Increased
Operating Costs;
Reduced Value of
Fixed Assets

Categorizing climate change
mitigation and adaptation into
work priorities for all business
departments.

Actively participating in the
Shanghai Development and
Reform Commission’s carbon
emissions trading work and
conducting regular carbon
accounting work.

Developing a climate change
management system in
reference to the ISSB Climate
Standards.

Communicating with
stakeholders about climate
change as a substantive
issue through channels such
as ESG reports.

Developing low-power
consumption products and
actively communicating with
customers and consumers
about the green attributes of
said products.

Formulating emergency
response plans for extreme
weather events.

Regularly conducting
emergency drills and training
for natural disaster incidents.



2023 ANNUAL REPORT ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 85

Opportunities Resource Use Efficiency Reduced Operating
Resource use efficiency shall be Costs
improved, including the efficiency of
energy and water resources, which can
help the Company reduce costs during

operations.
Energy Sources Reduced Operating
A higher utilization rate of more low- Costs

emission/clean energy in operational
activities can help reduce the risk of
rising energy prices in the future.

Products and Services Increased Business
Amid the transition to a low-carbon Revenue

economy, the Company is presented with

new market opportunities as demand

is increasing for green, low-power

consumption products among customers

and consumers.

Actively adopting green
office and operations
measures.

Integrating ecological and
environmental concepts into
the design stage of new plant
premises to reduce the use
of various resources during
construction and operation.

Continuously increasing
investment in green research,
development, and innovation.

Continuously improving the
environmentally friendly and
green attributes of products.

Reducing the generation
of hazardous substances
with green technologies
and materials, minimizing
environmental impact.

Developing products with
lower power consumption
and higher efficiency to
help downstream industries
improve energy efficiency
and reduce carbon
emissions.

Providing integrated services
in product design, research
and development, and
production.

The Company’s GHG emissions mainly come from direct GHG emissions, generated from the use of natural gas,
small amounts of petroleum and diesel, and indirect GHG emissions from outsourced electricity and thermal power.
The Company carries out GHG emission reduction work from the management level and the technical level to reduce
carbon emissions generated in its operation activities, thereby lessening the impact on climate change.

The Shanghai Production Base is recognized as a “carbon emission quota management unit” by the Shanghai
municipal government and actively responds to government policies by conducting regular carbon investigations.
During the Reporting Period, the Company undertook third-party verification of the 2022 carbon emission data for Fab
1, Fab 2, and Fab 3 at the Shanghai Production Base to enhance our carbon emission data management capability.
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2.4 Resource Management

Sustainable Water Management

The Company sets water management goals and formulates water management strategies in strict accordance with
laws and rules and other relevant regulations, including the Water Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Shanghai
Administrative Measures for Water Conservation, and the Jiangsu Water Conservation Ordinance. It also introduces
higher-efficiency equipment and processes, continuously optimizes water resources management measures, and
enhances its water consumption efficiency.

e By 2030, the Company aims to reduce water consumed per unit product by 12% as compared
to 2015.

e Management Regulations for Water Use
e Standard Operating Procedures for Industrial Water Supply System
e Tap Water Anomaly Handling Procedure

e Monitor the supply and quality of water resources in operating areas.

e Establish and maintain comprehensive ledger management, regularly conducting statistics,
analysis, and improvement of utilisation.

e |mplement water-saving technological upgrades and wastewater reuse.

e Organize water-saving promotion activities and post water-saving signs.

Semiconductor manufacturing process necessitates adherence to water quality standards and involves substantial
water consumption, resulting in a significant impact on the availability of natural water resources. The Company
constantly monitors the risk of water resources in areas where we operate through the “Aqueduct Water Risk Atlas”, an
external tool from the World Resources Institute (WRI). We analyze the rationality of water consumption for production
and the operation of our fabs and the possible impact of the water intake and formulate effective measures to reduce
risks and ensure that water resources can support the Company’s sustainable development.
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WRI Risk Monitoring Results and Countermeasures of the Company

Water risk monitoring
indicators

Type of physical risks: Water consumption risk, drought, decline of groundwater
water level, etc..

Condition of physical risks: Coastal erosion, untreated water.
Laws, regulations and reputation risks: Quality of drinking water, sanitary
conditions, etc..

Monitoring results

High-risk area: Wuxi Fab and Shanghai Fab.

Countermeasures

Relying on water monitoring sites for each fab, the Company has conducted
water balance tests on a regular basis to calculate the process water, recycled
water, wastewater, and domestic water use of each fab.

The Company records the flow, volume, and recycling of water resources, so
as to analyze whether there is any abnormal utilization of water resources and
predict the reasonable allocation of water resources among water-consuming
units.

Build green buildings, upgrade or replace equipment with high water
consumption, and enhance water consumption efficiency.

Expand the sources of water resources, recycle air-conditioning condensate,
organic wastewater, etc., and transform recycled water into industrial water.

Carry out water-saving awareness publicity activities and post water-saving
signs.
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Water used by the Company comes to a large extent from the municipal water supply in addition to a smaller amount
of recycled water and air conditioning condensate from the pure water manufacturing process.

Overview of Water Used for Production and Operation of the Company in 2023

126.5447 million m?3

h 4

Water from Water used for . ina
illi £ A ecycling an
mUniCipal water 11.1273 million m%‘ prodUC“on and , );eusg
supply " domestic activities » -
11.1273 million m? 145.6214 million m? 126.5447 million m

7.9495 million m?3 |

Treated
wastewater
8.9895 million m3

v

Reused and
Recycled
| wastewater -
7.9495 million m3 Municipal
pipeline
1.0400 million m3

During the Reporting Period, the Company undertook several water-saving and wastewater reuse activities. In 2023,
it was awarded the medal and certificate of honor titled as “Water Efficiency Leader of Key Water-Using Enterprises
in Shanghai” jointly issued by the Shanghai Municipal Commission of Economy and Informatization and the Shanghai
Water Authority. In addition, it received the second prize for “Shanghai Industrial Water Reuse Excellent Case” jointly
awarded by the Labor Union of Shanghai Water Authority, the Shanghai Office for Water Saving, and the Shanghai
Water Supply Management Office.



Reclaimed water
reuse project

2023 ANNUAL REPORT ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 89

Additional reclaimed water recycling
facilities were installed, and turbidity

In 2023, a total of 275,940 tons of water was
saved

removal membranes and special RO
membranes were used to improve the
quality of water output from the system,
ensuring the requirements for use in
the pure water system are met

e Saving RO makeup e Water makeup volume was reduced In 2023, a total of 32,898 tons of water was

water by regulating the RO makeup water saved
bypass of the MAU without affecting
the indoor AMC in the cleanroom
e Recycling of RO e Additional RO concentrated water In 2023, a total of 26,000 tons of water was

concentrated water recycling equipment was installed saved
to increase the treatment amount of

recycled water

In 2023, a total of 9,125 tons of water was
saved

e Recycling of o
sampling water from
the online instrument

The sampling water from the online

water quality testing instrument

was collectively recovered in the

intermediate water tank and reused for

the spray water system

e Adjusting OAC unit o
makeup water flow

In 2023, a total of 55,845 tons of water was
saved

Diaphragm valves and flow meters
were installed to adjust the makeup
water amount according to actual
needs, saving water

In 2023, a total of 14,600 tons of water was
saved

e RCM product water o
reuse project

The organic reclaimed water pipeline
was installed to substitute reclaimed
water for tap water for washing

Raw Materials Management

The Company primarily uses raw materials including silicon slices, quartz, target materials, and chemicals. To
streamline management, the Company has established management systems, including the Raw Materials Shelf
Life Control Policy, the Risk Identification and Response Measures for Key Materials, the Key Materials Risk Analysis
Table, and the Materials Management Department’'s Management Standards for Chemical Storage and Gas-based
Operations, to standardize the raw materials management procedures. The Company encourages employees to
reduce waste rates by means of technical innovation, constant optimization, and recommendations on optimization,
thereby enhancing the efficient utilization of raw materials.

2.5 Emissions and Waste Management

In order to meet emission standards and reduce impact on the environment, the Company has standardized the
management of air emissions, wastewater, and waste discharge in strict accordance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Soil Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution, as well as other laws and regulations and relevant provisions. During the Reporting Period, no incident
of excessive or illegal discharge of pollutants by the Company has occurred, nor has any litigation case arising from
the above types of incidents occurred.
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Air Emission Discharge Management

The Company strictly complies with national and local discharge requirements, such as the Discharge Standards of
Pollutants for Semiconductor Industry (DB31/374-2006) and Jiangsu Discharge Standards for Semiconductor Industry
(DB32/3247-2020), and sets a management goal of achieving 100% compliance on discharge. The Company has
formulated improved testing plans and management measures for air emissions discharged during production,
including sulfuric acid mist (H,SO,), hydrogen chloride (HCI), nitric oxide (NOx), ammonia (NH,), and volatile organic
compounds (VOCs). The Company has further developed testing plans for major air emissions according to the
production situation and regularly carried out testing and evaluation to ensure compliance of air emissions.

Air Emissions Acid air emission Up-to-standard discharge after removing
most of the components through
pretreatment and centralized treatment of
the washing tower.

Alkaline air emission (mainly ammonia gas) Purification through a washing tower.

Organic air emission Purification through activated carbon
adsorption, or combustion after
concentration.

Air Emissions containing dust (mainly small Removal through a dust-extraction unit

particulates of silicon dioxide)

The Company has standardized the requirements for online monitoring and management of organic waste gas and
improved on-site supervision capacity of its fabs. The Company’s waste gas treatment facilities are maintained at a
high level of treatment efficiency through annual overhaul and other measures. In addition, the Company optimized
and improved the treatment technology of its organic waste gas treatment system, constantly enhanced the treatment
efficiency of the system, and reduced the emission of organic waste gas.

Waste Management

The Company adheres to the principles of “reduction from the source” and “circular economy”. Besides standardizing
the identification and strict classification of generated waste, the Company adopts proper management methods to
handle waste, aiming to maximize the waste recycling rate.

The Company maintains consistently high standards and strict requirements in the implementation of the waste
management system by formulating the Waste Management Procedure, the Code of Practice for Industrial Waste
Management, and other management regulations, as well as crafting all-around management procedures for waste
management to standardize waste management operations. Through the unified environmental protection management
system of the government, waste treatment is recorded and managed to ensure all transportation records are
traceable and controllable. In every year since 2017, the Company has carried out work to reduce the discharge of
various hazardous wastes to constantly reduce the impact of hazardous waste emissions on the environment.
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Non-hazardous waste Domestic waste and kitchen garbage Entrusting the environmental sanitation
departments in the places where
we operate for unified disposal on a

regular basis

Hazardous waste

Raw materials for production and office
supplies
Such as sludge

Such as waste acid, waste isopropanol,
waste phosphoric acid, and organic waste
liquid

Such as waste glass bottles, 200L

Recycling within plant premises

Landfilling, and brick manufacturing

handled by suitable enterprises, or reused
in other industries, for a higher reuse rate

Physical-chemical treatment

chemical barrels, and waste liquid from
laboratory

Such as cleaning cloths, plastic bottles,
waste activated carbon, waste resin, and
arsenic-containing waste

Incineration

Wastewater Discharge Management

The Company strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations governing wastewater discharge for all of the
jurisdictions in which its factories operate and sets a management goal of achieving 100% compliance on discharge.
The Shanghai Production Base is in compliance with the Discharge Standard of Water Pollutants for Electronic Industry
(GB39731-2020), the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard (DB31/199-2018), and the Waste Water Quality
Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers (GBT 31962-2015) — Grade B Standard. The Wuxi Production Base is
in compliance with the Jiangsu Discharge Standards for Semiconductor Industry (DB32/3247-2020), the Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard (GB8978-1996), and the Waste Water Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers (GB/T31962-2015) and formulates the Management System for Drainage and Waste. The Company also
reduces the generation of wastewater by continuously optimizing manufacturing processes and wastewater recovery.

In terms of pollution discharge and information disclosure, the Company carried out online monitoring and
management of wastewater, with relevant data of the Shanghai Production Base and the Wuxi Production Base
disclosed on the environmental information disclosure platform, thus improving transparency of environmental
information for the Company.
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Wastewater Discharge Management

Testing Indicators Treatment Method
Wastewater pH, COD, ammonia nitrogen, fluorine ion, Discharged through a pipeline into a
etc. designated urban sewage pipe network
after treatment and meeting relevant
standards

2.6 Green Products

Green products refer to safe, environment-friendly, and high-quality products manufactured in the closed-loop process
of product design, manufacturing, use, scrapping, and reuse during which the green concept is always considered.
Green products are also characterized by low resource and energy consumption, low pollutant emissions, low toxicity
and less harm, and easy recycling, treatment, and reuse. Through special technologies, green production, and the
use of clean energy, the Company creates green “core” products and continues to improve product efficiency with
reduced energy consumption and waste production during manufacturing, thereby minimizing environmental impact.

Pathway to Green Products

Special technologies

The “green” concept is integrated into the technological research and development phase,
whereby continuing to develop low-power consumption, high-performance, highly reliable,
and highly integrated technology platforms.

Green production

Use of green products and energy-saving technological transformation reduce energy
consumption and waste generation in product production processes, enhancing the green
attributes of products.

Clean energy

End-use product energy efficiency is improved by developing energy-efficient products
through technological innovation.
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Green Product Production

Based on the environmental footprint of the full life-cycle of a product, the Company identifies the potential
improvement links for the green attributes during raw materials procurement, product production, and product
transportation. By adhering to the philosophy of lean manufacturing management, implementing green procurement
principles, improving technological processes, and other measures, the Company continues to reduce the
environmental impact of product production and enhance the green attributes of its products.

Warehousing of Product Production  Product Transportation = End-user Products Disposal
Raw Materials
e Carry out hazardous e Choose production e Recycle and reuse e By helping e The wafers
substance equipment with product packaging customers produce produced by the
examination and low energy materials to reduce low energy Company are
systematic control consumption and the consumption consumption monitored for
on raw materials high performance of packaging products, reduce harmful substances,
e Review the * Implement water materials and waste the environmental which means
qualification and recovery projects to generation impact of the use of that the end-user
environmental improve the overall end-user electronic electronic products
compliance of recycling rate of products manufactured by
suppliers and water using the wafers
require suppliers ¢ Adhere to the have less impact on
to sign the philosophy of lean the environment after
Environmental manufacturing disposal
Protection management, e Recyclable waste
Undertaking minimizing the during production
generation of waste is handed over to

qualified third parties
for recycling

Seizing the Clean Energy Opportunity

With the accelerated adjustment of the global energy structure, promoting the use of clean energy has become the
focus of development for more and more enterprises. Hua Hong Semiconductor has actively seized the opportunity
of clean energy and applied its main process platforms in different application fields to facilitate the development of
green products in the downstream supply chain.

The Company has accumulated substantial technology and experience in the manufacturing process for upstream
components in the new energy application field, such as new energy power generation, etc., which can effectively
support its energy transformation and development. The Company’s semiconductor components for new energy, which
are already at the international advanced level, utilize the technology and reliability of the 8-inch wafer production
platform, with gradual transitioning to the 12-inch process platform. Hua Hong Semiconductor focuses on development
of the “8-inch + 12-inch” wafer production strategy, vigorously implementing core development of the advanced
“Specialty IC + Power Discrete” product mix, and fully supporting the high-quality supply capacity of components for
the new energy infrastructure and application fields. Hua Hong Semiconductor’s power discrete, non-volatile memory,
and analog and power management processes play an important role in supporting the development of end-user
products in new energy application fields, such as new energy vehicles, photovoltaic energy storage, energy-saving
household appliances, etc.
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Products for Supporting Clean Energy Development

)

L —

Power Discrete

)

Power discrete are important devices
for new energy power generation and
new energy applications. For example,
a large number of IGBTs, MOSFETs,
and other devices are required for PV
and wind power generation equipment,
electric ~ vehicles, and electric
two-wheelers.

_

)
The Company has accumulated a
large number of customers in this field
and has maintained good
partnerships with leading enterprises
in the field for a long time to conduct
in-depth development and cooperation
together. So far, the revenue of power
discrete devices has contributed a
significant part of the Company’s

Non-volatile Memory Process

—e

)

Non-volatile memory processes are is
widely used in chip applications such
as MCUs and ASICs, and these chips
are also widely applied to new
energy-based power generation
equipment.

_

According to IC Insights, the automotive
market accounts for more than 30% of
the global MCU consumption market.
All of Hua Hong's fabs have passed
the IATF 16949 automotive quality
management system certification,
making important contributions to
supporting the local manufacturing of
automotive semiconductors.

revenue.
— ) =

New Energy Components involved in Development Projects and Application Areas

Product Application Area Proportion of Revenue
Power Discrete Photovoltaic and wind power generation 39.4%

equipment, electric vehicles, electric

bicycles, etc.

Non-volatile Memory New energy generation equipment, electric  35.9%
Process vehicles, etc.

In 2023, the Company held the “Core Connectivity, Vehicle Connectivity, and Chain Connectivity” Automotive Chip
Ecosystem Cooperation Conference, joining forces with nearly a hundred businesses in the integrated circuit,
automotive component, and vehicle assembly sectors, to promote cooperation in the automotive chip ecosystem
and foster collaborative industry development under the spirit of “identifying opportunities in industrial development
by amassing the power of technical innovation”. Pursuant to the “8-inch + 12-inch” and forward-looking “Special IC
+ Power Discrete” strategies, the Company’s automotive electronics business has been expanding, with products
continuing to expand in the new energy sector, propelling the low-carbon green development.
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Development Progress of Technologies Boosting New Energy Transformation in 2023

Automotive Electronics

Industrial New Energy

High-end Consumer Electronics

Collaboration along the supply chain
assists customers in accelerating
introduction of their products into
related module factories and vehicle
manufacturing enterprises.

Direct collaboration is established
with mainstream domestic
automotive manufacturers, focusing
on mature chip substitution for

key and challenging projects.

This partnership aims to build a
sustainability ecosystem that ensures
multi-dimensional cooperation.
Recommended mature chip types
cover various areas, including the
automotive power system, body
control, cabin, chassis and safety,
remote control and communication,
ADAS, and charging stations,
thereby achieving mass supply.

A company-level automotive
electronics database is established
and continuously improved.

e Key power device products
have achieved mass supply,
significantly increasing market
share. With the government
enacting a national strategy and
rendering strong support for
the dual-carbon economy, the
new energy market is poised for
promising growth in the future.

Collaboration with well-known
domestic appliance brands
aims to increase the domestic
substitution rate and continue the
push for expansion of high-end
consumer electronics business.
Well-known domestic appliance
brands, manufacturing products
such as IGBT, display touch
control chips, fingerprint lock
chips, and motor control on the
Company’s process platform,
have gradually expanded into
the market for large household
appliances, including air
conditioners and refrigerators.

In the future, the Company will further promote the development of silicon-based power devices capable of achieving
higher energy efficiency and initiate development of compound semiconductor power devices characterized by high
power density and low energy consumption. This will provide continuously optimized solutions for products applied to
the clean energy sector, such as variable frequency household appliances, new energy vehicles, and further improve

energy efficiency.

3 Employee-Related Responsibilities

Major Developments in 2023

Measures

Achievements

Safe Production

Employee training

100% of our employees and contractors signed the Safety Responsibility
Letter and the Letter of Commitment on Safety and Environmental Protection,

respectively.
100% employee training coverage.
135.6 training hours per person.
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3.1 Rights and Benefits of Employees

Rights and Interests of Employees

Hua Hong Semiconductor strictly complies with laws and regulations including the Labor Law of the PRC and the
Law on Employment Contracts of the PRC. We insist on fair employment, implement the principle of equal pay for
equal work, and ensure that employees are not discriminated against or treated differently based on non-work factors
including age, gender, place of birth, religious belief, marital status, or disability. We prohibit the employment of child
labor or forced labor.

The Company has formulated relevant management regulations, including the Employment Procedures and the
Management Procedures for Trainees. The Company strictly checks the identity information of employees and never
employs adolescents under the age of 16. If such a situation is identified and verified, it will be immediately suspended
and investigated for rectification, targeting at the omission of links around the recruitment review process so that
such process can be improved. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had 6,863 regular employees.
The Company has experienced no illegal or non-compliant incidents in connection with employee recruitment and
dismissal, work hours and holidays, job promotion and equal opportunities, anti-discrimination and diversity, the
employment of child labor or forced labor, nor had any litigation in connection with the aforesaid matters.

Recruitment: Adhering to
the principle of fairness,
equity and openness;

Dismissal: The Company
and employees go
through the dismissal
procedure according to

relevant laws, regulations,

and the Dismissal
Management Procedure.

The Company provides
competitive salaries for
employees, which are
higher than the minimum
wage in the place of
operation.

A standard working hours
system is adopted. A
comprehensive or flexible
working hours system is
adopted for certain
positions with the approval
of the government labor
and personnel authorities;

Based on holidays and
festivals specified by the
government,
supplementary annual
leaves are provided for
employees.

Establishing labor union,
employee congress, etc.
to ensure the democratic
participation of employees
in the Company’s
decision-making.
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Employee Diversity

The Company attaches great importance to the diversity of employees and believes that a diversified talent pool
can enhance dynamics in the team, which will constantly improve the efficiency of research and production, driving
business growth of the Company. Through diverse recruitment channels, the Company provides employment
opportunities for talent from different cultural backgrounds, educational backgrounds, and technical specialties.

Upholding the principle of “gender equality” in recruitment, employment, and
promotion, the Company incorporates employee aptitude and performance
assessments into the standards of employment and promotion.

Upholding the principle of “age equality”, the Company provides job and promotion
opportunities for employees of different age groups.

The Company offers various positions and levels in management, technology, and
functional support, allowing employees to choose based on their own development
plans.

The Company formulates relevant regulations and procedures and continues to create an open, inclusive, respectful,
and diverse employment environment. We respect the lifestyle of all kinds of employees and try to provide them with
convenient conditions to meet their living habits. The Company is also committed to creating better office and service
facilities for employees and improving their happiness.
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Employee Care

The Company persistently cares about the well-being of its employees by integrating employee care into its daily
practices, including provision of fringe benefits and caring initiatives in areas such as office environment, diet,
accommodation, and transportation, as part of our commitments to creating a warm, loving, and vibrant working
environment for them.

Office e The ventilation system is installed in all offices and additional air purification
devices added to improve office air quality.

e (Green space increased in office areas.

Diet e There are staff canteens and coffee shops in factory zones.

e FEstablishing a food safety supervision team, adopting the mode of centralized
purchasing of food materials and qualified supply chain management, and
inviting employees and department representatives to carry out supervision.

e Publishing the canteen food cooking guideline to manage balanced nutrition,
oil and salt control, for the employees’ diet in the canteens.

Accommodation e Construction of dormitory with private bathrooms, 24-hour supply of hot water,
and WIFI network, etc.

e The dormitory area has a library, computer room, snooker room, laundry, TV
room, HIVE BOX, and other facilities.

Travel e Providing all employees with travel allowance.

e Providing free commuter bus services between the park, subway stations, and
the dormitory.

e (Creating a commuting route for employees living in the transit-challenged
areas and arranging commuter bus services for departments which need to
have such services on weekends.

Extending solicitude e Organizing holiday celebrations and activities during festive periods as a
gesture of extending our solicitude.
Health checkup e Offering annual health check-ups for all employees, including screenings for

multiple types of cancer.

In addition, the Company established the Employee Assistance Mechanism, under which we provide assistance for
needy employees at special festivals such as Spring Festival, Labor Day, and Mid-Autumn Festival, in addition to
routine expression of sympathy and solicitude to injured or families of diseased employees; and we give timely care
and support to employees who suffer a significant misfortune and help them overcome their plight as soon as possible
through multiple forms of assistance including donation, support, care, and nursing.

In terms of care for female employees, the Company organizes a special physical examination every year, continuously
improving human-based management of lactating employees, and providing relevant service facilities to ensure
convenience for pregnant employees and lactating employees at work.

Employee Communication

An unblocked communication channel is favorable to the establishment of harmonious labor relations. The Company
is committed to building and improving employee communication and feedback mechanisms, has formulated the
Employee Communication Rules, and encouraged multi-way communication between the Company and employees,
between officers and subordinate officers, and among employees.

The Company utilizes various communication channels, including satisfaction surveys, forums for young employees,
an OA online platform, and one-on-one departmental communications, to understand the feedback and suggestions
of employees. Meanwhile, the Company has established a labor union, and employee representative meetings are
regularly convened as part of our active efforts to communicate with employees.
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3.2 Employee Health and Safety

The Company attaches great importance to occupational health and safety of employees and strictly complies with the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, the Production Safety Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances, as well as other laws, regulations,
and provisions. The Company has established a complete occupational health and safety system that meets the safety
goal of “zero accident for production safety”, defining the occupational health and safety policy, to provide employees
with a good working environment and ensure their occupational health. During the Reporting Period, there were zero
work-related injuries or deaths, occupational diseases, or fire accidents.

Occupational Health and Safety Management System

Occupational Health and Safety Management Policy

The Company strictly complies with the laws and regulations pertaining to safety, health, and environmental protection; makes

efforts for clean production; carries out continuous improvement; creates a safe, healthy, and comfortable working environment
for employees; and strenuously pursues the highest goal of “zero accidents” and sustainable operation, becoming a model
corporate citizen in the world.

System e The Company has established the Safe Management ¢ Emergency response to hazards/
Construction Production Committee; implemented Factors environmental factors.
the Committee's Safe Production e Special equipment and posts.
Responsibility System; and implemented e Chemicals management.
the Regular Safety Meeting System. e QOccupational health monitoring and
e All employees at all levels are required Protection.

to sign the Safety Responsibility Letter,
so as to implement the Safe Production
Responsibility System for the staff.

Internal Audit, ¢ Safety technology transformation. Construction e Safety awareness and safety training.
Inspection, e Establishing a dual prevention work of a Safety e Emergency drills.
and Hazard mechanism of hierarchical control of Culture
Identification safety risks and management or hazard
identification.

Safe Production

The Company pays great attention to safety assurance of employees in the production process, strictly abides by
the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, and formulates the Implementation Measures for the
Production Safety Responsibility System of the Production Safety Committee. We also established the safe production
committee and the weekly production safety meeting system to continue the optimization of various management
procedures and facilitate construction of the corporate safety culture, ensuring stable operation of the Company’s safe
production system. So far, the Shanghai Production Base and the Wuxi Production Base both have passed certification
of the ISO 45001 International Occupational Health and Safety Management System.

Name of production base ISO 45001 Certification Term of Validity
Shanghai Production Base and Wuxi Production Base Certified 18 April 2024
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The Company actively implemented standardization, systematization, and intelligent construction of safety work and
optimized the production safety responsibility system of all employees. In accordance with the principle of “one post
with one responsibility” and “whoever takes charge and uses shall take the responsibility”, the Company has compiled
a Safety Responsibility Letter covering all staff by combining the post functions. Meanwhile, contractors of the
Company are required to sign the “Letter of Commitment on Safety and Environmental Protection”, so as to make every
department and every employee take their respective responsibility and optimize the production safety responsibility
system of all employees. In 2023, 100% of our employees and contractors signed the Safety Responsibility Letter and
the Letter of Commitment on Safety and Environmental Protection, respectively.

In addition, the Company improved systematic procedure management based on its operation experience, established
and perfected safety management systems such as safety accident/incident/nidden danger troubleshooting and
tracking system, and implemented a special equipment registration system, equipment terminal infrared detection and
recording system, etc. Data records are kept to ensure implementation of corrective measures, thereby standardizing
implementation of procedures and enhancing the Company’s safety management efficiency and safety operation level.

Comprehensive systems are installed, including automatic fire extinguishing system, automatic
fire alarm system, smoke control system, fire broadcasting system, evacuation indications, and
emergency lighting system.

Our clean work areas are equipped with toxic, hazardous, and flammable gas alarming
systems, liquid leakage detection system, and extremely early smoke detection systems.

An emergency response team (ERT) is established and receives specialized skill training, and
emergency response plans are formulated for different disasters. Furthermore, special action
drills are regularly organized and identified issues are promptly rectified.

In 2023, Hua Hong Semiconductor advanced the Three-Year Special Rectification Action Plan for Production Safety
(2023-2025), covering hazardous chemicals, construction projects, fire safety, gas, electricity, and special equipment,
with a total of 397 safety hazards successfully rectified.

Chemical Safety Management

With regard to safety protection of chemicals, the Company has formulated a number of management policies and
operation procedures, including the Chemicals Management Procedure, the Chemical Substance Review Procedure,
the Special Emergency Plan for Chemical Leakage, the Inspection and Registration System for Chemicals Coming
In and Out of the Warehouse, the Safety Management Rules for Hazardous Chemicals, the Management Measures
for Chemical Turn-on, etc., to regulate the chemical management procedures as well as to enhance chemical safety
compliance.
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Hazardous Chemicals Used in the Manufacturing of Hua Hong Semiconductor Chips

Type Name

Flammable liquid

Oxidants and organic peroxides
Toxic chemicals

Corrosive chemicals

Isopropanol, photoresist, and diesel

Hydrogen peroxide

Phosphine and fluorine

Sulfuric acid, hydrochloric acid, hydrofluoric acid, phosphoric acid, mixed acid,
ammonia water, and sodium hydroxide

Hydrogen, methane, silane, nitrogen, oxygen, argon, helium, ammonia, and
chlorine

Compressed and liquefied gas

The Company has established a factory chemical review committee to comprehensively evaluate the environmental
protection and safety qualifications as well as the risk prevention and control capabilities of chemical suppliers in
advance. The Company employs the chemical substance management system to: manage the handling, storage,
and disposal of chemicals; control the maximum storage quantity of chemicals; and dynamically monitor their use and
consumption. In addition, the Company endeavors to eliminate on-site hazard sources and reduce safety risks from the
source by giving priority to the use of new technologies and by replacing toxic and flammable hazardous chemicals
with non-toxic chemicals.

Hazardous Chemicals Management Procedure

EEEEEE  Purchase @ EEEEEEEDIEREES L. SEEES( G EEEEE Use and Disposal TEEEE o
| | I
4 N\ [ N 2
e The purchase and marketing e \Vehicles transporting e Hazardous chemicals shall be
personnel of chemicals shall hazardous chemicals shall be used in strict accordance with
work with qualification used for special purpose to the safe operation
certificates and ask for prevent the chemicals from procedures;
chemical safety specifications “running out, spilling, dripping
and chemical safety labels or leaking”; e Hazardous chemicals that
when purchasing hazardous need to be disposed of shall
chemicals. e Chemicals shall be separated, be collected by special
classified, and stored by their personnel, sent to the
performance; managed by Company’s hazardous waste
special personnel; and warehouse, and then
regularly inspected. delivered to the hazardous
waste disposal agency for
S ) U ) centralized disposal. )

Protection of Employees’ Occupational Hazard Factors

In order to provide occupational health protection for employees, the Company identifies occupational hazard
factors of employees and formulates corresponding countermeasures in strict accordance with the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and other laws and regulations. The
Company’s job positions involving occupational hazard factors mainly include ion implantation, diffusion, etching,
chemical mechanical grinding, power gasification, and other positions involving equipment operation.
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Fluorine and its inorganic
compounds, hydrofluoric
acid, hydrochloric acid,

The equipment in the
clean room is automatically
operated in a closed space

Annual occupational health
monitoring and assessment
of current occupational

and other positions involving hazards.

equipment operation.

nitric acid, sulfuric acid,
phosphoric acid, ammonia

water, hydrogen peroxide,
arsenic and its compounds,
phosphorus and its o
compounds, isopropanal, etc.

and is equipped with a
closed process exhaust
system. e Strict pre-employment,
on-the-job, and post-
employment medical
examinations for
employees at positions
exposed to occupational
disease hazards.

Provide employees with
personal protective

articles and emergency
response devices, regularly
checking such articles and
devices to ensure their
effectiveness.

In addition, the Company engages external organizations to test the occupational hazards in its production
environment every year, so as to ensure that the occupational exposure limits for harmful factors are not exceeded
in the production environment. The Company informs all employees of the test results. Over the course of research,
development, and production, the Company persistently has upheld the green chemistry philosophy, thereby
continuously reducing the occupational hazard exposure risk of employees.

The Company provides an annual health check-up for all employees, including multiple cancer screenings and
other items, and establishes employee health records to systematically track changes in employees’ health status.
In 2023, the Company established the “Health Defense Column”, while simultaneously carrying out various activities
to promote a healthy lifestyle for employees, such as health lectures on the theme of “How to stay away from the risk
of “hypertension, hyperlipemia and hyperglycemia”, “Guidelines for People Infected with COVID-19 at Home", and
“Prevention of facial paralysis in alternate seasons”, to encourage the employees to live and work in a healthy way.

Construction of Production Safety Culture

In order to carry out the construction of a production safety culture and strengthen the staff's awareness of the safety
culture, the Company organized a series of activities such as “Production Safety Month”, “Safety & Health Cup”, and
“Fire Protection Month” and carried out activities such as production safety publicity, education, and training, as well
as safety knowledge and skills competitions. Various safety publicity and demonstration activities have effectively
enhanced the safety awareness and safety knowledge reserve of employees and motivated all staff to fulfill their safety
commitments and responsibilities.



2023 ANNUAL REPORT ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 103

Strengthening safety e 131 safety education and training sessions were organized and held on the primary

training responsibility for production safety, enrolling over 28,000 participants with the
participation rate in safety education and training reaching 100% and the certificate
holding rate for employees reaching 100%.

Enhancing emergency e Each production base organized and implemented more than 385 comprehensive
response capability and special emergency plan drills, enrolling more than 29,770 participants.

e Complete the expert review and filing of production safety emergency plans,
establish and improve the required documents, such as rapid emergency response
procedures to abnormal conditions for production base, as well as organize weekly
training, quarterly practice, and annual competition.

e Hold ERT personal skills and ERT firefighting skills competitions and build an
emergency management system communication platform by carrying out activities.

e Organize and carry out the “Fire Protection Month” fire knowledge display board
publicity, firefighting skill training, evacuation and escape drills for all staff, and
enhance the staff's safety awareness and emergency response ability.

Safety Technical e Conduct annual evaluation of required safety and technical skills, and organize

Transformation learning and exchange activities.

Assessment e Conduct assessment activities to select typical investigation cases for hidden
hazards.

3.3 Employee Development and Training

Employee Training

The Company has established a sound employee education and training system and formulated the Operating
Procedure of Internal Training System Review, the Education and Training Procedure, and department-level training
procedures, which are constantly adjusted according to strategic development and employee needs, to meet the all-
round and multi-level training needs of employees in different positions.

The Company has established training facilities (with special training rooms and equipment for each plant site),
learning and sharing platforms (including an online training registration management platform, training material,
and position-specific question bank and multimedia learning courseware, etc.) and where necessary, uses external
resources for ensuring employees learning and development.

In 2023, the Company continuously carried out a “Special Training Camp for Newly-hired Recent College Graduates”
training program. In addition to the refining and concentration of professional theory and practical training in three
major series of courses, namely “new era”, “new revelation” and “new talents”, the Company offered courses regarding
corporate culture and political literacy as well as organized visits to bases of Chinese revolution, which helped its new
employees quickly integrate into the team and meet the challenges of their future work with full enthusiasm.
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Grass-roots managers Role recognition, self-management, management of

others, and working management
e Percentage of employees

Front-line managers Develop management skills of front — line shift and trained: 100%

team leaders, cultivate a front-line management team
with high quality and high business ability, and lay a
solid foundation for the Company’s management

Newly-employed university Career quality, corporate culture, introduction to
students special skills, and other courses ¢ Average training hours per

Front-line employees Courses about theory and practical training of the employee: 135.6 hours
semiconductor manufacturing module

Career Development

The Company has clear and transparent promotion channels for employees, regularly evaluates employee
performance providing employees with feedback on individual performance, and offers personal career development
plans for the development of employees. According to industrial practice, the Company has set three professional
categories, namely, management, technology, and functional support and has established corresponding job training.
Employees may continuously develop their careers in a single professional title category according to their own
specialties, potential, and desires. In addition, they are able to shift from technology to management.

In continuing to push forward with high-quality development and improve its high-quality talent pool, the Company
focuses on refining its comprehensive capabilities through specialized training, technical exchanges, and lectures, so
as to constantly improve the talent cultivation mechanism.

In addition, the Company has formulated the Implementation Measures for Academic Education Subsidy, which
encourages employees to improve their professional and technical knowledge and provided 18 employees with on
— the-job academic education subsidies in 2023, so as to promote work performance and efficiency improvement,
continuously training high-quality talent that meets the current and future needs of the Company, further improving its
comprehensive competitiveness.

As of the end of the reporting period, the overall employee turnover rate of the Company® was approximately 10.0%.
Specifically, the employee turnover rates by gender, age and region are as follows.

Male employees 11.3%
Female employees 7.1%
Employees aged below 30 14.0%
Employees aged 30 to 50 7.5%
Employees aged above 50 1.9%
Employees in mainland China 10.0%
Employees from overseas 9.7%

&) Employee Turnover Rate= number of resigned employees in the category/total number of employees in the category * 100%
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Innovation and R&D e 672 patent applications
e 12 approved papers
Product quality e Selected as a shortlist for the nomination award of the 5th

China Quality Award
e Awarded 2022 Shanghai Key Product Quality
Improvement Achievement Award (Second Prize)
Customer service e Average score of customer satisfaction in the
questionnaire of 8.97 (full score: 10 points)

4.1 Product R&D and Innovation

Construction of an Innovative Technology R&D System

Continuous innovation and R&D are crucial requirements for the sustained growth of an enterprise and serve as
strategic support for promoting high-quality development. The Company abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Progress of Science and Technology, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the requirements
of other laws and regulations. Guided by its vision of “Continuous Innovation and Empowering the Future for Global
Customers”, the Company consistently benchmarks itself against international standards, promotes integrated
innovation in processes, devices, design, and products and strives to build industry-leading specialized technological
capabilities.

In 2023, the Company embarked on a patent layout for “Automotive-Grade Memory” and continued to promote
integrated innovation in processes, devices, design, and products. We concentrated our efforts on key research
and development projects, accelerating the development of differentiated advanced technologies. We also made
continuous progress in the development of new power discrete devices, leveraging patents as barriers to proactively
position itself in industry-leading research areas.

e “8-inch +12-inch” and advanced “Specialty IC + e Completed the development of a number of advanced
Power Discrete” strategies. specialty ICs and high-end power discrete devices,
and achieved mass production of over 200,000 wafers
e To deepen the high-quality development of diversified of new products.

specialized process platforms, such as Embedded/

Standalone Non-Volatile Memory, Power Device, and e Achieved significant breakthroughs in the indicators

Analog & PM, and Logic &RF. and product performance of key devices, such as
image sensors and embedded flash memory, enabling
the Group to gradually expand in the automotive
electronics supply chain.
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v Successfully listed on the list of “2022 Excellent Intelligent Manufacturing Scenarios” jointly announced by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the National Development and Reform Commission, the Ministry
of Finance, and the State Administration for Market Regulation.

v “Anew type of mirror floating gate flash memory storage unit and application (—fEFE 1R Z M S F 1 FEE T
FEFR)" was awarded the first prize of the Shanghai Science and Technology Award by the Shanghai Municipal
People’'s Government.

v The “Development and Industrialization of 12-inch IGBT Complete Manufacturing Process” project won the “15th
China Semiconductor Award for Innovative Products and Technologies” award by the China Semiconductor
Industry Association.

v Successfully selected as one of the “100 Intelligent Factories in Shanghai” by the Shanghai Economic and
Information Commission.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Company complies with the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, and other laws and regulations and places
equal emphasis on both quantity and quality when it comes to promoting intellectual property rights. We have
formulated the Management Regulations for Intellectual Property, to regulate the management of our intellectual
property rights.

The Company sets annual targets for patent applications and actively maintains its own intellectual property rights. At
the same time, the Company promises that it will never infringe upon the intellectual property rights of any enterprise
or individual and will keep confidential all technological information regarding products of upstream and downstream
partners. To avoid infringement of third-party intellectual property rights, the Company conducts reputational and
potential risk audits on customers before accepting product orders and has entered into several technology licensing
agreements with major technical companies.

As at the end of 2023, the Company has applied for a total of 8,969 patents in China and overseas and has obtained
4,427 patents.

672 patent applications
270 patents granted
Hua Hong Wuxi was listed on the “Wuxi High-Tech Zone Intellectual Property List” for 2023

Hua Hong Wuxi ranked 2nd in the “Top 20 New Invention Patents in 2022"

= 2 =2 2 <2

Hua Hong Wuxi ranked 6th in the “Top 30 Accumulated Invention Patents in 2022”
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4.2 Product Quality and Safety

Quality Management System

The Company has been deepening and improving its quality management system to enhance management efficiency
of the “R&D — Mass Production — Quality Control” process, especially in the face of challenging market fluctuations.
We have formulated the Quality Manual, Quality Management Procedures, Code of Practice for Quality Objective
Management, Supplier Management Regulations, and other rules to carry out quality management work. In 2023, the
Company carried out evaluation activities with the theme of “Zero Defect of Characteristic Processes and High-quality
Development of Hua Hong", during which a total of 2,578 projects were reviewed and completed. The outcomes have
been remarkable in terms of efficiency improvement, supply chain safety, energy conservation and emission reduction,
talent development, and safety production.

Hua Hong Shanghai ISO 9001 Quality Management System 21 May 2024
Production Base IECQ QC 080000 Hazardous Substances Process 11 December 2026
Management System
IATF 16949 Quality Management System for 21 May 2024

Automotive Industry

Hua Hong Wuxi Production Base ISO 9001 Quality Management System 11 November 2025
IECQ QC 080000 Hazardous Substances Process 11 December 2026
Management System
IATF 16949 Quality Management System for 7 May 2026
Automotive Industry

The Company strictly adheres to the Zero Defects concept, with the quality assurance department responsible for
overall planning, execution, and implementation of product quality and safety management, reporting to management
and the Board on the relevant work. By organizing regular quality management review meetings, promoting the
implementation of product quality monitoring, and strengthening customer communication, the Company aims to
ensure that product quality meets expectations and provide high-quality products to the market.

In 2023, the quality assurance department collaborated with the research and development, production, safety and
environmental protection, and marketing departments to conduct monitoring and testing over our entire product
lifecycle covering “R&D — Production — After-sales”, so as to predict and analyze potential anomalies, take timely
corrective actions, and prevent product quality risks.
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Customer Certifications v Successfully passed audits from 14 automotive customers and 25 key customers,
completing pre-qualification for leading global automotive electronics manufacturers.
v Made breakthroughs in the construction of financial IC card security system, passed
EMVCO certification audits, and obtained customer recognition in terms of the quality
system.

Reliability Management Y Established comprehensive process assessment schemes for 40nm and below
advanced process nodes, laying the theoretical foundation for subsequent process

verification.

Yield Management v Resolved 15 systematic issues in process baselines across various platforms
throughout the year, achieving stable yields of 97% or higher for major production
platforms.

New Product Quality v Introduced over 500 new products throughout the year, with more than 30 products

Management meeting automotive-grade specifications.

v Completed the transition of 8 products and technologies from R&D to mass
production throughout the year.

In 2023, the Company organized both the theme activity of “Zero Defect of Characteristic Processes and High-
quality Development of Hua Hong” and the Quality Month activity. With the goal of “Building the Foundation of Quality,
Pursuing the Path of Excellence (& & 2E, 17828.25)", all departments and employees in Shanghai and Wuxi
worked together to carry out a series of activities such as executive lectures, quality knowledge training, knowledge
competitions, quality-themed essay submissions, and quality-themed debate competitions, to promote the Company’s
high-quality development and pursuit of excellence in quality.

To further enhance its quality management level and inspire employee engagement in learning, the Company
organized a series of online activities such as “Zero Defects Quality Awareness Training” and “Quality Knowledge
Competition” for all employees, so as to instill the concept of “High Quality and Zero Defects” in the minds of every
employee and solidify their quality consciousness.

v Second Prize for 2022 Shanghai Key Product Quality Improvement Achievement Award

v Manufacturing Department of Fab 1 received the “Excellent Level” award in the Shanghai On-site Management
Innovation Activity

v  Fab 2 was selected as a shortlist for the nomination award of the 5th China Quality Award

v Fab 3 was awarded the title of Shanghai Intelligent Factory and recognised as a national-level demonstration site

Product Safety Assurance

In terms of product safety assurance, the Company has established a hazardous substance management system,
conducted regular risk assessments of hazardous substances and compliance evaluations with applicable laws and
regulations, and formulated the Hazardous Substances Management Procedure and the three-level management
system to effectively control the hazardous substances in products.
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Product R&D The Company incorporates the management of hazardous substances into the product

R&D process to reduce the risk of using hazardous substances from the source.
Raw materials testing Suppliers are required to provide the product test report for hazardous substances,
sign the Letter of Commitment on Product and Environmental Protection. We conducted
sampling tests on certain raw materials to ensure the safety of raw materials.

Product hazardous
substance control
certification

A third-party organization is entrusted to carry out testing in accordance with the Directive
on Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic
Equipment Regulations (“RoHS”) and the Regulation concerning the Registration,
Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals (“REACH”) on a yearly basis to
ensure that our products meet the requirements of relevant certification standards.

Management of Nonconforming Products

For nonconforming products, the Company has formulated the policy of Nonconforming Product Control Procedure for
management and has established an optimal product recall system. For products that meet the warranty conditions,
our customers may return or exchange any nonconforming products within the warranty period. During the reporting
period, the failure rate of the Company’s products on the end-user side was less than one in a billion.

4.3 Customer Relationship Management

Customer service system

The Company adheres to the concept of “providing customers with more convenient and safe services” and
consistently follows the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests. It
has formulated the Customer Complaint Handling Procedure, listened to customer feedback, and employed various
methods, including proactive communication, establishing complaint channels, and conducting satisfaction surveys, to
continuously enhance customer service effectiveness.

DR
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Customer Communication
e  Adopt multiple methods
of communication with
customers, including
customer survey, regular
quarterly/annual business

12N A

Customer Complaint
Establish customer complaint e
channels and formulate the
Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure, handle and feed
back customer complaints in a

&
Customer Satisfaction Survey
Carry out satisfaction surveys
on a sampling basis annually
and formulate an improvement

plan according to the survey
results. Satisfaction Survey.

reviews, technical seminar
and training.

timely manner.

The Company maintains smooth customer complaint channels and has formulated the Customer Complaint Handling
Rules to standardize the process and response measures for customer complaint and the implementation of corrective
and preventative measures. Customers may make a complaint and give feedback to the Company through e-mail,
hotline, letter, and other channels. During the Reporting Period, the Company received 4 complaints from customers,
all of which were properly handled and resolved to the satisfaction of the customers.
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Occurrence of a Complaint

Normally, communicate and confirm with the customer
within 24 hours after the occurrence of a complaint and
give a preliminary reply.

Investigation into Failure Causes

Complaints requiring product failure analysis will
be submitted to relevant departments for handling.
Corrective and preventive measures will be proposed
according to the investigation results and a reply will be
given to customers.

Prevention and Correction

Supervise the implementation of corrective and
preventive measures, and verify the correction
results by regularly sorting out and analyzing relevant
information fed back by customers.

The Company conducts customer satisfaction surveys on a regular basis. In 2023, the Company carried out a
customer satisfaction survey in the form of questionnaire to collect customer opinions. The average score of customer
satisfaction in the questionnaire was 8.97 (full score: 10 points), representing an increase of 0.11 points compared
to 2022. Overall, customer satisfaction has remained relatively stable. The management of the Company reviews the
annual satisfaction survey results, organizes the difference analysis and implements improvement measures, and
feeds corresponding improvement measures and results back to customers.

Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Company strictly complies with the Cyber Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Cryptography
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes, and
other laws, regulations, and provisions and has developed information security management rules such as the
Information Security System Manual and the Statement of Applicability (SOA). Meanwhile, we continuously optimize our
organizational structure and management processes. We implement measures such as organizing centralized learning
for employees, conducting publicity and warning education, and ensuring the implementation of relevant measures to
continuously enhance their awareness and further strengthen the protection and control of data and information, so as
to prevent any incidents of unauthorized disclosure.

The Company established the Information Security Committee, which is fully responsible for the information security
protection work of the Company. The Company has established an Information Security Management System (ISMS),
which controls information security risks from information asset management, personnel security, physical control,
logic control, and other aspects to ensure information security and is ISO 27001 certified (valid until February 2025). In
2023, the Company did not experience any complaints or incidents related to the infringement of customer privacy or
loss of customer data.
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ISMS Structure

[ V] President As the top manager of ISMS, take overall control of information
management.
TI—
R N It is composed of management representatives and department heads to
— Information Security study and approve the Company’s supervision rules and regulations on
- Committee information security and to supervise the duty performance of relevant
departments.
L —

Information Security W|th.|ts members.fro.n.w the Information Technology Depart(nent,

Working G Quality and Reliability Assurance Department, Compliance

ONKINCECUE Department, etc. of the Company, it is responsible for the
establishment, implementation, and daily operation of the ISMS.

Hua Hong Semiconductor’s Key Initiatives in Information Security in 2023

Special inspection
of information
security

Emergency
response and

coverage of
sensitive time
periods

Establishment

of information
"""""""" security system
protection

In 2023, the Company carried out a series of trainings in relation to information security protection in various
production and operation bases to enhance employees’ knowledge and capabilities in preventing information leaks
and strengthen their ability to respond effectively. By doing so, we have built a strong workforce that serves as a solid
foundation for ensuring information security.
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ISMS Training 2023Q1 8,233
ISMS Training 2023Q2 6,554
ISMS Training 2023Q3 6,476
ISMS Training 2023Q4 . : . 6,919
Confidentiality and Information Security U D eI el) 22

Compliance Training 6,802
Enterprise Information Security and

Trade Secret Protection Training 1,044

Responsible Marketing

Integrity, accuracy, and fact-based communication and promotion are the company's responsibilities towards its
customers. The Company strictly abides by the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and other laws and regulations. We execute product label management in
accordance with compliant procedures and establish unified and regulated product labeling standards with our
customers. We ensure compliance awareness is integrated throughout the whole process of contract formulation,
business development, and both internal and external marketing activities, thereby eliminating the possibility of
improper marketing due to subjective factors.

No incidents of violations concerning the use of labels and promotional information occurred within the Company
during the Reporting Period.

Responsible Supply Chain  Through multi-dimensional risk assessment, multi-channel research, scientific planning,
and categorization, the Group has made every effort to promote supply chain
management. For example, 69 suppliers of raw materials/equipment/components were
audited.

Conflict Minerals A total of 11 suppliers were involved in the due diligence, covering 100% of suppliers
that are involved in “conflict minerals”. No supplier was found to be involved in “conflict
minerals” during the due diligence. The suppliers who do not use conflict minerals
account for 100%, as verified by the third-party organization.

Economic Performance Social contribution per share for 2023 was RMB3.59.

5.1 Responsible Value Chain

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

The Company primarily relies on suppliers of silicon wafers, chemicals, and gases. The Company is committed to
reducing supply chain risks by complying with industry standards of conduct, such as the Code of Conduct of the
Responsible Business Alliance (RBA), and formulating supply chain management systems, such as the Supplier
Risk Identification, Planning, and Control Management Procedure and the Social Responsibility Requirements for
Suppliers. By leveraging the Group’s advantages of integration, the Company conducts multi-dimensional supplier risk
assessment, multi-channel research, scientific planning, and categorisation.

Silicon wafers 16
Chemicals 54
Gases 33
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Cooperation with suppliers that demonstrate good social responsibility performance is a prerequisite for the Company
to achieve stable production and operation. The Company has established a management system applicable to all
suppliers and covering supplier selection and access, supplier review and evaluation, support for supplier growth, and

supplier elimination.

Supplier selection and
access

Supplier review and
evaluation

Support for supplier growth

Supplier elimination

The Company formulated the Social Responsibility Requirements for Suppliers

in accordance with the RBA and put forward requirements for suppliers in five
aspects: labor, health and safety, environmental protection, business ethics, and
management system;

Suppliers with outstanding performance in terms of environment, labor, and ethics
will be preferred in supply and procurement;

In addition to requiring all cooperating suppliers to comply with the Social
Responsibility Requirements for Suppliers, the Company also requires its upstream
suppliers to recognize and manage in accordance with the Social Responsibility
Requirements for Suppliers.

The Company has formulated the Supplier Risk Identification, Planning, and
Control Management Procedure to carry out comprehensive evaluation and control
on the environmental and social risks of suppliers every year, so as to identify

the environmental and social risks of suppliers and formulate corresponding
countermeasures;

Suppliers with major violation records are required to carry out a third-party risk
audit in terms of their social responsibilities and provide the certificate of passing
the audit, or they may be disqualified as suppliers;

The Company'’s anti-corruption policy covers all suppliers, requiring them to comply
with anti-corruption requirements and confirming their compliance at the time of
annual evaluation.

The Company carries out regular publicity trainings on the theme of “CSR” and “RBA
Code of Conduct” for suppliers every year, including environment, labor, ethics, etc.;
The supplier training program carried out in 2023 covered suppliers of silicon wafers,
chemicals, gas, target materials, and other categories. The Company conducts on-
site audits and assessments and collaborates with relevant departments to organize
presentations for suppliers, ensuring that they are aware of the Company’s product
quality requirements and standards, while providing technical support to suppliers
to help them improve their product quality.

The Company urges the suppliers with poor performance in terms of environment,
labor, and ethics to rectify and confirm that their rectification meets the requirements.
Suppliers who fail to meet the rectification requirements will be disqualified.

In addition, the manufacturing process of semiconductor silicon wafers requires a significant amount of water
resources and semiconductor manufacturing is associated with high levels of pollution. Failure to address issues
such as pollution emissions and wastewater treatment during the production process further threatens water resource
sustainability. Therefore, the Company has undertaken actions and performance assessments related to water
resource management for its silicon wafer suppliers to mitigate the impact of their production operations on water
sources. In 2023, the Company achieved a 100% coverage rate for water resource investigations conducted on its

silicon wafer suppliers.
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Overview of the Social Responsibility Requirements for Suppliers of Hua Hong Semiconductor

7 {1

Free choice of occupation
Youth employees

Salaries and benefits °
Humane treatment

Free association

Labor e Working hours e Non-discrimination
M e Occupational safety e Hygiene management e Public health, canteen, and
— e  Emergency plan e  Physically demanding work dormitories
) e (QOccupational injuries and e  Machine-related protection ¢  Communication of health
Occupation :
diseases and safety
and Health

Environmental

Environment-related
permits and reports
Preventing pollution and
saving resources

Solid waste °
Air emissions
Material restrictions °

Management of water
resources

Energy consumption and
greenhouse gas emissions

Protection e  Hazardous substances
e QOperation with integrity e |Intellectual property rights e  Responsible procurement
e No illegitimate interests e  Fair trade, advertisement, of minerals
. Information disclosure and competition e  Privacy
Business ) o ) "
Integrity e  Confidentiality on identities
°® e  Duties and responsibilities ¢  Performance indicators withe  Employee feedback,
._Tq of management implementation plans and participation, and
;;; e |egal and customer measures complaints
Management requirements e  Training e  Review and assessment
System Risk assessment and e Communication e  Corrective measures

management

In 2023, the Company further enhanced its automotive electronic supply chain management system, fostering
collaborative cooperation among upstream and downstream enterprises within the ecosystem, with an aim to establish
a reliable and efficient automotive electronic chip supply chain.
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* [ntroduced 28 new domestic e Conducted more than 500 e Made every effort to promote
suppliers to strengthen the investigations on related supply chain diversification,
cooperation with excellent enterprises, including more than resulting in an increase of 20.2%
domestic suppliers in width and 100 on-site visits, and established in the diversification rate of “8-inch
depth. contacts with nearly 20 domestic + 12-inch” raw material suppliers

key suppliers. to 65.4% as compared with that of
2022.

e Conducted water resource
management assessment on its e Increased the diversification rate
silicon wafer suppliers with 100% of 8-inch raw material suppliers
coverage. by 20.1% to 72%, of which the
diversification rate of target
materials and silicon wafers
exceeded 90%.

e |ncreased the diversification rate
of 12-inch raw material suppliers
by 20.4% to 55%

The external environment affects the stability of raw material supply. To mitigate supply chain risks, the Company has
implemented various measures to improve the percentage of raw materials purchased from local suppliers through
on-site research and increased sourcing efforts. In addition, the Company has established an effective emergency
response system. To ensure sustained, safe, and stable operations, the Company has taken various measures,
including improving equipment self-maintenance capabilities, cultivating more sources of income while reducing
expenditure, cutting costs while increasing efficiency, closely monitoring market demand, continuously optimizing its
product portfolio, and further enhancing the production flexibility of its advanced manufacturing platforms.

Responsible Minerals Management

“Conflict Minerals” are obtained by local armed militias by way of long-time forced labor, child labor, and damaging
the environment and ecology. Such metals are also the main capital source of illegal armed organizations. According
to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and research reports of certain international
nongovernmental organizations, such minerals are likely to be used for electronic and electrical products, such as
mobile phones and computers, in ICT industries.

Metal mineral resources such as gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), tin (Sn) and cobalt (Co) will be involved in the
Company'’s production and operation process. The Company has formulated the Conflict Minerals Management Policy
in accordance with the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, to avoid the procurement and
financing of minerals that have significant negative social and environmental impacts.

In addition to self-management, the Company carries out traceability and due diligence on its suppliers in accordance
with internationally recognized investigation frameworks such as the Responsible Minerals Initiative (RMI) and the
Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) Due Diligence Guidance for Responsible Supply
Chains of Minerals from Conflict-Affected and High-Risk Areas and requires all suppliers to promise not to purchase
“conflict minerals” in conflict-affected and high-risk areas, so as to ensure the safety of minerals in the supply chain.
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OﬁConflict Minerals Management Policy of Hua Hong Semiconductor

The Company takes global social and environmental responsibility as its goal and follows green procurement
principles and has promised to undertake the following social and environmental responsibilities in its metal supply
chain:

1. Suppliers whose raw materials contain gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), and tin (Sn) are required to
purchase materials according to the Responsible Minerals Policy, while suppliers whose raw materials contain
cobalt (Co) are required to disclose the smelters of cobalt.

2. We undertake to cause our suppliers to provide the declaration that they do not use gold (Au), tantalum (Ta),
tungsten (W), tin (Sn), and cobalt (Co) from “conflict minerals” and to issue the Conflict Minerals Reporting
Template (CMRT) and the Extended Minerals Reporting Template (EMRT) to suppliers as part of our conflict
minerals investigation questionnaire.

More than 50% of gold, tin, tantalum and tungsten used by the Company in its production process are from Asia, with
over 33% from Europe, and the remaining portion from the Americas. Two-thirds of the cobalt used comes from Asia,
while one third is from Europe. During the Reporting Period, none of the gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), or tin
(Sn) used by the Company was from the regions with armed conflict.

Types and Sources of Minerals Used

Gold (Au), tin (Sn),
tantalum (Ta) and tungsten (W)

Cobalt (Co)

T Asia Europe [ The Americas I Asia Europe

In 2023, the Company conducted conflict minerals questionnaire surveys on 11 suppliers involving minerals, achieving
a 100% response rate and coverage. The Company requires its suppliers to trace the origin of minerals and provide
information about smelters. If it is determined that the conflict minerals used by a supplier originate from illegal sources
in conflict-affected and high-risk areas, the Company discontinues the procurement of non-compliant materials from
that supplier and requires that supplier to rectify within a specified timeframe, ensuring that both the supplier and its
upstream raw materials comply with the Company's conflict minerals management requirements.

In 2023, no major issues concerning child labor, human rights violations, forced labor, ecological damage, etc. were
found during the supply chain due diligence. 100% of the Company’s suppliers do not use conflict minerals, as verified
by the third-party organization.
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5.2 Anti-Corruption and Bribery

The Company is committed to fostering a corporate culture of integrity, honesty, fairness, and transparency. It strictly
complies with the laws and regulations, such as the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery, as well as relevant provisions, and has formulated
the Undertaking System on Anti-Corruption and Business Ethics, the Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery Policy, and
other internal management regulations, specifying that all partners and suppliers shall sign the Undertaking Against
Commercial Bribery and that all employees shall sign the Undertaking on Business Ethics.

All employees (including part-time employees), senior management, and Board members are required to abide by
relevant laws and regulations and practice and behave with integrity, diligence, and self-discipline. Corruption and

bribery in all forms are prohibited, including:

Anti-Corruption and Anti-bribery Policy of Hua Hong Semiconductor

pro

pr
PO

pro
ca

| |

The Company is committed to creating a sound business ethics environment by regularly introducing warning
articles and cases in internal publications and providing training activities on anti-corruption and business ethics.
The Company focuses on creating a strong foundation for an ethical culture, nurturing the values of integrity and
ethics among its employees. In May 2023, Signing Ceremonies for the “Undertaking on Business Ethics” were held in
Shanghai and Wuxi, targeting the department heads and above, to further reinforce the commitment to ethical conduct
and create a positive and transparent atmosphere within the Company.
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The Company supports employee self-supervision and reporting to maintain a clean and ethical working environment.
It provides defined whistle-blowing channels, including E-mail, hotline, and mailbox, to allow employees to make real-
name or anonymous complaints and whistle-blowing. The Company comprehensively handles whistle-blowing calls
and letters at any time to achieve early detection, resolution, and control, as well as appropriate treatment.

The Company has established comprehensive business ethics supervision and whistle-blowing case handling
procedures. Whistle-blowing is thoroughly investigated and evidence is collected, and after review, feedback is
provided to the whistleblower regarding the course of action taken. In terms of whistleblower protection, all information
related to whistleblowers will be kept strictly confidential. The Company protects the employees or external personnel
from unfair treatment such as dismissal, demotion, suspension, intimidation, harassment, or any other form of retaliation
for whistle-blowing through legal channels.

During the Reporting Period, no corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, or money-laundering event has occurred to the
Company, nor has any litigation case arising from the above matters occurred.

5.3 Risk Management

The Company has established the Rules about Comprehensive Control of Risks that covers all business processes,
and conducted regular identification, analysis, and assessment of risk lists to form a long-term mechanism. The
Company employs a layered and business line-based approach to prevent its major risks in various areas and
implements the control and management of major risks in a targeted manner.

At the organizational level, under the authorization of the Audit Committee and management, the Company
has established a risk management organizational structure that aligns with the latest “Three-Line Model” of
risk management by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA). This structure incorporates the Company’s specific
characteristics and clearly defines the division of responsibilities for addressing major risks, including the responsible
leaders, leading departments, and their respective roles. The internal audit department reports annually to the Audit
Committee on key aspects of internal controls, risk management priorities, risk assessments, and corresponding
control measures, to ensure a closed-loop approach to addressing major risks.
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Hua Hong Semiconductor’s Three Lines of Defence for Risk Management in the Economic Sector

Organisation Governing Body (accountable to stakeholders, with supervisory responsibilities)

Board of Directors ‘_‘

I Audit Committee Third Line

President/the -~
management

F S

Internal Audit Department

A 4

( N
Human Finance Information Quality & Reliability Compliance .
Resources Department Technology Assurance Department Second Line
Department Department Department
- J
( N
Eg“fgggﬁ: China Sales International Sales Sales Service First Line
Factory D 9 9 Department Department Department
epartment
Market Business " . ) Office of the
Development Development Ag?'gimjﬁ“ Safe[t)y and SOCH Board of
Department Department P spartmen Directors
i Purchasing, Technical
Planning Logistics Research and
Department and Testing Development
Department Department
- J
Functions of the First Line: to provide products/services to customers and manage risks;
Functions of the Second Line: to provide expertise, support, monitoring, and challenge on risk-related matters;
Functions of the Third Line: to provide independent and objective confirmation and advice on all matters related

to the achievement of objectives.

Based on the “three-line model” of risk management and taking into account the principle of comprehensiveness and
importance, the Company continuously optimizes its risk map by consolidating certain similar risk factors, resulting in
the identification of 59 key risk factors. The Company also comprehensively prevents and supervises its internal and
external risks. In 2023, the Company conducted annual risk assessments at its Shanghai and Wuxi bases. Through
methods such as questionnaires, interviews, seminars, on-site inspections, and data analysis, the Company identified
and analysed risk areas, with focuses on R&D, product quality, supply chain management, and talent reserves and
development, to generate an annual risk management report.

Risk Management System of Hua Hong Semiconductor

: : : Communication and
Risk reporting

We identify and analyze risk areas We implement a quarterly risk communi- From time to time, we organize risk line
through methods such as questionnaires, cation and reporting mechanism, where management meetings, conduct risk
interviews, and seminars and score the each business unit collects and reports training, and communicate risk issues
risk areas to generate an annual risk risk events within their respective areas across business units and at the

management report. on a quarterly basis or as needed. company level.
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Strategy

Operation

Environment
and Safety

Strategic planning

Research and
development

Product quality

Talent reserve and
development

Supply chain

Information security

Environment

Safety check

The Company formulated strategic objectives from top to bottom and
appropriately deconstructed and implemented such objectives in specific
business models of corporate operation, to ensure the accomplishment of
strategic objectives.

The Company continuously improves the R&D project management
system, conducts comprehensive monitoring on R&D project initiation,
implementation, and post-evaluation, constantly enhances the ability
of project managers, and develops new ethnologies and products with
commercial value in a timely manner.

Relying on the production quality system, we comprehensively implement
excellent performance management, strictly adhere to the Zero Defects
concept and ensure the delivery of green and high-quality products in

a timely manner to ensure the quality stability of all products, especially
automotive-grade products, and continuously improve customer satisfaction.

We set up the talent resume database, carried out a talent inventory,
continuously explored recruitment channels, optimized the salary structure,
and improved the supporting welfare policies to comprehensively enhance
the Company’s attraction and employee satisfaction.

The Company enhances its right to speak in the industry supply chain
through its technological advantages, signs medium- and long-term strategic
agreements with suppliers, sets a safe inventory level for each production
material, regularly reviews the rationality of the safe inventory level, makes
timely adjustments according to market changes, and continuously evaluates
suppliers’ capacity and product quality to ensure stability of the supply
chain.

The Company has established its information security framework and
management policy; implements the risk evaluation procedure for information
security every year; and continuously monitors all kinds of key information
through the data protection system (DLP), so as to maintain the optimal
interests of the Company, its shareholders, its customers, its suppliers, and
its employees.

We design management procedures based on our observation, assessment,
and control of environmental factors and list major environmental factors.

Safety checks focusing on troubleshooting and fault diagnosis are carried
out continuously and regularly.

Occupational health We have developed the goals, indicators, and program management forms

for our environmental and occupational health and safety programs, in
accordance with the Company’s established goals, indicators, and program
management procedures for health, safety, and environment (“HSE”).
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5.4 Compliance in Business Operation

The Company respects and complies with applicable local laws and regulations. For details of specific laws,
regulations, and related policies, please refer to the “List of Laws, Regulations, and Relevant Policies Observed
by the Company” in the Appendix. The Company closely monitors the promulgation and amendment of laws and
regulations, identifies regulations relevant to its operations and production, and promptly improves internal policies
and management systems to ensure that its operations are in compliance with laws and regulations. The Company has
established an internal audit department, which conducts regular audits of the supply chain procurement, business
ethics, anti-corruption, and other areas to ensure the compliance of business activities.

5.5 Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

The Company has established various regulations and systems, including the Articles of Association, Rules of
Procedure for Shareholders’ General Meeting, and Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors, in accordance with
laws and regulations, such as the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Securities Law of the
People’s Republic of China. In 2023, the Company was listed on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
To comply with legal requirements, such as the Guidelines for Corporate Governance of Listed Companies and the
Administrative Measures for the Disclosure of Information of Listed Companies, the Company updated the Articles of
Association and other corporate governance rules, ensuring standardized operations within the Company.

The Company has established a well-structured governance structure consisting of the general meeting of
shareholders, the Board, their respective specialized committees (including the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, and Nomination Committee), and the management personnel, leading to a governance mechanism of
checks and balances where powers and responsibilities of the organs of control, decision-making, and execution are
clearly defined and well-coordinated with each other.
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7 Directors on the Board 5 general meetings held
A total of 18 proposals considered
Among them, 3 are independent Directors 10 meetings of the Board held

A total of 31 proposals considered

In terms of the regulation of information disclosure, the Company has formulated the Information Disclosure
Management System and other management documents to ensure the truthful, accurate, timely, fair, and complete
disclosure of relevant information, thereby ensuring that stakeholders have access to the necessary information.
During the Reporting Period, the Company promptly reported relevant matters and ensured the quality of information
disclosure in accordance with the requirements of information disclosure standards.

Protection of Investors’ Rights and Interests

As a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the STAR Market of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Company strictly complies with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance of Hong
Kong, the Main Board Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Administrative Measures for the Disclosure
of Information of Listed Companies of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC), the Rules Governing the
Listing of Stocks on the Science and Technology Innovation Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange, and other laws,
regulations, and relevant policy requirements. The Company has established an investor relations management team
to maintain communication and interaction with various stakeholders, ensuring that investors’ reasonable demands are
addressed.

The Company communicates with the capital market through multiple channels about the Company’s business
operation and management status, financial position, product technology, major issues, and other information, based
on the principle of “equal treatment of all investors”, the requirement on “compliance information disclosure”, and
the standard of “honest and trustworthy operation and interactive communication”. The Company also proactively
discloses information related to the Company of concern by investors and fully protects the legitimate rights and
interests of investors.
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Investor Communication Channel

General
meeting of
shareholders

Official
website
and WeChat
account of the
Company .. N\

Regular
report

[ Direct
hotline of
investors

Online/offline
communication
meeting

’ \
Special Email SSE
for investors e-Interaction

To ensure the protection of shareholders’ rights and interests, the Company has formulated reasonable profit
distribution policies and dividend plan to proactively return to shareholders and provide sustainable and steady returns

to investors.

In 2023, the Company held one annual general meeting and four special general meetings of shareholders, at which
18 resolutions were passed by voting. All shareholders of the Company were invited to participate in the above
meetings, including all small and medium-sized investors, ensuring the participation rights of small and medium-sized
investors. Furthermore, the Company held four performance exchange meetings during the Reporting Period.

6 Industry and Community

Main Progress in 2023

Measures

Achievements

Industry Development

e Held the “Core Connectivity, Vehicle Connectivity, and Chain
Connectivity” Automotive Chip Ecosystem Cooperation
Conference to promote the cooperation and high-quality
development of the automotive chip ecosystem

Volunteer Service and Charity e Conducted welfare visits to nursing homes for 18 consecutive

years
e Organized four sessions of integrated circuit-themed science
popularization activities
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6.1 Industry Development
The Company actively participated in the industry co-development activities to facilitate high-quality development of
the IC industry and actively attended the industry summit to jointly promote high-quality development of the industry.

In 2023, the Company held the “Core Connectivity, Vehicle Connectivity, and Chain Connectivity” Automotive Chip
Ecosystem Cooperation Conference, joining forces with nearly a hundred businesses in the integrated circuit,
automotive components, and assembled vehicles sectors to promote cooperation of the automotive chip ecosystem
and foster collaborative industry development under the spirit of “identifying opportunities in industrial development by
amassing the power of technical innovation”.

6.2 Volunteer Service and Charity

In order to enhance safety awareness of community residents, for six years the Company has provided the “First
Aid Course for Accidents” in the community where the headquarters operates, including First Aid knowledge and
cardiopulmonary resuscitation.

The Company is enthusiastic in public welfare undertaking and has organized employees to regularly visit the elderly
in the community nursing home every year, to chitchat, make wontons, and carry out activities, so as to entertain and
care for the elderly. The Company has been visiting the Meixin Nursing Home for 18 consecutive years, demonstrating
its commitment to volunteer service. Furthermore, the Company encourages employees to utilize their mornings by
volunteering at community kindergartens, to actively embody the “Hua Hong 520 Spirit” through practical actions.

The Company is dedicated to youth education. During the Zhangjing Science Hall Science Festival themed
“Enlightening with Light, Exploring with Children (JA¥E ¥, #RZ&'E'77)", the Company organized four sessions of
integrated circuit-themed science popularization activities. Through informative lectures and educational courses,
over 130 children were introduced to the process of chip manufacturing and the everyday applications of chips in
daily life. The Company also donated school bags and sporting goods to Lada Primary School in Temuli Town, Butuo
County, Liangshan Yi Autonomous Prefecture, Sichuan Province *(PUJII%& R IL#HIE B AN HE SRS /R B S hy iz /N E8),
and the students. In 2023, the Company launched a paired-up assistance in poverty alleviation program and donated
RMB50,000 to Yougiao Village, Chongming District, Shanghai.
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7.1 Quantitative Performance
Environment

Total air emissions 10,000 m?® 2,319,307 2,391,024 2,747,929
Nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions Kg 36,857 32,650 33,719
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions Kg 2,239 3,546.12 5,251.56
Total wastewater discharge 10,000 m?® 704 832 898
Total hazardous waste' Ton 17,363 20,385 20,797
Hazardous waste produced per unit
output Kg/8-inch wafers 4.96 4.88 5.29
Total non-hazardous waste? Ton 8,981 9,864 9,269
Non-hazardous waste produced per
unit output Kg/8-inch wafers 2.57 2.36 2.36
Total electricity consumed’ MWh 867,682 954,667 1,030,352
Natural gas consumed’ m? 11,456,569 10,530,287 11,048,312
Gasoline consumed! L / / 43,949
Diesel consumed' L / / 15,911
Heat purchased! GJ / / 134,940
Hydrogen' m? / / 1,149,860
Integrated energy consumption® MWh 991,663 1,065,002 1,168,170
Integrated energy consumed
per unit output MWh/8-inch wafers 0.28 0.25 0.30
Total water consumed* m? 15,707,212 18,010,226 19,076,734
Of which: Water from municipal water
supply me 8,928,040 10,284,063 11,127,266
Wastewater reused m? 6,788,287 7,726,163 7,949,468
Water consumed per unit product® mé/8-inch wafers 2.55 2.46 2.83
Recycled/reused water m? 86,119,337 107,163,560 126,544,660
Total packaging materials used for
the shipment of finished products Ton 253.5 313.32 336.92
Packaging materials used for the
shipment of per unit finished
product Kg/8-inch wafers 0.07 0.07 0.09
Recycled packaging materials used
for the shipment of finished
products Ton 48.5 54.9 66.33
GHG emissions® Ton of CO, equivalent 713,649 497,938 537,070
Of which: Direct GHG emissions Ton of CO, equivalent 24,803 24,877 22,881
Indirect GHG emissions’ Ton of CO, equivalent 697,899 473,060 514,189
GHG emissions per unit output Ton of CO, equivalent/
8-inch wafers 0.21 0.12 0.14
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Notes:

1

In 2023, the expansion project of the Wuxi Production Base was put into operation, resulting in an increase in energy
consumption, waste gas, waste water, hazardous and non-hazardous waste generation.

Non-hazardous waste include sludge produced in wastewater treatment and general waste.

Integrated energy consumption included electricity purchased, natural gas, gasoline, diesel, heat purchased, and hydrogen.
Total water consumption = water consumption from municipal water supply + wastewater reuse.

In calculation, water consumed per unit product only includes water from the municipal water supply.

GHG emissions are calculated in accordance with the GB/T 32150 General Guideline for Calculation and Reporting of GHG
Emissions from Industrial Enterprises and the GB/T 32151 Requirements on Calculation and Reporting of GHG Emissions
published by the Standardization Administration of China.

In 2022 and 2023, the indirect GHG emissions in Shanghai and Wuxi plants were calculated according to the Guidelines for
Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions in Shanghai (Trial) (Hu Fa Gai Huan Zi [2012] No. 180) and the Notice
on the 2023-2025 Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emission Reporting Management in Power Generation Industry, respectively,

among which, Shanghai plant uses a default value of electricity emission factor of 4.2tCO,/10*kWh, and Wuxi plant uses the
national average grid emission factor of 0.5703tCO,/MWh when calculating.



Employment and Labor Practice

Total number of full-time employees

Including:

Number of male employees

Number of female employees

Number of employees working under a
labor contract with the employer

Number of employees working under a
labor contract with a labor dispatch
company

Part-time employees

Number of employees aged under 30

Number of employees aged between
30 and 50

Number of employees aged above 50

Number of employees from Mainland China

Number of foreign employees

Occupational disease incidence
Number of work-related fatalities
Percentage of work-related fatalities

Lost days

due to work injury

Average training hours completed per employee

Including:

Including:

Average training hours completed per
non-management employee

Average training hours completed per
management member

Average training hours completed per
female employee

Average training hours completed per male
employee

Percentage of employees trained

The percentage of non-management
employees trained

Percentage of management members
trained

Percentage of female employees trained

Percentage of male employees trained
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Product Responsibility and Customer Service

Performance Indicators Unit 2021 2022 2023
Product Responsibility and Customer Service
Product return rate Y% 0.05 0.11 0.087
Percentage of products sold subject to recalls for

safety and health reasons % 0 0 0

Customer Service
Number of complaints received in relation to products

and services Case 0 0 4
Performance for percentage of customer complaints
resolved % / / 100%

Supply Chain Management

Performance Indicators Unit 2021 2022 2023
Total number of suppliers’ Supplier 545 551 561
Total number of local suppliers Supplier 410 413 420
Total number of foreign suppliers Supplier 136 138 141
Number of suppliers assessed? Supplier 115 112 114
Number of suppliers subject to rectification Supplier 0 0 0
Percentage of raw and auxiliary material suppliers

signing the Environmental Protection Undertaking % 100 100 100
Percentage of raw materials purchased from local

suppliers® % 29 31 32

Notes:

1 The reviewed data for the last three years for the relevant performance indicators for the total number of suppliers is based on
the data disclosed in the table of the annual report.

2 The number of suppliers which were assessed by the Company in terms of labor, health and safety, environment, and business
ethics.

3 Raw materials purchased include silicon slices, quartz, target materials, gases, chemicals, and other raw materials for
production.

Anti-corruption

Performance Indicators Unit 2021 2022 2023

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period Case 0 0 0
Total hours of anti-corruption training received by
employees Hour / / 2,542

Community Investment

Performance Indicators Unit 2021 2022 2023
Number of employees participating in volunteer

services Person 1,324 4,189 1,108
Total hours of volunteer activities Hour 1,986 6,283 1,364

Community investment RMB / / 50,000
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Economic Performance

Social contribution per share’

Note:

RMB 3.31 5.46 3.59

1 Social contribution per share = (net profit of the Company + tax paid to the state during the year + salaries paid to employees
+ interest on borrowings paid to banks and other creditors + value created for other stakeholders, e.g. donations — other social
costs due to environmental pollution)/total number of shares of the Company.

7.2 List of Laws, Regulations and Relevant Policies Observed by the Company

Environmental
Protection

Product and
Service

Information
Security and
Privacy
Protection

Intellectual

Property
Protection

Employee
Employment

Occupational
Health and
Safety

Corporate
Governance

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Urban and Rural Planning Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Marine Environment Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, etc.

Accounting Law of the People’s Republic of China, Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Constitution of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product
Quality, Customs Law of the People’s Republic of China, Metrology Law of the People’s Republic

of China, Foreign Trade Law of the People’s Republic of China, Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Regulation concerning the Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemicals (“REACH”), Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE), Restriction
of Hazardous Substances (“‘RoHS”), etc.

Cyber Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, Cryptography Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes, Personal Information
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China

Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, etc.

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Employment Contracts, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Protection of Women's Rights and Interests, Employment Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China, Civil Code of the
People’s Republic of China, Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Measures for the Administration of Health Insurance, Measures for
Application for and Payment of Unemployment Insurance Money, etc.

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances, etc.

Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China,
etc.
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7.3 Benchmarking Index
The Hong Kong Stock Exchange's Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (effective from 31
December 2023)

Part B: Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

Mandatory Disclosure Items Section in the Report
Governance Structure 1. ESG Management System
Reporting Principles 7.5 Reporting Principles
Reporting Boundary 7.4 Preparation of the Report

Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions

Aspects, General Disclosures and KPlIs Disclosure Section

Subject Area A. Environmental
Aspect A1. Emissions

General Disclosure A1 2.5 Emissions and Waste Management
KPI A1.1 7.1 Quantitative Performance
KPI A1.2 2.5 Emissions and Waste Management

2.3 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
7.1 Quantitative Performance

KPI A1.3 7.1 Quantitative Performance
KPI A1.4 7.1 Quantitative Performance
KPI A1.5 2.5 Emissions and Waste Management
1.2 ESG management strategies and targets
KPI A1.6 2.5 Emissions and Waste Management

1.2 ESG management strategies and targets

Aspect A2. Use of Resources

General Disclosure A2 2.2 Energy Management
2.4 Water Resources Management
KPI A2.1 7.1 Quantitative Performance
KPI A2.2 7.1 Quantitative Performance
KPI A2.3 2.2 Energy Management
1.2 ESG management strategies and targets
KPI A2.4 2.4 Water Resources Management
1.2 ESG management strategies and targets
KPI A2.5 7.1 Quantitative Performance
Aspect A3. Environment and Natural Resources
General Disclosure A3 2.2 Energy Management
2.4 Water Resources Management
KPI A3.1 2.2 Energy Management

2.4 Water Resources Management

Aspect A4. Coping with Climate Change
General Disclosure A4 2.3 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
KPI A4.1 2.3 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
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Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Section

Subject Area B. Social Employment and Labour Practices
Aspect B1. Employment

General Disclosure B1 3.1 Employee Interests and Benefits

KPI B1.1 7.1 Quantitative Performance

KPI B1.2 3.3 Employee Development and Training
Aspect B2. Health and Safety

General Disclosure B2 3.2 Employee Health and Safety

KPI B2.1 7.1 Quantitative Performance

KPI B2.2 7.1 Quantitative Performance

KPI B2.3 3.2 Employee Health and Safety

Aspect B3. Development and Training

General Disclosure B3 3.3 Employee Development and Training
KPI B3.1 7.1 Quantitative Performance

KPI B3.2 7.1 Quantitative Performance

Aspect B4. Labor Standards

General Disclosure B4 3.1 Employee Interests and Benefits

KPI B4.1 3.1 Employee Interests and Benefits

KPI B4.2 3.1 Employee Interests and Benefits

Subject Area B. Social Operating Practices
Aspect B5. Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure B5 5.1 Responsible Value Chain

KPI B5.1 7.1 Quantitative Performance

KPI B5.2 5.1 Responsible Value Chain

KPI B5.3 5.1 Responsible Value Chain

KPI B5.4 5.1 Responsible Value Chain

Aspect B6. Product Responsibility

General Disclosure B6 4.2 Product Quality and Safety
4.3 Customer Relationship Management

KPI B6.1 7.1 Quantitative Performance

KPI B6.2 4.3 Customer Relationship Management
7.1 Quantitative Performance

KPI B6.3 4.3 Customer Relationship Management

KPI B6.4 4.3 Customer Relationship Management

KPI B6.5 4.3 Customer Relationship Management
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General Disclosure B7 5.2 Anti-corruption and Bribery

KPI B7.1 7.1 Quantitative Performance
KPI B7.2 5.2 Anti-corruption and Bribery
KPI B7.3 5.2 Anti-corruption and Bribery

General Disclosure B8
KPI B8.1
KPI B8.2

6.2 Voluntary Service and Public Charity
6.2 Voluntary Service and Public Charity
7.1 Quantitative Performance

Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on the STAR Market of Shanghai Stock Exchange (revised in August 2023)

4.41 General 1 ESG Management System
4.4.2 Environmental protection responsibilities 2 Environmental Responsibilities
4.4.2(1)  Complying with environmental laws, regulations and industry 2.1 Environmental Management System
standards
4.42(2)  Formulating and implementing its environmental plan 2.1 Environmental Management System
4.4.2(3) Efficiently use natural resources such as energy, water and 2.4 Resource Management
raw materials
4.4.2(4) Dispose of pollutants in accordance with law 2.5 Emissions and Waste Management
4.4.2(5) Building and operating effective pollution control facilities 2.1 Environmental Management System
2.5 Emissions and Waste Management
4.42(6) Fully paying environmental taxes 2.1 Environmental Management System
4.4.2(7)  Ensuring the environmental security of the supply chain 5.1 Responsible Value Chain
4.4.2(8)  Other due environmental responsibilities 2.1 Environmental Management System
443 Production and product safety responsibilities 4 Products and Services
4.4.3(1)  Complying with product safety laws and regulations and 4.2 Product Quality and Safety
industry standards
4.4.3(2) Establishing a safe and reliable production environment and 4.2 Product Quality and Safety
process
4.4.3(3) Establishing product quality and safety protection 4.2 Product Quality and Safety
mechanism and product safety emergency plan
4.4.3(4)  Other due production and product safety responsibilities 4.1 Product R&D and Innovation
4.2 Product Quality and Safety
4.3 Customer Relationship Management
4.4.4 Protection of the rights and interests of employees 3 Employee-Related Responsibilities
4.4.4(1)  Establishing management system on employee employment 3.1 Rights and Benefits of Employees
and dismissal, salary and benefits, social insurance, working
hours and punishment on violations
4.4.4(2) Creating a working environment and supporting safety 3.2 Employee Health and Safety
measures to prevent occupational hazards
4.4.4(3)  Carrying out necessary expertise and vocational skills 3.3 Employee Development and Training
training on employee
4.4.4(4)  Other due responsibilities to protect the rights and interests 3.1 Rights and Benefits of Employees

4.4.5

of employees
Scientific ethics

4.1 Product R&D and Innovation
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Guidelines for the Application of Self-regulatory Rules for Companies Listed on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange No.2 —Voluntary Disclosure of Information (2022 Revision)

(VI)-1 Basic Information on Research 4.1 Product R&D and Innovation, 6.1Industry Development
and Development
(VI)-2 Research and Development 2.6 Green Products, 4.1 Product R&D and Innovation
Feasibility
(VI)-3 Necessary Risk Warning 5.3 Risk Management
(VI)-4 Impact of Research and 2.6 Green Products, 4.1 Product R&D and Innovation
Development on the
Company
(XIV)-1 Environmental Responsibility 2.1 Environmental Management System, 2.2 Energy Management,

2.3 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation, 2.4 Resource
Management, 2.5 Emissions and Waste Management

(XIVv)-2 Employee Protection and 3.1 Employee Interests and Benefits, 3.2 Employee Health and
Development Safety, 3.3 Employee Development and Training
(XIV)-3 Product Safety, Compliance, 4.1 Product Quality and Safety, 5.4 Compliance in Business
Public Welfare Activities Operation, 5.5 Corporate Governance, 6.2 Voluntary Service and
Public Charity
(XIV)-4 Corporate Governance and 5.5 Corporate Governance

investor protection

7.4 Preparation of the Report

This report represents the 8th Environmental, Social and Governance Report of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited,
which disclose the Company's principles, management approaches, initiatives, and achievements regarding ESG
issues in its business operations to investors and other stakeholders.

Scope of the Report

The report covers Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (“Hua Hong Semiconductor” and the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries, and unless otherwise specified, is consistent with the scope of the annual consolidated financial
statements of Hua Hong Semiconductor (stock code: 01347.HK/688347.SH) for the same period.

Reporting Period
The reporting period is from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023. Unless otherwise stated, the data presented in this
report are data for that period.
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Basis for preparation

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
(effective from 31 December 2023) of the Listing Rules published by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with reference
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on the STAR Market of Shanghai Stock Exchange (revised in August
2023) and the “Guidelines for the Application of Self-regulatory Rules for Companies Listed on the STAR Market of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange No.2 —Voluntary Disclosure of Information (2022 Revision)”.

Data Declaration
The data and cases presented in the report are based on the official records of the Company’s actual operations.

All financial data in the report are denominated in RMB. In case of any discrepancies between the financial data in this
report and the Company’s annual financial report, the latter shall prevail.

Access to the Report
This report is released in electronic form on such platforms as the e Company’s official website
(https://www.huahonggrace.com).

Contact Us
For any inquiries on the Report, please contact us through the following methods:

Address: 288 Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai, PRC
Email: IR@nhhgrace.com

7.5 Reporting Principles

e Materiality
The Company identifies the substantive issues in relation to business operation concerned by investors and other
stakeholders as the focus of this Report. The reporting on substantive issues in this Report also focuses on the
industry characteristics and regional characteristics involved in the Company’s operation. The details of analysis
process and results of material issues are set out in the section headed “ESG Management System” of this
Report. In the meantime, this Report highlights the ESG matters that may have significant influence on investors
and other stakeholders.

e Accuracy
Best efforts have been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in the report. Among them, data
caliber, calculation basis, and assumptions have been explained in the calculation of quantitative information, to
ensure that the calculation error range will not cause misleading of information users. For quantitative information
and notes, please refer to the relevant sections in the report.

The Board guarantees that there are no misrepresentations or misleading statements contained in or material
omissions from the report.
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Balance

The Report reflects the objective facts and discloses both positive and negative information related to the
Company impartially. The Company has searched the objects within the scope of this Report through Shanghai
Qingyue Credit Database (data.epmap.org), and did not find any negative events that should be disclosed but
not disclosed during the Reporting Period.

Clarity

This report is published in simplified Chinese. This report contains tables and model diagrams as an aid to
understanding the textual content of this report. To facilitate quicker access to information for stakeholders, this
report provides a table of contents and benchmarking index tables for ESG standards.

Quantitative and consistency

This Report discloses key quantitative performance indicators and historical data as much as possible. The
statistical and disclosure methods of the same indicator in this Report are consistent in different reporting periods;
Any change, where possible, in the statistical and disclosure methods shall be fully explained in the notes to the
Report, so that the stakeholders can conduct meaningful analysis and evaluate the development trend of the
Company's ESG performance level. For details, see the section headed “Quantitative Performance” of the Report.

Integrity
The scope of disclosures in this report is consistent with the scope of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Timeliness

This is an annual report covering the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023. The Company strives
to publish the report as soon as possible after the end of the reporting year to provide timely information for
stakeholders’ decision-making.

Verifiability

The cases and data in this report are derived from the original records or financial reports of the actual operations
of the Company. The Company adopts the HIESG Performance Management System to manage quantitative ESG
performance over the years. The source of the disclosed data and the calculation process are traceable and can
be used to support the inspection by external assurance works.
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TEERERSE

FMESES

FNZEeRRKEREMEBLIFNTESTTRERALE, AFEL. HMEE(R-_Z-WIF=A-+\BEZE )R
—HRIFBITEFREREAE( N _F_OF=A-t/N\BEZE ), IBXIR_F_=FALA-BREFMEEERE, ¥
BEEER_ZT_NF=—A-+/\HBEFMZESKE, FMNZE@TEATEEBALE, KFtL, SNEEEELAR
RAFTRABFH ELREE, YABEEZXE, EEERA, ZEENEREEZBSESHRIRIELBE LG,
MEZEENARRYEERAMANTESRSAEEEBHEREHFMTE, BREMA S, RRSENRRH, Witk
WITEFOFNGE, MEFRRLES, FINZESREERARAXNNHMEEERNEMBANERBIGRTSFEE,
AR B TERIBAMNIOF N L B AT B, FMZ B @0 EARRRE R E BB A EARERESRE, FMEES

BERIBERITREH,

—T=FN\ATH, FHEREEEBHT —REE, IH TREAXFABRETSCRENETERENRBER, IR
FEBTAEFTERRBUATRERENEBLHER,

EEENHMF BT IR BRERM TS,
REZES

REZESHRRKEBEE - R2RTEFREOAERMEBBIFNTESTTRELEL, AFHLRHIMMEL( R -
ME=A=+N\BEEE ), EEELEN_Z-_MFE=RA-_+/\HBEEREEZEEKE, REZEGIRARELLE,
ENEAETEFTREFRE LARYEE, YAREBEZRE, ARFRCAREZESRHARERUBITERE, R4
ZESHESKBUEESRUBRITHERE, ERARARAE, REZESNABKYEEERIEFTENRB. AR
KA, YHERSBREARARMARKBEMESESTSFLNTMNEREDRIER, WELEFERBZTEEE,
VEABREERIETIESENAL, UYERLREZAZRIMUNEZTSREER, FEBLIFRTESFTNBELE, 3
EXZIRENZEULER(LERIEREH BTN ESSRIEE, YERZREEZTENESTLBERNBR
MEEBNARBER, NBREREN, REZE8CEH RRREZEeNARRBERE, BEFAEBENEL, &
F2EREQCEARTBULEBMR AL EAFERREE, REZEEEFHRIART REE,

—E=HFt-ANR, BRT KRR EEER, R T AR FNFHBR AR BFMKEOBFE HEFEE,

REARRNAL, CEZEREFNEREFTTHRRERNALEBEEARR TARRBFAGA/IL, ERFENTE
BERMEBERERAE LE&EE, MEMNEREIAREESEMENENESRECEARA NERRBFRERILL,
ERFETAERNEERRAS LEREE, RSEFRIE=FHFERT R, ERERANREBEREE, AR
NEBRERERES,



2023 FEME o Ty EEaRAE 163

28 Bl B 2

BE_Z_=F1T_A=1—"RALFE, AN ARHENZERYE M EZHBERNREENHEN AR R ZEELKE
SHEM BRI E BN B A7 BRI M1 BT, BRBERNRY B BRI HAMRRE R ARE,

EREES

BERZBET, RO BXBABLTRAMBKNEEEXER, AAREENSTEBNMKEERER, BXEZE
SWEKBNEREAZEAMA —FAREIARFREINEZBEINAEARR A, AEKES EHEENRNTNERE
EHPBHERER, AMBREARBNEAEREMIBEE, EFTSNEERZ BGNERFELB L HE, WHEXERTEE
MEFERTERZES, NETZTRINER,
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K5 EHIIRERARE 2 R,
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EXEZT, BRETRNRE. K. R RTELR. 55, i, FREEFEXENEBRE, SEFELE
BRM. Kt KREESSEFEENBENLTE, AEFTRRERESREAR, REZBSHRBRETRIREZER
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EL EEH L, AAREREARMNARARERBETAEKNEAR, Fit, ARANEARERBREERR. FhHEL
g, WHRERFRK. B %Ei’ﬂi‘k?ﬁ FRERHREEREELRAR, AATREFRAREITRAER, KERRER
RETE, AEAREEES, = B wE, BEITEERRE, PR EZTEE 2R, ﬁ/\/_\j,ﬁ”%/ﬁﬁ’]?ﬁ
N ﬂ;\ BE. a¥REREZEEN,
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ARBAEEFIRBETDOBRBRCOSO( REBRVBHREZEENELEAMEZE S WAREERERZKNELSITAE
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o FERRAMPIEREZEEBETE,

o MUEEARRABREREIE, BREEEVEMNEREER, BEEARIFIEENERR
B, WHETE ARG ELE N,

o EREEEENM

o RUMABRMME, BEFNEEER, BEPRERR. X=RBREETE, YRR
IR H R A A RIEE T O MRS ;

B=ER R EBEHRAR

o HERXBHMMERERGRNARERE TEFRREVETELNEERE, FHERARRA
REERHIESEAREE;

s RRFEZHABRNGETE, ENERFGEER, ATEARREHEETE, ABLE
BEAAMIBEEARBREH IR, WHTROEHEETRME,

o HRFR KERMEBRET ORI, BRMAMMFIISEBETRY, WRERRERE
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EXQREARANAREERANMEZERS, ANBERBIZEGNERIE, EFTSCIRIRARETBIIRTRRET
e, YRNRBEEBIESLB LI, ARETHEREEHENREHRELIREEEATRRTRMEXD. 2165 B E
FFRBSETABEARARREERABEREZAGNERREETRE, WELRBERRK,

REBABBAPFINTERR, AAREFERS, ARTANEREEMAMERRZGTDY . TASERERULER, B
BPEOEAR, ARNEREEMANEREREBEEEE. M ERFEARTERNEBRTENNAR, ERH
EASHRNRIRIBRIEHAEMIFBHNORRE

RRBFSFNEELIES . RENEEARER, ARECERETREF, BREEEREEABETARRESRXHA
BSERIE. SAERESEREERREEMRIESFZ RG], BERMRHRIEB ARRRE B 0 RIZBMNELEERE
B, s AEB AR IR ARE BRI KRR,

—REH
EFRERRACFRISEMBHARNTHERE, CELUHBRRERENQDFHRRAABNEHMRR, THFEAIEEER
FEREF R, AREBE_F__F+- A=+ HLEFENUHERERE, ESCHESTERMERABENSITEK
R, EEEE. A FRGEMHERME, TRSECEEERRIBRR,
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EETHE

EEGERRAAR P A FEREN TS A BE T -=F+- A=+ AEERNMBERER(MHR
=
EFEXRHK

BT =K, FIFERE FJFASRTEI2ETHNMAKEARTEE, REFINHEEBRARAR B E
SRMUF R, ERRET. BREEEREEMERE LS AFTE] FEIC+Power Discrete | TEE I, AEPRHEZ T
W TERARERERT, FUFEBTIEFARNERHAFLEVHEHERME( F287E288H ),

EF 4G

IR DA

B ER-T - —FEHERAAR22.8611EEIL, RE—FE NE7.7%, Bi&EInternational Business Strategies, Inc.
(BS)ERET, KM BBMSIHEZRYE, 2RLEEMIS _S=F NEN10%, RERITSERKE, &%

i, EREMSERMEROAEREL, ARDRETBNEREERE, HERRT+12ETEMMAR, KERY
MR MTEREREEFT, AREAE. TX. MERFALIREELTER, EUE[ FFEIC+Power Discrete [ TE
BRENZECET, EmmEBERERIMENEZRN ., ARRE_T _MFEESBRRMTIHEIEEBE,

RIRHKE D EEWA

—E=F ZEZ=f %= ZT=-=F Glsd=dld Glsd=dle
ES % FExT % FET %
FERER(E 2,181,591 95.4% 2,376,659 96.0% (195,068) (8.2%)
Hh, 104,522 4.6% 98,829 4.0% 5,693 5.8%
EX 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

o ZTZ=F, QAEI954%MEERAREFBEEEEMHEERA,

REFEAUEIPEERA

—EC=F ZEZ=f %= ZT-=F Glsd=dld Glsd=dle
ES % FExT % FET %
ES YNGR I Ty /NG 2,109,482 92.3% 2,267,446 91.6% (157,964) (7.0%)
BE BRI (IDMs) 176,631 7.7% 208,042 8.4% (31,411) (15.1%)
EXI 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

NARE R A RMERE S RET AR FPEENERWAIEEL92.3%,
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EEEHG

ZESB S EERA

—E-= —E=-= ZEZF ZTZ=F Eil5d:-1d Cilsd- 2]

FErx % FEx % FET %

A 1,774,178 77.6% 1,811,269 73.2% (37,091) (2.0%)
xR 204,882 9.0% 297,683 12.0% (92,801) (31.2%)
ToME At [ i 149,087 6.5% 210,610 8.5% (61,523) (29.2%)
B [ 134,760 5.9% 114,728 4.6% 20,032 17.5%
HARE 23,206 1.0% 41,198 1.7% (17,992) (43.7%)
B 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

“RC—FENRIDARE T BUBUER, EWELLIER17 5%,

BEMERE D EREA

—E-=F ZEB-=fF —ZT-_—_HF T-_—F [BILL &L RILL &L

FER % FET % FET %
BARNIESD K IETFHEES (eNVM) 703,148 30.8% 767,568 31.0% (64,420) (8.4%)
B IS KT (SNVM) 116,715 5.1% 208,171 8.4% (91,456) (43.9%)
s 902,346 39.4% 774,638 31.3% 127,708 16.5%
R B EAGT 4R 202,483 8.9% 274,384 11.1% (71,901) (26.2%)
R#E(Analog) B1 8 R E 12 (PM) 358,333 15.7% 448,648 18.1% (90,315) (20.1%)
HAftb 3,088 0.1% 2,079 0.1% 1,009 48.5%
At 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

“ECZF, DEFHMRBECBIER, TEHRHERTE. TERBNBRYIFR,
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RISHHBFTEERA
—=E=-= —=Z=-= —T-F ZT-=F Gilsd=219 [ E L
FEx % FE % FET %
558K K& 654K 291,683 12.8% 355,161 14.3% (63,478) (17.9%)
Q0K I 95 oK 386,191 16.9% 505,233 20.4% (119,042) (23.6%)
0. 11K R 0. 13 %K 405,911 17.8% 426,387 17.2% (20,476) (4.8%)
0.15f0K 0. 187K 147,338 6.4% 206,733 8.4% (59,395) (28.7%)
0.25%K 24,217 1.1% 15,027 0.6% 9,190 61.2%
>0.35%K 1,303,773 45.0% 966,947 39.1% 63,826 6.6%
At 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)
o  ET=F>035HUKMMABRRIERBMEBMRER,
RERTIEE D EERA
—E=F ZEZ=f %= ZT=-=F Glsd=dld Glsd=dle
FER % FET % FET %
HEET 1,294,251 56.6% 1,599,116 64.6% (304,865) (19.1%)
THMIEBEE 673,395 29.5% 550,342 22.2% 123,053 22.4%
WiE 256,856 11.2% 248,033 10.0% 8,823 3.6%
FTE 61,611 2.7% 77,997 3.2% (16,386) (21.0%)
e 2,286,113 100.0% 2,475,488 100.0% (189,375) (7.7%)

=T ENABREFMSNARSELEER,
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EREREENAR
SER THRRESA) —E=-= it~k B LE (L
T — % 65 65 =
Esc | 60 60 =
A =R 53 53 -
8T A AER A 178 178 -
AT R ( 1258 ~T REIERE ) 95 65 30
EsfAXR(Fre8iTmE ) 94.3% 107.4% (13.1%)
o —E-—FEHASHETHEERMNAERI 3%,
HELE

ikl —%g== —E-—f B2
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FRETELER,

T =HFNRARMSEAETN—F, HEMS MIBAKRR, MERLEPEMSILRLESBE, @EMLL, FAF¥
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B EIC+Power Discrete | T2 R, HERTFAMSRESENERER, KnmiETH, SE8ERE.
RE. FEREMS, BREETSHREROFTIIEE, BRtE2H, RELRHEFR,



176  irpEEERAT » 2028 FERE

EEEHS

BEEENRR DN

BRI
—EB—-= —E-F b=k )|
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HAa A RWE 144,370 70,986 103.4%
TEMEN N FER S 103 78 32.1%
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THATFEG.
[SYNCIEZFEPN 280,034 449912 (37.8%)
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EEEHG
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KEEEFSReMNE T 641,695 750,865 (14.5%)
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PR I AN R AP P R A A SRR K
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RIE—RFAANE, ARaBEEREASRE T EAKRES30,250,0001BAAE([ —Z—RFEHERE |), URESH
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RBROTBERITE14.3808 7T, K (iv)IRDEEE,
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Ernst & Young LG TR BISFT Tel®&E7E: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place ~ HHBMIFUBEEEI795% FaxfEH: +852 2868 4432
EY& i 979 King’s Road N3 —BE271& ey.com
7 Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the members of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 279 to 391, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

Impairment of long-term assets

As at 31 December 2023, the
carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible
assets was US$3,648 million,
representing a significant
proportion of the Group’s total
assets. Management made a
judgement that certain cash-
generating unit had indicators
of impairment at balance
sheet date and performed
an impairment test using
discounted cash flow method
to estimate its recoverable
amount. This matter was
significant to our audit because
the carrying amount of long-
lived assets was material to
the consolidated financial
statements and the impairment
test process was complex and
involved significant judgements.

The Group’'s disclosures
about the impairment of long-
lived assets are included in
notes 3 and 13 to the financial
statements.
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How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating
management’s identification of
the CGUs and judgement of
impairment indicators thereon,
involving our internal specialists
to assist us in evaluating the
methodology of the impairment
test and key assumptions such
as discount rate, evaluating
the other key assumptions, in
particular, the projection period
length, revenue growth rate,
gross profit margin and net profit
margin, and reviewing relevant
disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an investment property

The Group recognised an
investment property amounting
to US$167 million as at 31
December 2023. The Group
measures its investment
property at fair value at the
end of each reporting period
and engages external experts
to assess its fair value.
During the year, this matter
was significant to our audit
because the carrying amount
of the investment property was
material to the consolidated
financial statements and the
valuation process was complex
and involved significant
judgements.

The Group’s disclosures
about the valuation of the
investment property are
included in notes 3 and 14 to
the financial statements, which
explain the key assumptions
that management used in the
valuation.

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, assessing the
competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent
external valuers engaged by
the Group, comparing property-
related data used for the
valuation with the underlying
documentation and involving
our internal specialists to
assist us in evaluating the
methodology of the valuation
and the key assumptions used
in the valuation such as the
estimated rental value, term
yield, reversionary yield and
long-term vacancy rate, and
reviewing relevant disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K.W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2024

ﬁﬁtﬁﬁ%ﬁ*iAﬁﬁ i X BB L6 =2 A

G AW BERRBA TIFNREZEH, H
Wﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁoﬁﬁiéiiﬁ7ﬂ$ G
BRELEFFRXEHEEANERLT, BMAR
REBUSERASEAHRNTREREGE
BRRAEUFFIEH) M & ﬁTEEﬁ¢$
TUEE, TRRMASEZRE RS+t
HEEE,

HEARB Y ZBERENEAEBGRAR
BB,

i)

ZKEFTEEIEFT
HE DA

BB
—E-F=A=+/\H



FEHRE ANNUAL REPORT 2023 o FEITH:EEEERAE HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 279

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR I:QSS
g (s SR ANE LR

2023 2022
—E-=F B _F
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
ez EY FET
Revenue SHE A 5 2,286,113 2,475,488
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,799,017) (1,631,832)
Gross profit S| 487,096 843,656
Other income and gains H b Ua A R es 5 144,370 70,986
Fair value gain on an investment property %&£ AFERES 103 78
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HE R (10,189) (12,464)
Administrative expenses EEER (322,868) (266,666)
Other expenses Hib & 5 (33,666) (111,360)
Finance costs MIEER 7 (100,497) (40,331)
Share of profits of associates paN i A/NET Vel 9,230 12,171
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BADREF 6 173,579 496,070
Income tax expense FriSfi < 10 (47,154) (89,499)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 126,425 406,571
Attributable to: THI AT
Owners of the parent ISYNEILY-PN 280,034 449,912
Non-controlling interests eI (153,609) (43,341)
126,425 406,571
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBEREFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY LR 2T
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT: 12
Basic HAR
— For profit for the year —F A US$0.189 US$0.345
0.1893% T 0.345%7T
Diluted #E
— For profit for the year —4F 3 F) US$0.188 US$0.342

0.188% T 0.342% 7T
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GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

N2
2!—! A\ Z~ Year ended 31 December 2023
) éﬁ LI&ﬁIL'%% e w1

2023 2022
—EB-=H B —
US$’ 000 US$'000
EH F=r
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 126,425 406,571
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hih2 w558 )
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to profit REZHAMAIREEFH D IEE
or loss in subsequent periods: bi=Eend =0 =R ke Y1) =
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations & GMNEFSEE A HIINE
=R (56,005) (809,458)
Net other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to ~ REEHMAIEEFOEE
profit or loss in subsequent periods BamMEt 2 AEEEFE (56,005) (309,458)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be REBHETSERHSES
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BaEmEMEEKE
(&1 ).
Equity investments designated at fair value through other  ¥§EIRAFEFAEM 2 E
comprehensive income: Hﬁlﬁ?’iﬁ’\]ﬂﬁ%?ﬁﬁ:
Changes in fair value N EED) 95,310 (53,707)
Income tax effect FriSfis & (14,628) 8,348
80,682 (45,359)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates DREEE R AR E At 2 E
2% 1,352 -
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be REZHETSEHHES
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods BaEmEMEEKE
(E518 )58 82,034 (45,359)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FRHMEEEKE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (B518 ), HRRHiE 26,029 (354,817)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FREEKZERE 152,454 51,754
Attributable to: TEIATREL
Owners of the parent (SYNSIE/ZSPN 331,980 153,027
Non-controlling interests IR A (179,526) (101,273)
152,454 51,754




FE#HE ANNUAL REPORT 2023 o FEUTHEEHR A A HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 281

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2023

e IR R AR

Z_=F+-A=+—H
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
+=BA=+—-8 +=A=+-—H
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
et ES F=r
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M. WE MR 13 3,519,292 3,367,716
Investment property WEYZ 14 166,643 169,363
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 78,545 78,425
Intangible assets mLEE 16 49,827 32,986
Investments in associates REE N RIHIRE 17 139,099 130,721
Equity investments designated at fair value EERAFEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income eI E 18 270,506 178,632
Long-term prepayments to third parties e = A 2 REIFEN 5B 149,953 7,742
Deferred tax assets BEIETIEEE 28 - 14,066
Total non-current assets IEREE ELRTE 4,373,865 3,979,651
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Properties under development EEEGEE I ES 19 178,828 134,723
Inventories 3 20 449,749 578,060
Trade and notes receivables B 5 UG K RN R K 21 278,669 291,856
Prepayments, other receivables and other FEfIFIE. H U FIE K
assets Hih &&= 22 33,821 48,273
Due from related parties JE W Bt 75 5RIE 35(c) 11,219 13,006
Pledged deposits [REETiVER 23 32,088 1,042
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEEY 23 5,585,181 2,008,765
Total current assets MENVE EEER 6,569,555 3,075,725
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B S IR 24 235,410 236,999
Other payables and accruals HAb I sRIBE R EHE R 25 430,478 593,971
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 26 193,035 426,756
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 3,076 4,704
Government grants BT BN 29 35,017 37,714
Due to related parties J& < R8st 75 R IE 35(¢c) 13,876 6,096
Income tax payable FERTFR1SHR 61,495 76,176
Total current liabilities D IN=REF 972,387 1,382,416
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFHE 5,597,168 1,693,309
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELABERREBAE
LIABILITIES 9,971,033 5,672,960

continued %&/- -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE MR ER TR

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
—E_= T F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
ez FEx FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRITIER 26 1,906,526 1,481,580
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 19,129 14,644
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIIEAE 28 30,834 41,268
Total non-current liabilities ERB B EREE 1,956,489 1,537,492
Net assets EEFE 8,014,544 4,135,468
EQUITY W
Share capital %N 30 4,933,559 1,994,462
Reserves fittE 32 1,367,436 1,036,008
Total equity attributable to owners of the — BIARIHEA AFEIGRES 4858
parent 6,300,995 3,030,470
Non-controlling interests PR A 40 1,713,549 1,104,998
Total equity S 8,014,544 4,135,468
Suxin Zhang Jun Ye
REN ik
Director Director

EF B=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
s o2y G O R S S A BN IR

Attrbutable to owners of the parent

BATRAARG
Fair value
reserve of
Other financial
capital Share of assets at
reserve other fair value (Accumulated
Share and  comprehensive  through other Stafutory  Exchange ~ losses)/ Non-
Share  Merger option contribuled incomeof comprehensive Revaluation reserve fluctuaion  Retained confroling ~~ Total
capital  reserve  reseve  surplus  associates income ~ suplusé  funds reserve profits  Tofal interests  equity
RATEA
R2mAEN

BEE RURAER AGBENAM  EREEY iR MENE (EMER)/ #ER
Br e BF RUNRR SEiEME  OVERR EGRM+ BRE:  BE  ERRM M R M
Mos USSOOD USYO00 USSOO0  USSOD  USSOD  USSOM  USSOD  USSODD  USSO0  USSO00 USSON0  USS0 LSS
K TR TR A TR LT Ot R TR oot o R

(note 30) (note 32) (note 31) (note 40)

(&) (KR (Kt ) (Hit0)
At 1 January 2023 \"2-=F-F-f 1094460 645494 133460 35605 - (@27 %21 191125 (005 103495 3030470 1104998 4135468
Protfoss) for the year Emiil/ 8 - - - - - - - - - 003 20004 (153609 125428
Other comprehensive roomefor -~ AN
the year:
Chaneinfaraleotequy  ETRATEIALH
investments desigraed REEhRERAS
atfairvlue trough oer TERY, MhRE
comprehensive income, net of
fax - - - - - 80,682 - - - - 068 - 068
Snareofobercompretensive B EDGNER
income of associaies ks - - - - 1352 - - - - -1 - 1R
Eichange dferences el EERNIERAIERS
foreign operatons - - - - - - - - (30089) - (%0088) (26917) (36,009)
Toel comprehensive ncome forthe - ERZENELE
o - SR W - - (U B B (TN T
Issue of shares ¥hh 22809 - (1) - - - - - - - 207849 - 2097849
Equityseted shre option NEREENEREE
anangements g - - 6% - - - - - - - 6% 7

Capla contrbuon fomnon-~—~~ JHARER 1
confrling inferests - - - = - - - - B

Tenser fomreened s~~~ BRE-FFRFEER

- TR0 T80

Qenereed by a subscry ama - - - - - - - - (e - -
A3 December 2023 e
=t-A 4933550 645404 12794 3565 1352 56435 09267 233042 (6020 Q41610 6300095 1743549 801454

continued %&/---
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SERBBE |

Year ended 31 December 2023

R S S e
Atrbutable to onners of the parent
SATRENEN
Fair vlug
reserve of
Other fianciel
captl assgls af
fesenve falr valug (Accumulated
Share and  through other Statory  Exchenge  losses)/ Non-
e Meer  opton contibuied comprehensive  Revaluatn  resenve  fuctuafion  Retaied contollng~ Tota
caotel resene  resene  surpls ncome  supls'  fnds  resene  pioffs Tl inlerests eouly
RATEA
BER BhaEkan (Zif
EhE  BRR  oEEEC i ONERE BRY/ R
BhOABEE BB f7ER DVERE B GBREE BB WM & B s
Moes USS000 USS000 USS000~ US§000 USS000  USS000  USG000  USSoo0 USS000  USSO00 USSoon Usson
B i B B A i th T B A T T
(note 30) (note 32) (note 31) (note 40)
(Hk0) (i) (Kikst) (Kit40)
At 1 January 2022 o i 1906,152 oo o0 o7 66 505" 0% 046" 2131 (207663 267039 814188 3684047
Proffoss) for the year i/ EB) - - - - - -l o () oSt
Othr comprehensie ncome o the year: EREBRENE.
Change i fair vale of equiy invesments desinated i £ RATEALM
Vel hrough o comprebensie come, et oftax 2EAERBEREY
LTERD, HktA - - (45.359) - - - (%) - (530
Bxchange diferencesrelte o forign peraions FEEEEmERE - - - - (15 - (5150) (579 (09459)
Toalcomprehinsie ncome forhe year ERRENREE - - (45,359) N 1 A 6 R
Tenslr of e vaie resene upon e disposal o equiy—— SAEERATE:AZH
investments a fi value trough ot comprehensve. — 2EEHRERER
ioome ERNTERE - - - (198) - -w - -
Issue of shares Blh & 830 (239 - - - 504 504
Fopit-etfe she option arangemerts WEazENERERE W - 114 - - - 114 8%
Captalcontbution fom non-conrling nerests HReanE - - - - - - - R0 3200
Tianslr fom reened prffs generaed bya subsiday  BAE-BTAFEL
Wi - - - - 5069 - pg - -
At 31 December 2022 NE-Et-f=1- 1904462 ododo0 13346 3680 (2277 987 19110 (015 103498 3030470 1,104,998 4135468
Revaluation surplus arose from a change in use from an owner- #  ERESRRERFEIR —HEHYE
occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value. B E R BIREY R,
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * BERERABES BN EEF A

US$1,367,436,000 (2022: US$1,036,008,000) in the consolidated
Statement of financial position.

AREE1,367,436,000F T —
1,036,008,000% T ),

—EF T 4.
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Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Share of profits of associates

Interest income

Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Changes in fair value of an
investment property

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

Impairment/(reversal of impairment)
of trade receivables

Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment

Equity-settled share option expense

Increase in properties under development

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and notes

receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, other

receivables and other assets

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from

related parties

(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and

accruals
Decrease in government grants

Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to

related parties

Income tax paid

T8 A )

LA T S IREHHOFHE .
f75E A
DIEEEE R EDE A
M BUA
BAFEAEBEEK

SNEREEMELZ
BB A
HEME. BERRER
BevEiE, ()
ME. BELREITE

BANEATEED

EREEERE
R
FEMRER ERFE

B 5 RYIRRE RE
M)

M. BERREER B
(=1

DAt s 45 H MO FB A R X2

R YFRIBIN

FERD HEm)

B 5 e YUK IR e R IR
WA )
FERTFRIR . oAl GRIR
Ht &R /50 )
FEUL REEE 5 IR A (1
)
EHIRFR( 1200 )R
EHRNFIEBD )80
HiE NIRRT EER
(A )1
BT e B

&~ RS 77 SRIRE D,
()

ENFEH

Notes

Wit

13

14
15
16

13
317

2022
—E-F
US$'000
FET

496,070
40,331
(12,171)
(26,944)

(63)

(®)
439,917

(78)
5,842
11,101
19,612

(16)

858
1,226

975,680
(29,624)
(154,646)

(110,684)
(4,248)
(6,096)

1,880
42,614

110,940
(22,645)

(1,405)

801,766
(50,901)

750,865

=3

continued %&/--
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year emdec 31 December 2023
S =F+ZA=+—BILFE

|V m IE@/)ILE%
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2023 2022
—E_= —E-F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
HtaE Y F=1
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEFERSRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received EUHLE 61,551 28,450
Purchases of items of property, plant and ﬁ%“%% T 2 55 S TE
equipment, prepaid lease payments and . BNEERCERER
intangible assets éﬁF (906,607) (996,182)
Purchases of an investment in an BER—XBEARNIRE
associate - (6,717)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWZE. BERKEEE
property, plant and equipment FriS5RI8 52 109
Receipt of government grants for property, YZIBATEDE . BB &%
plant and equipment BB 11,692 38,414
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAFES ARMER
assets at fair value through other Wt Rl & EFTS IR
comprehensive income - 5,707
Dividends received from financial assets at WEIZ AP EFAE MR
fair value through other comprehensive WaRr S rt&EERE
income - 63
Net cash flows used in investing RETEFMARSREFTHE
activities (833,312) (930,156)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHERERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D B 2hIE 2,941,945 6,248
New bank loans 1R ITE R 615,415 514,622
Capital contribution from non-controlling gz H &
interests 787,920 392,000
Interest paid BEAFE (106,570) (47,286)
Repayment of bank loans B8R ITE= (422,120) (199,670)
Principal portion of lease payments YA EARS G (4,597) (3,246)
Receipt of government grants for finance  Ux ZI| B 76 B 75 & R B9 5 B
costs 2,997 11,100
Payment of share issue expenses YD EREITRE S (2,030) (832)
Increase in a pledged deposit — I8 2 IR g N (31,214) (759)
Net cash flows generated from RMETEFERERETH
financing activities 3,781,746 672,177
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBESESEYEINFEE
EQUIVALENTS 3,590,129 492 886
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning  F¥3R & RIREEEY
of year 2,008,765 1,610,140
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, SMNEMEREF)Z L, HiE
net (13,713) (94,261)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRAEEGRBEEEY
END OF YEAR 23 5,585,181 2,008,765
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBESEBYERDIW
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRTITEES 23 4,638,292 735,800
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ RAESRRE|EAE DK =1E
maturity of less than three months when A K 3EHEIHE Bi1F 3K
acquired 946,889 1,272,965
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ~ HEARRR MRS RERT
the statement of financial position and in ~ Fi%I3R & KIREEEY
the statement of cash flows 23 5,585,181 2,008,765
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Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 January
2005. The registered office of the Company is located at Room
2212, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central,
Hong Kong. The principal place of business is located at No.
288, Halei Road, Zhangijiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of semiconductor
products and real estate development.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent of the Company is
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Group”),
which is a state-owned company established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and supervised by the Shanghai
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission (“Shanghai SASAC”). The ultimate parent of the
Company is Shanghai SASAC.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing ~ Cayman Islands US$0.001
Corporation (“Grace Cayman’) FEHS 0.001%T

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation ([ Grace Cayman |)

Shanghai Huahong Grace PRC/Chinese Mainland  RMB20,460,928
Semiconductor Manufacturing T8/ HERY AR
Corporation (‘HHGrace")* 20,460,9287T

FEENE N+ ERIERRAA
([ELZEN )

Huahong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ US$2,536,852
(‘Hua Hong Wuxi")** FE /HRER 2,536,852 7T

EHEE( £ ERAR([ R
# )

Shanghai Huahong Real Estate (Wuxi) ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB30,000
Co., Ltd. (*Huahong Real Estate PE/ FER ARE30,0007
Wuxi”)**

FEERER(BH VARAA[ERER

&S )

BEAR AT HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

100%

100%

22.2%

22.2%

287

HESERBERAG([ARAF ) B—
EN_ZEERFEF—A_+—BEEBE
MR BER AT, ARRIREMHE
BAEBHREBBI12FERBITH D
2212%, FEEEMWY A EEMRIS
R B[S 5 7% 28857

ARRNEREH/EELER, ©
N, ARRNFAREZENREF TR
A HYAEEE MHE M HER %

F
=

BEERR, ARANERAA/LEET
(RE)ERARELKR ), ZAF
AP EARLME([ BB | )KZITH
PETHRAERERBEEREZES([ LF
TEEZ |)EENBEERR, ARAH
REERARR/LETEEER,

BFRTFARNER
RABHFRRFBEWT

- Investment holding
REER

- Manufacture and sale of semiconductor
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBmRMEE T

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAIREEBER(E)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERTFARINER (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered share ~ AQFEEERE A
Name business capital ('000) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
FMRL BETER/
£ B RER AR T ) E# BiE IEEREE
Huahong Semiconductor Manufacturing  PRC/Chinese Mainland  US$4,020,000 21.9% 29.1%  Manufacture and sale of
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd. (“Hua Hong T8/ HER 4,020,000%7C semiconductor products
Manufacturing’ ) EERHETERER
EO SRS BH ARAR[ S8
&)
Global Synergy Technology Limited PRC/Hong Kong HK$10 100% - Trading
(‘GST) hE/FE 10%T g5
TBHEAERAR[ ERH )
HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. USA - 100% - Sales office
e - HERZR
HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co.,  Japan JPY10,000 100% - Sales office
Ltd. BA 10,0008 S
* HHGrace is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned company & AT 72 ) R IE R B E R A5 B &
under PRC law. R,
**  Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing are registered as o YT 7 T IR 1 R B A S
Sino-foreign joint companies under PRC law. = 5557/\ ABRE.

***  Huahong Real Estate Wuxi is registered as a domestic company
under PRC law.

o BERERESRET EEEZ N BAE
TS
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These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for an investment property
and equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in United
States dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and
recognises the fair value of any investment retained and any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Insurance Contracts
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

REEE(HE)
BakEtzEEanSHBO HEBER
AEBEGABER ARIEERER, B
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H fth 2 1 Y a8 R RE R Y AN SR B R (G &R 10
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The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs éﬁﬁﬁﬁé\ﬁ&%EZ%&ET},%@%ET%\}%EM%
3PS j S/ AT
that are applicable to the Group are described below: MEEA MU RZEHN T

(a) BESEERIF1HR(ERIA )EKX

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement
2 Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed
the material accounting policy information in note 2 to the
financial statements. The amendments did not have any
impact on the measurement, recognition or presentation
of any items in the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since the
Group’s approach and policy align with the amendments,
the amendments had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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(c)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow
the scope of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12
so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The adoption of these amendments to
HKAS12 did not have significant impact to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 12 /International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary
exception from the recognition and disclosure of deferred
taxes arising from the implementation of the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected entities
to help users of the financial statements better understand
the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known
or reasonably estimable information of their exposure to
Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation
is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect.
The Group has not yet applied the temporary exception
during the current year because the entities comprising
the Group are operating in jurisdictions in which the Pillar
Two tax law has not yet been enacted or substantively
enacted. The Group will disclose known or reasonably
estimable information related to its exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes in the consolidated financial statements by
the time when the Pillar Two tax law has been enacted
or substantively enacted and will disclose separately
the current tax expense or income related to Pillar Two
income taxes when it is in effect.

(c)
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The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs,
if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)" *

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (the
2020 Amendments”)'#

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

Lack of Exchangeability?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

adoption

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised
to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
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Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’'s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates
to the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by
a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if a
conversion option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for
as an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before
the reporting date affect the classification of that liability as
current or non-current. Additional disclosures are required for
non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with
early application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether existing
loan agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require
additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist users
of financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier
finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and
exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the amendments
is permitted. The amendments provide certain transition reliefs
regarding comparative information, quantitative information
as at the beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and
how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement
date when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments
require disclosures of information that enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of a currency not being
exchangeable. Earlier application is permitted. When applying
the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative
information. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative
amount of translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial
application. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in
an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property and equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified
as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) bhas control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Related parties (continued) B (&)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued) AT AT #4545 R B AN & E A R
(&)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) ZALTAEFE FINEMEHNE

applies: B,

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERBEASEBR BN
group; IBA=VACIR

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) BERBRS—EB(HS—HE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary M AR, FARIKRRFA
of the other entity); A] MBS A RIS A B E

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZEREAEEAR—F=7
same third party; BE &R,

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) BBA—RFE-FHEBNEGE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; 1, ME—EBBAZE=F

BEREAEERNA

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) ZEBAAEENEAEES
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity ANt BB E B MR L/
related to the Group; BER & @ T &l

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) E%:%:‘EEEE( VIR FTHI A 12 il
person identified in (a); HEHZEH

(viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) (a)()EBFTSIA TS ZERAR
influence over the entity or is a member of the key BEAVENNAZER( K&
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ERNSERAR NETEEEE
of the entity); and ME, &

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (viil) ZEBNZEBBEEMNT
part, provides key management personnel services B =WNSIV=¥ NS NS e
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. M REREZZEEAER

%o
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is
part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.8%
Plant and machinery 9.5% to 19.0%
Office equipment 19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Leasehold improvements 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
investment property are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Process technology licence and software

Process technology licence and software are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years of
the underlying products, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use rights 42 to 50 years
Buildings 2 to 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as other income and gains in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments. Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

2HMPR A7 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 311

RIEBIATHEE
HIRATIER R, EREE(H(WE
R)mremEE—ARBETREEN
—&bD )RR KR IR ( BN A AE B
BB EREER ).

e WEEWRMREARENENCE
R

o AFEEEREEBF ITHEERE
ERBGR S REETR, SHE&RE
ME=ZHEEBRERDE AT
Iﬁimugm,@{f &( )ZX;EK@E@
EEENBAIBMOERRER, K
()$$@ﬁiiéi% BENR
REDREBERER, EEEEEE
WT%%O

WAEEEERREERPRESREN
BT EF 28, RIFHEEERE
BEMAENRR &@ﬁ&ﬁ B1RE .
ﬁ$¢l1ﬁ%%&% BENBAE
Rk KRB, TREEREEEREIE,
Wﬁﬁlhuﬁﬁlﬁf%ﬁkrﬁ@
HERATEREE, £%XBAT, &
SENEREEA G, CEEEERE
HRERERRAEEMREENNE
EEE’]%+E|‘$0

BEHEEREEFHERNEAFE
2 E, REERKREERANSE
FABENZSREMERHOREEF

o

\\>§¥

M‘



312

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED T8 88HR AR » 2023 ANNUAL REPORT FE#HE

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit
risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days to 150 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
amounts due to related parties, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date
of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (tfrade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Costs for properties under development include
land costs, construction costs and other direct and indirect
development expenses in relation to property development.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three
months that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or
loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.
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Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’'s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
This subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

LA K (4] )

it A E R T iE, RIRAENEH
AHRE, TMARRERZEm 218
RETEAREHERTIEH I IERE
fERIFEOEEER )P sc, BEIRRER,
AR, EEROHEBRBEDEHOE
B, YRERLBAMEESERER, A
ANRETER AT, O RS AR K T SRR AR
RIRE R EE

SESRANE, RTEERENES
HIE, RERSESNRDEE,

Hivfg S EF
B2
AEBRHTEARMEENTATBETH
EEASEHAM T TR LENT
RBKREFE, ZTFRARAREEF S
HTADLHPRRARS BT, #
R KRR S BRI R R EIR
BmRAXH,

BEBLE T
BRENRAEETBEIUBRHEZS
1% My I 2N 62 B e 0% B S A B B A )
Z BHAKARE Z B E TR

CENDES

W, ERIEEAEREE(ANFE—
BBRERETIEEREAZIHEN
BE EREBENETKAGETER,
ERZEEENNKE, EEEEK
HAMERE R HER, IITeFR8
HZEERRABTRER, BEMER
RARELHFESH, BERRARE—
A E BB 15 B B A RO B R BB AN o



FEEZRE ANNUAL REPORT 2023 o ZEH[H

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Chinese Mainland and
overseas subsidiaries and associate are currencies other
than US$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into US$ at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences
are attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of Chinese Mainland and overseas subsidiaries
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of Chinese Mainland and overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into US$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than gooawill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-
of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite
life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and
at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Fair value of an investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from the
discounted cash flow projections.

Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31
December 2023 was US$166,643,000 (31 December
2022: US$169,363,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Management reviews the
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

The principal assets employed by the Group are located
in Shanghai and Wuxi, the PRC. Therefore, no segment
information based on the geographical location of non-current
assets is presented for the year.

Revenues are attributed to geographical areas based on the
locations of customers. Revenues by geographical segment
based on the locations of customers for the year are presented
as follows:

China (including Hong Kong) HE( BEEE )

North America Jb=
Asia (excluding China and Japan) M TREPE R AR )
Europe B
Japan =N

The Group is involved in the business of the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Revenue from the sale
of semiconductor products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the semiconductor products, where
the performance obligation is satisfied. The normal credit term
is 30 to 45 days upon delivery. Payment in advance is required
for some contracts.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
was derived from sales to a single customer for the year ended
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil).
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US$'000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

MRS sR R MIaE Yo

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

AND OTHER EXPENSES

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains and other

expenses is as follows:

5. WA, EibWAR Wk H M

g2H

%TLI&U\\ H AU A R WS R E b B Y
DI .

2023 2022
—E_=E —E-_F
US$’ 000 US$'000
== FET
Revenue from contracts with customers &F &4z
Sale of goods HEEm 2,286,113 2,475,488
Other income Hiug A
Gross rental income from investment REFREMELEHENHSIA
property operating leases: 4a%A.
Fixed lease payments EEAERK 14,259 14,358
Interest income FEWA 61,345 26,944
Government subsidies BT AL 66,466 27,679
Sale of scrap materials HE R 1,418 1,476
Others Hh 882 524
144,370 70,981
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE. BERZEEE
plant and equipment FriS ik as - 5
144,370 70,986
Other expenses HihEH
Foreign exchange loss, net HNEDE H 518 F 58 33,055 106,804
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEMZE. BERREEE EE
plant and equipment 206 -
Others Efth 405 4,556
33,666 111,360
2023 2022
—E_= T F
US$’ 000 US$’000
SFET FET
Types of goods EmER
Sales of semiconductor products and FEEEMHENREERP
total revenue from contracts with A KRR
customers 2,286,113 2,475,488
Timing of revenue recognition LN A
Goods transferred at a point in time and AR —BZEENE RN
total revenue from contracts REEPFE KRB
with customers 2,286,113 2,475,488

The disaggregation of the Group’s revenue based on the
geographical region for the year ended 31 December 2023 is

given in note 4.

RE-F-=F+-A=+—AL%F
B, AREZRE HKAS RN
2
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The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBWOF IS A TR GEA )T
(crediting): Y B IEIRER.
2022
—E-_F
Notes US$'000
Biat FET
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKRA 1,631,832
Depreciation of property, plant and ME. BEKREITE
equipment 13 439,917
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 5,842
Amortisation of intangible assets B A =Y 16 11,101
Research and development costs TEER AR 160,936
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEAETED
measurement of lease liabilities MERK 33(b) 2,625
Auditor's remuneration T2 2R B B 1,395
Employee benefit expense (including {EEBAIFX( BIEES
directors’ and chief executive’s MESITEA B K
remuneration (note 8)): (BIzE8)):
Wages,salaries and other benefits ~ TE&. o REMEF 382,804
Equity-settled share option expense — SAMEZS 45 & 1) BEAX HEFT 2 31 1,226
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B
(defined contribution scheme) * ( EFEMHARETE ) 31,660
415,690

Impairment of items of property, plant #1%. BE R &R&HER

and equipment VERIEL 13 858
Provision/(reversal of) for impairment of & 5 fE U ZIE R {E R

trade receivables (#m ) 21 (16)
Write-down of inventories to net ez A #35 5E

realisable value 19,612
Changes in fair value of an investment & &Y N F(EE

property 14 (78)

* There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by * REEEBIE F B A AR AT
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of FREE R H #7507k Fo

contributions.
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Interest on bank borrowings RITEKFE
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE
Total st

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees we

Other emoluments: EiiE .
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ HEil. 28E R EWF|Z
Performance related bonuses BRI AMARYIEAT
Equity-settled share option expense LAz A E R BRI R 2
Pension scheme contributions RIREEFEIHR

Subtotal 1NEF

Total fees and other emoluments & & H A FRENAREE

In prior year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

2022
—E-F
US$’000
FET

39,451
880

40,331

RIE LR B R EE R RMRGI5£383(1)
(@) (b). C)RMEIR( AR KEES
MEEER RO ) F2MEBENANFEE
ENBRSTHRABFHMAT

2022
—E-—F
US$'000
FET

234

206
452
57
9

724
958

RBEFE, ETESREARANE
PR R B R EL 1) 7 R [ 4 1 O IR TS JE IR
BRE, HE-TFBHNMBHERERM
31, HEBREN QR HECREEY
RIEERER, YRELAREEER
REFMBRRABRN SR T AR
EEXRRSITBRABNHFIRES,
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NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
LN Bk

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EENRBESTHAESNZMH
REMUNERATION (continued) (48 )
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIYFFTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FANMBLIIERTEETIIHES
during the year were as follows: Ny
2023 2022
—E_= —E-_F
US$’ 000 US$'000
SFE FET
Stephen Tso Tung Chang SRAE R 72 78
Kwai Huen Wong, JP FiEE, KA+ 72 78
Long Fei Ye - 72 78
Total #st 216 234
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRWBEN TRULIERITESH
independent non-executive directors during the year Hthe( =ZT=—F. &),

(2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
jﬁ&i&% MTA-I 31 Decem‘birEOFZSi+ L

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EENRBESTHAESNZMH
REMUNERATION (continued) (48 )
(b) A non-executive director and the chief executive (b) FHFTESERBETHRAER
Salaries,

allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration

HEM. 2ER  ERRMN UERLEN  BAREHE
e BNFlE WL  BRERX A 0 Pkl
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
in EY EY ey EYr EY

2023 —F-=F
Chief executive: BERTHAR:
Mr. Junjun Tang BYERE - 196 196 28 10 430
Salaries,

allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions  remuneration

HEM. ZER RRBEMD VERLEN  RAesE
ik EYMER Wi RRERX 3% Fes

US$'000 US$'000 US§000 US§'000 US$000 US$'000
TET TET T T T TET

2022 —ToCF
Chief executive: BE{IHAR:

Mr. Junjun Tang BHERE = 206 452 57 9 724
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors received BRADL I EE, HEEEN -
any emoluments during 2023 and 2022. —CSER T —FWREMAE

Ao
There was no arrangement under which a director waived RER, HEEEEELTHRES

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B S e B
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The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director, who is also the chief executive (2022: one director
being also the chief executive), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining four (2022: four) highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 78l 2BE & EWHIE

Performance related bonuses
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions RN FTEIER

Total 4t

BRI AR TEAL

The number of highest paid employees who are not directors
of the Company and whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

BRAE HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

Pt s i E BB AR X
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FRN, AARaHEERE—ZESR(N
AREITHRABR ( ZTZ=F. —R&E
E(MAZRSITHRALR ), EHMFES
R EXFE8, FW, EERINH
(Z2==F. WUE )WIIEARREEH
RERaEEEMEFMFBDT .

2022
—E-_F
US$'000
FET
1,127

771

121

9

2,028

FEEN A TR WIEARBEEH
RimFrEEABMT .

2022

—E-F

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T % 2,500,000/ 7T =

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T %2 3,000,000/ 7T 2

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T % 3,500,000/ 7T 1

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £ 4,500,000/ 7T =
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 £ 5,500,000/ 7T

Total Bt 4

In prior years, share options were granted to four non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees in
respect of their services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE, HAFEFERIFHESITH
ABWES#HERFNEAAKEIEHR
BB, HLE—SFBERMBER
RUTFES1HE ., HEBRENATER
ZEBMNESRRER, YNRLEH
BEEARAEFERBERRARNSED
AFARDEGFEE S RIFRSITRA BM&R
= EEMFMKET,
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Profits arising in Hong Kong were subject to profits tax at the
rate of 16.5% during the year (2022: 16.5%). No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Company and
a subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong had no assessable
income during the year (2022: Nil).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman Islands
is not subject to corporate income tax (“‘CIT") as it does not
have a place of business (other than a registered office) or
carry on any business in the Cayman Islands.

All of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
only having operations in Chinese Mainland are subject to
PRC enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported
in their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with
relevant PRC income tax laws based on a statutory rate of
25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, HHGrace, is qualified as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” and was therefore entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% from 2023 to 2025.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC
and with the approval from the tax authorities in charge,
the Group’s subsidiaries, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong
Manufacturing, are entitled to an exemption from CIT for five
years, commencing from the first year that Hua Hong Wuxi
and Hua Hong Manufacturing generate taxable profits, and
a deduction of 50% on the CIT rate for the following five
years. Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing were in
accumulated tax loss positions as at 31 December 2023 and
the tax holiday has not yet begun.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in
Japan was subject to corporation tax at a rate of 33.58%
(2022: 33.58%).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in the
United States was subject to federal corporation income tax at
a rate of 21% during the year (2022: 21%), as well as state tax
at 8.84% (2022: 8.84%).

RERNEBGNAL165% —F -
F. 16.5% B ERZAFEH. BRA
RE R —REBBZMALNFRER
FALERFEATHLA, BLERE
BMERIELERE —T=_—F. &),

BHRARBERSESEMKIZNTA
AR S S EEA S XA ( M
FRMRIN R EE R, WAETL
RIBAMMERAEH( BEMEH )

PrAE AR B B M A EEREA
LENT LA, EREREABEHEMR
BREABRNPBEIEAERE T2 RER
MU AIZ25% HEE R RGP B
FTiS#io

RIEFBIAEEE AR RERBEE
WEEHE, NEBE—KFRREL RS
REEBBKAl SFEMEE |, e’
KRB =FF2 T - AFHHIK15%
R BT R ET

RIFTH BEAERER RO REN G T B
BHtE, NREBNFARFELESNLE
ST RGE A AT M 8 R M SUE E A JE
AR N E —FRAOFERRHNE
XN, MERAFAEXEEME
PR ERMBE0%NEE, R_F_=F
T-A=+—8, FUEHRETEE
BN RABBEIERE, BRBEEAR
Fﬂﬁté\O

RRBFEBARFEMAL K EEN T AT
fE1233.58%( —ZT =4 . 33.58% )H)
EEBEEM,

AR EEEBRFMA SR EENT AR
JERENIR21%( ZE=Z4F. 21% )Y
R EEMSRENS.84%( —FE ==
F. 8.84% VHIMTRTREF
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The major components of income tax expense of the Group

are as follows:

Current income tax — PRC

Current income tax — elsewhere

Withholding tax on the distribution of
dividend from a PRC subsidiary

Deferred tax (note 28)

Total

EEIFTER -
HHIFTSR - HAE

REFRABD KRS TR

EERIB( FI7E28 )
st

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate of 25% for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%

Effect of different tax rates for specific
provinces and countries or enacted by
local authority

Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous periods

Profits attributable to associates

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses not recognised due to tax
holiday

Tax losses not recognised due to
improbable future taxable profits

Temporary differences not recognised

Additional deduction of research and
development costs

Additional deduction of equipment

Effect of withholding tax at 10% (2022:
10%) on the distributable profits of the
Group’s PRC subsidiary

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

Tt B A
REER R 25% 1 ErTHIA
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7 8 [ 719 4 B9 32 0 2 48 AL 2645 10
T,

2022
—E-_F
US$'000
FET
74,516

43

2,500
12,440

89,499

BARRRERE D FREKEMER
EREIR H)EE R 25% =t B A
RMERNIARMY, BRERBEFED
MBS HI AR T .

2022
—E-—F
US$'000
FET

496,070
124,018

REE D RBERSSE BB

B TFRBE T E
3 F—HIRIM BBUEm AR
By D R AR

RBRMBA
AR

DRl S Tt A 1 AR e R B AR TR B 1R

(57,612)

309
(1,826)

434

50,695

PRI AK A REE L FERR B 1/ T

REREIAREE
AERE R E5
BT A AN LA HIR

R AL IR

1,481
129

(42,532)
(3,630)

BASKE P BT 2R A RS A

LA10%( — B ==,
STETEMREE

EAREEERN R ENHIAFRX

10% )

18,033
89,499
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Proposed final — HK$16.5 cents (2022: Nil)
per ordinary share

AT -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.165 per Share (2022: nill), equivalent to US$36,234,000
(2022: nill) in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023(the “Final Dividend”). The Final Dividend is denominated
and declared in Hong Kong dollars, among which, dividends
for RMB Shares will be paid in RMB calculated using the
average